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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") is abank holding company incorporated in the State of Nevada
and serves as the holding company for First Community Bank, N. A. (the "Bank"), a national banking association that
conducts commercial banking operations within the states of Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, South Carolina,
and Tennessee. The Company also owns GreenPoint Insurance Group, Inc. ("GreenPoint"), afull-serviceinsurance
agency acquired in September 2007, and Investment Planning Consultants ("IPC"), an investment advisory firm
acquired in November 2006. The Company had total consolidated assets of approximately $2.15 billion at December 31,
2007, and conducts its banking operations through fifty-seven locations and four wealth management offices.

The Company is abank holding company, and its banking operations are expected to remain the principal business
and major source of revenue for the Company. The Company provides a mechanism for ownership of the subsidiary
banking operations, provides capital funds as required, and serves as a conduit for distribution of dividendsto
stockholders. The Company also considers and eval uates options for growth and expansion of the existing subsidiary
banking operations. The Company currently derives substantially all of its revenues from dividends paid by its
subsidiary bank. Dividend payments by the Bank are determined in relation to earnings, asset growth and capital
position and are subject to certain restrictions by regulatory agencies as described more fully under Regulation and
Supervision of thisitem.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed 615 full-time equivalent employees at December 31, 2007. Management
considers employee relations to be excellent.

Regulation and Supervision
General

The supervision and regulation of the Company and its subsidiaries by the banking agenciesisintended primarily
for the protection of depositors, the deposit insurance fund of the FDIC, and the banking system as awhole, and not for
the protection of stockholders or creditors. The banking agencies have broad enforcement power over bank holding
companies and banks, including the power to impose substantial fines and other penaltiesfor violations of laws and
regulations.

The following description summarizes some of the laws to which the Company and the Bank are subject.
Referencesin the following description to applicable statutes and regulations are brief summaries of these statutes and
regulations, do not purport to be complete, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and
regulations.

The Company

The Company isafinancial holding company pursuant to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act ("GLB Act") and abank
holding company registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended ("BHCA"). Accordingly, the
Company is subject to supervision, regulation and examination by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System ("Federal Reserve Board"). The BHCA, the GLB Act, and other federal laws subject financial and bank holding
companies to particular restrictions on the types of activitiesin which they may engage, and to arange of supervisory
requirements and activities, including regulatory enforcement actions for violations of laws and regulations.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends; Source of Strength. 1t isthe policy of the Federal Reserve Board that bank
holding companies should pay cash dividends on common stock only out of income available over the past year and
only if prospective earnings retention is consistent with the organization’s expected future needs and




financial condition. The policy provides that bank holding companies should not maintain alevel of cash dividends that
undermines the bank holding company’s ability to serve as a source of strength to its banking subsidiaries.

Under Federal Reserve Board policy, abank holding company is expected to act as a source of financial strength to
each of its banking subsidiaries and commit resources to their support. Such support may be required at times when,
absent this Federal Reserve Board policy, aholding company may not beinclined to provideit. As discussed below, a
bank holding company in certain circumstances could be required to guarantee the capital plan of an undercapitalized
banking subsidiary.

Scope of Permissible Activities. Under the BHCA, bank holding companies generally may not acquire adirect or
indirect interest in or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company that is not a bank or bank holding
company or from engaging in activities other than those of banking, managing or controlling banks or furnishing
servicesto or performing services for its subsidiaries, except that it may engagein, directly or indirectly, certain
activities that the Federal Reserve Board determined to be closely related to banking or managing and controlling banks
asto be aproper incident thereto.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the GLB Act, effective March 11, 2000, eliminated the barriers to affiliations among
banks, securitiesfirms, insurance companies and other financial service providers and permits bank holding companies
to become financial holding companies and thereby affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and engage
in other activitiesthat are financial in nature. The GLB Act defines "financial in nature" to include securities
underwriting, dealing and market making; sponsoring mutual funds and investment companies; insurance underwriting
and agency; merchant banking activities and activities that the Federal Reserve Board has determined to be closely
related to banking. No regulatory approval is generally required for afinancial holding company to acquire acompany,
other than abank or savings association, engaged in activities that are financial in nature or incidental to activities that
arefinancial in nature, as determined by the Federal Reserve Board.

Under the GLB Act, abank holding company may become afinancia holding company by filing a declaration with
the Federal Reserve Board if each of its subsidiary banksis well-capitalized under the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") prompt corrective action provisions, iswell managed and has at |east
asatisfactory rating under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 ("CRA"). The Company elected financial holding
company status in December 2006.

Safe and Sound Banking Practices. Bank holding companies are not permitted to engage in unsafe and unsound
banking practices. The Federal Reserve Board has broad authority to prohibit activities of bank holding companies and
their nonbanking subsidiaries which represent unsafe and unsound banking practices or which constitute viol ations of
laws or regulations, and can assess civil money penalties for certain activities conducted on aknowing and reckless
basis, if those activities caused a substantial l0ss to a depository institution.

Anti-Tying Restrictions. Bank holding companies and their affiliates are prohibited from tying the provision of
certain services, such as extensions of credit, to other services offered by a holding company or its affiliates.

Stock Repurchases. A bank holding company is required to give the Federal Reserve Board prior notice of any
redemption or repurchase of its own equity securities, if the consideration to be paid, together with the consideration
paid for any repurchases or redemptions in the preceding year, is equal to 10% or more of the company’s consolidated
net worth. The Federal Reserve Board may oppose the transaction if it believes that the transaction would constitute an
unsafe or unsound practice or would violate any law or regulation.

Capital Adeguacy Requirements. The Federal Reserve Board has promulgated capital adequacy guidelines for use
in its examination and supervision of bank holding companies. If abank holding company’s capital falls below minimum
required levels, then the bank holding company must implement aplan to increaseits capital, and its ability to pay
dividends, make acquisitions of new banks or engage in certain other activities such asissuing brokered deposits may
berestricted or prohibited.

The Federal Reserve Board currently uses two types of capital adequacy guidelines for holding companies, atwo-
tiered risk-based capital guideline and aleverage capital ratio guideline. The two-tiered risk-based capital guideline
assignsrisk weightingsto all assets and certain off-balance sheet items of the holding company’s operations, and then
establishes aminimum ratio of the holding company’s Tier 1 capital to the aggregate dollar




amount of risk-weighted assets (which amount is usually less than the aggregate dollar amount of such assets without
risk weighting) and a minimum ratio of the holding company’stotal capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital, as adjusted)
to the aggregate dollar amount of such risk-weighted assets. The leverage ratio guideline establishes a minimum ratio of
the holding company’s Tier 1 capital to itstotal tangible assets (total assets less goodwill and certain identifiable
intangibles), without risk-weighting.

Under both guidelines, Tier 1 capital (sometimes referred to as"core capital") is defined to include: common
shareholders’ equity (including retained earnings), qualifying non-cumul ative perpetual preferred stock and related
surplus, qualifying cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, trust preferred securities, and minority
interests in the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries (limited to a maximum of 25% of Tier 1 capital). Goodwill
and most intangible assets are deducted from Tier 1 capital. For purposes of the total risk-based capital guidelines,

Tier 2 capital (sometimes referred to as "supplementary capital™) is defined to include: allowances for loan and lease
losses (limited to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets), perpetual preferred stock not included in Tier 1 capital, intermediate-
term preferred stock and any related surplus, certain hybrid capital instruments, perpetual debt and mandatory
convertible debt securities, and intermediate-term subordinated debt instruments (subject to limitations). The maximum
amount of qualifying Tier 2 capital is 100% of qualifying Tier 1 capital. For purposes of the total capital guideline, total
capital equals Tier 1 capital, plus qualifying Tier 2 capital, minus investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, reciprocal
holdings of bank holding company capital securities, and deferred tax assets and other deductions. The Federal Reserve
Board' s current capital adequacy guidelines require that a bank holding company maintain a Tier 1 risk-based capital
ratio of at least 4% and atotal risk-based capital ratio of at least 8%. At December 31, 2007, the Company’sratio of Tier 1
capital to total risk-weighted assets was 11.45% and its ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets was 12.34%.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve Board uses aleverage ratio as an additional
tool to evaluate the capital adequacy of bank holding companies. The leverageratio isacompany’s Tier 1 capital
divided by its average total consolidated assets. Certain highly rated bank holding companies may maintain a minimum
leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank holding companies are required to maintain aleverage ratio of 4.0% or more,
depending on their overall condition. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s leverage ratio was 8.09%.

The federal banking agencies' risk-based and leverage ratios are minimum supervisory ratios generally applicable
to banking organizations that meet certain specified criteria, assuming that they have the highest regulatory rating.
Banking organi zations not meeting these criteria are expected to operate with capital positions well above the minimum
ratios. The federal bank regulatory agencies may set capital requirements for a particular banking organization that are
higher than the minimum ratios when circumstances warrant. Federal Reserve Board guidelines also provide that
banking organizations experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be expected to maintain strong capital
positions substantially above the minimum supervisory levels, without significant reliance on intangibl e assets.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companies. The BHCA requires every bank holding company to obtain the prior
approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it may acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank, or
ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after such acquisition it would own or control, directly or
indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank. In approving bank acquisitions by bank holding companies,
the Federal Reserve Board isrequired to consider the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the
bank holding company and the banks concerned, the convenience and needs of the communities to be served, and
various competitive factors.

The Bank

The Bank isanational association and is subject to supervision and regulation by the Office of the Comptroller of
Currency ("OCC"). Since the deposits of the Bank areinsured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"),
the Bank is also subject to supervision and regulation by the FDIC. Because the Federal Reserve Board regulates the
Company, and because the Bank is amember of the Federal Reserve System, the Federal Reserve Board also has
regulatory authority which directly affects the Bank.




Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders. Transactions between the Bank and its nonbanking
subsidiaries and/or affiliates, including the Company, are subject to Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act. In general,
Section 23A imposes limits on the amount of such transactions, and also requires certain levels of collateral for loansto
affiliated parties. It also limits the amount of advancesto third parties which are collateralized by the securities or
obligations of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Affiliate transactions are al so subject to Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally requires that
certain transactions between the Bank and its affiliates be on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable to the
Bank, asthose prevailing at the time for comparabl e transactions with or involving other nonaffiliated persons. The
Federal Reserve Board hasissued Regulation W which codifies prior regulations under Sections 23A and 23B of the
Federal Reserve Act and interpretive guidance with respect to affiliate transactions.

Therestrictions on loans to directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and their related interests
contained in the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation O apply to all insured institutions and their subsidiaries and
holding companies. These restrictions include limits on loans to one borrower and conditions that must be met before
such aloan can be made. Thereis also an aggregate limitation on all loans to such persons. These |oans cannot exceed
theinstitution’stotal unimpaired capital and surplus, and the FDIC may determine that alesser amount is appropriate.

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank Dividends and Assets. Dividends paid by the Bank have
provided the Company’s operating funds and for the foreseeable future it is anticipated that dividends paid by the Bank
to the Company will continue to be the Company’s primary source of operating funds.

Capital adequacy requirements of the OCC limit the amount of dividends that may be paid by the Bank. The Bank
cannot pay adividend if, after paying the dividend, it would be classified as "undercapitalized." In addition, without the
OCC's approval, dividends may not be paid by the Bank in an amount in any calendar year which exceeds itstotal net
profitsfor that year, plusitsretained profits for the preceding two years, less any required transfers to capital surplus.
National banks also may not pay dividendsin excess of total retained profits, including current year's earnings after
deducting bad debts in excess of reservesfor loan losses. In some cases, the OCC may find a dividend payment that
meets these statutory requirements to be an unsafe or unsound practice.

Because the Company isalegal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaries, itsright to participate in the
distribution of assets of any subsidiary upon the subsidiary’sliquidation or reorganization will be subject to the prior
claims of the subsidiary’s creditors. In the event of aliquidation or other resolution of an insured depository institution,
the claims of depositors and other general or subordinated creditors are entitled to a priority of payment over the claims
of holders of any obligation of theinstitution to its shareholders, including any depository institution holding company
or any shareholder or creditor thereof.

Examinations. Under the FDICIA, al insured institutions must undergo regular on-site examination by their
appropriate banking agency and such agency may assess the institution for its costs of conducting the examination.
The OCC periodically examines and evaluates national banks, such as the Bank. These examinations review areas such
as capital adequacy, reserves, loan portfolio quality and management, consumer and other compliance issues,
investments, information systems, disaster recovery and contingency planning and management practices. Based upon
such an evaluation, the OCC may reval ue the assets of a bank and require that it establish specific reservesto
compensate for the difference between the OCC-determined value and the book value of such assets.

Capital Adegquacy Requirements. The OCC has adopted regulations establishing minimum requirements for the
capital adequacy of insured national banks. The OCC may establish higher minimum requirementsif, for example, a bank
has previously received special attention or has a high susceptibility to interest rate risk.

The OCC'srisk-based capital guidelines generally require national banks to have aminimum ratio of Tier 1 capital
to total risk-weighted assets of 4.0% and aratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets of 8.0%. The capital
categories have the same definitions for the Bank as for the Company. At December 31, 2007, the Bank’sratio of Tier 1
capital to total risk-weighted assets was 10.55% and itsratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets was 11.44%.




The OCC'sleverage guidelines require national banksto maintain Tier 1 capital of no lessthan 4.0% of average
total assets, except in the case of certain highly rated banks for which the requirement is 3.0% of average total assets.
At December 31, 2007, the Bank’ s leverage ratio was 7.44%.

Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies. The federal banking regulators are required to take " prompt
corrective action" with respect to capital-deficient institutions. Agency regulations define, for each capital category, the
levels at which institutions are "well-capitalized," "adequately capitalized,” "undercapitalized," "significantly
undercapitalized" and "critically undercapitalized." A "well-capitalized" bank has atotal risk-based capital ratio of 10.0%
or higher; aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or higher; aleverage ratio of 5.0% or higher; and is not subject to any
written agreement, order or directive requiring it to maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure. An
"adequately capitalized" bank has atotal risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of
4.0% or higher; aleverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0% or higher if the bank was rated a composite 1 in its most recent
examination report and is not experiencing significant growth); and does not meet the criteriafor awell-capitalized bank.
A bank is"undercapitalized" if it failsto meet any one of the ratios required to be adequately capitalized. The Bank is
classified as "well-capitalized" for purposes of the FDIC's prompt corrective action regul ations.

In addition to requiring undercapitalized institutions to submit a capital restoration plan, agency regulations
contain broad restrictions on certain activities of undercapitalized institutions including asset growth, acquisitions,
branch establishment and expansion into new lines of business. With certain exceptions, an insured depository
institution is prohibited from making capital distributions, including dividends, and is prohibited from paying
management fees to control personsif the institution would be undercapitalized after any such distribution or payment.

Asaninstitution’s capital decreases, the federal regulators’ enforcement powers become more severe. A
significantly undercapitalized institution is subject to mandated capital raising activities, restrictions on interest rates
paid and transactions with affiliates, removal of management and other restrictions. The FDIC has limited discretionin
dealing with acritically undercapitalized institution and is generally required to appoint areceiver or conservator.
Similarly, within 90 days of anational bank becoming critically undercapitalized, the OCC must appoint a receiver or
conservator unless certain findings are made with respect to the institution’s continued viability.

Banks with risk-based capital and leverage ratios below the required minimums may also be subject to certain
administrative actions, including the termination of deposit insurance upon notice and hearing, or atemporary
suspension of insurance without a hearing in the event the institution has no tangible capital .

Deposit Insurance Assessments. The Bank’s deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit I nsurance
Fund ("DIF") of the FDIC and are subject to deposit insurance assessments to maintain the DIF. The DIF was created
by the merger of the Bank Insurance Fund and Savings Association Insurance Fund provided for in the Federal Deposit
Insurance Reform Act of 2005 ("FDIRA"), as enacted in February 2006. Under the new risk-based assessment system,
which became effective January 1, 2007, the FDIC evaluates the risk of each financial institution based on three primary
sources of information: (1) its supervisory rating, (2) itsfinancial ratios, and (3) itslong-term debt issuer rating, if the
institution has one. The FDIC also adopted a new base schedule of ratesthat it can adjust up or down, depending on
the needs of the DIF, and set initial premiums for 2007 that range from 5 cents per $100 of domestic depositsin the
lowest risk category to 43 cents per $100 of domestic deposits for banksin the highest risk category. The designated
reserveratioiscurrently set at 1.25% of estimated insured deposits.

The FDIRA also provides for a one-time assessment credit for eligible insured depository institutions (those
institutions that were in existence on December 31, 1996 and paid a deposit insurance assessment prior to that date, or
are a successor to any such institution). The credit is determined based on the assessment base of the institution as of
December 31, 1996 as compared with the combined aggregate assessment base of all eligibleinstitutions as of that date.
The credit may be used to offset up to 100% of the 2007 DIF assessment, and if not completely used in 2007, may be
applied to not more than 90% of each of the aggregate 2008, 2009 and 2010 DIF assessments.

Enforcement Powers. The FDIC and the other federal banking agencies have broad enforcement powers, including
the power to terminate deposit insurance, impose substantial fines and other civil and criminal penalties




and appoint a conservator or receiver. Failure to comply with applicable laws, regul ations and supervisory agreements
could subject the Company or the Bank, aswell as officers, directors and other institution-affiliated parties of these
organizations, to administrative sanctions and potentially substantial civil money penalties. The appropriate federal
banking agency may appoint the FDIC as conservator or receiver for abanking institution (or the FDIC may appoint
itself, under certain circumstances) if any one or more of anumber of circumstances exist, including, without limitation,
the fact that the banking institution is undercapitalized and has no reasonabl e prospect of becoming adequately
capitalized; failsto become adequately capitalized when required to do so; fails to submit atimely and acceptable capital
restoration plan; or materially failsto implement an accepted capital restoration plan.

Consumer Laws and Regulations. In addition to the laws and regulations discussed herein, the Bank is also
subject to certain consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect consumersin transactions with banks.
Whilethelist set forth herein is not exhaustive, these laws and regulationsinclude the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth
in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity
Act, and the Fair Housing Act, and various state counterparts. These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure
requirements and regul ate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits or
making loansto such customers. The Bank must comply with the applicable provisions of these consumer protection
laws and regulations as part of their ongoing customer relations.

In addition, federal law currently contains extensive customer privacy protection provisions. Under these
provisions, afinancial institution must provide to its customers, at the inception of the customer relationship and
annually thereafter, the institution’s policies and procedures regarding the handling of customers' nonpublic personal
financial information. These provisions also provide that, except for certain limited exceptions, afinancial institution
may not provide such personal information to unaffiliated third parties unless the institution discloses to the customer
that such information may be so provided and the customer is given the opportunity to opt out of such disclosure.

USA PATRIOT Act of 2001. The Uniting and Strengthening Americaby Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 ("Patriot Act") was enacted in October 2001. The Patriot Act has
broadened existing anti-money laundering legislation while imposing new compliance and due diligence obligations on
banks and other financial institutions, with a particular focus on detecting and reporting moneylaundering transactions
involving domestic or international customers. The U.S. Treasury Department has issued and will continueto issue
regulations clarifying the Patriot Act’s requirements. The Patriot Act requires all "financial institutions," as defined, to
establish certain anti-money laundering compliance and due diligence programs. Recently, the regulatory agencies have
intensified their examination proceduresin light of the Patriot Act’s anti-money laundering and bank secrecy act
requirements. The Company believesthat its controls and procedures are in compliance with the Patriot Act.

Website Accessto Company Reports

The Company makes available free of charge on its website at www.fcbinc.com its Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments thereto, as soon as reasonably
practicable after the Company files such reports with, or furnishes them to, the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC"). Investors are encouraged to access these reports and the other information about the Company’s business on
itswebsite. Information found on the Company’s website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company
will also provide copies of its Annual Report on Form 10-K, free of charge, upon written request of its Investor
Relations department at the Company’s main address, P.O. Box 989, Bluefield, VA 24605.

Forward-L ooking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may include "forward-looking statements”, which are made in good faith by the
Company pursuant to the "safe harbor" provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
forward-looking statements include, among others, statements with respect to the Company’s beliefs, plans, objectives,
goals, guidelines, expectations, anticipations, estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and
uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s




control. Thewords "may", "could", "should", "would", "believe", "anticipate", "estimate", "expect”, "intend", "plan"
and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. The following factors, among others, could
cause the Company'’s financial performanceto differ materially from that expressed in such forward-looking statements:
the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the local economiesin which the Company
conducts operations; the effects of, and changesin, trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including interest rate
policies of the Federal Reserve Board; inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fluctuations; the timely development
of competitive new products and services of the Company and the acceptance of these products and services by new
and existing customers; the willingness of customers to substitute competitors' products and services for the
Company’s products and services and vice versa; the impact of changesin financial serviceslaws and regulations
(including laws concerning taxes, banking, securities and insurance); technological changes; the effect of acquisitions,
including, without limitation, the failure to achieve the expected revenue growth and/or expense savings from such
acquisitions; the growth and profitability of the Company’s noninterest or fee income being less than expected;
unanticipated regulatory or judicial proceedings; changesin consumer spending and saving habits; and the success of
the Company at managing therisks involved in the foregoing.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of important factorsis not all-inclusive. If one or more of the factors
affecting these forward-1ooking statements proves incorrect, then the Company’s actual results, performance, or
achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, forward-looking statements contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Therefore, the Company cautions you not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements.

The Company does not intend to update these forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, to reflect
change. All forward-looking statements attributabl e to the Company are expressly qualified by these cautionary
statements.

ITEM 1A. RISKFACTORS.

The Company and its subsidiary business are subject to interest rate risk and variationsin interest rates may
negatively affect itsfinancial performance.

The Company’s earnings and cash flows are largely dependent upon its net interest income. Net interest incomeis
the difference between interest income earned on interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and interest
expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowed funds. Interest rates are highly sensitive to
many factors that are beyond our control, including general economic conditions and policies of various governmental
and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Federal Reserve Board. Changes in monetary policy, including changesin
interest rates, could influence not only the interest the Company receives on loans and securities and the amount of
interest it pays on deposits and borrowings, but such changes could also affect (i) the Company’s ability to originate
loans and obtain deposits, and (ii) the fair value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities. If the interest rates
paid on deposits and other borrowingsincrease at afaster rate than the interest rates received on loans and other
investments, the Company’s net interest income, and therefore earnings, could be adversely affected. Earnings could
also be adversely affected if the interest rates received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than the
interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowings.

The Bank’sability to pay dividendsis subject to regulatory limitations which, to the extent the Company requires
such dividendsin the future, may affect the Company’s ability to pay its obligations and pay dividends.

The Company isaseparate legal entity from the Bank and its subsidiaries and does not have significant operations
of itsown. The Company currently depends on the Bank’s cash and liquidity aswell as dividends to pay the
Company'’s operating expenses and dividends to shareholders. No assurance can be made that in the future that the
Bank will have the capacity to pay the necessary dividends and that the Company will not require dividends from the
Bank to satisfy the Company’s obligations. The availability of dividends from the Bank islimited by various statutes
and regulations. It is possible, depending upon the financial condition of the Bank and other factors, that the OCC, the
Bank’s primary regulator, could assert that payment of dividends or other payments by the Bank




are an unsafe or unsound practice. In the event the Bank is unable to pay dividends sufficient to satisfy the Company’s
obligations or is otherwise unable to pay dividends to the Company, the Company may not be able to serviceits
obligations as they become due, including payments required to be made to the FCBI Capital Trust, a business trust
subsidiary of the Company, or pay dividends on the Company’s common stock. Consequently, the inability to receive
dividends from the Bank could adversely affect the Company’sfinancial condition, results of operations, cash flows
and prospects.

The Bank’s allowance for loan |osses may not be adequate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to provide for probable losses. The
Bank’s allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to cover actual loan losses, and future provisions for |oan losses
could materially and adversely affect the Bank’s operating results. The Bank’s allowance for loan losses is determined
by analyzing historical loan losses, current trendsin delinquencies and charge-offs, plans for problem loan resolution,
changesin the size and composition of the loan portfolio, and industry information. Also included in management’s
estimates for loan |osses are considerations with respect to the impact of economic events, the outcome of which are
uncertain. The amount of future lossesis susceptible to changesin economic, operating and other conditions, including
changesininterest rates, that may be beyond the Bank’s control, and these |osses may exceed current estimates.
Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, review the Bank’sloans and allowance for
loan losses. Although we believe that the Bank’s allowance for loan losses is adequate to provide for probable | osses,
we cannot assure you that we will not need to increase the Bank’s allowance for loan losses or that regulators will not
require usto increase this allowance. Either of these occurrences could materially and adversely affect the Company’s
earnings and profitability.

The Company'sbusinessis subject to various lending and other economic risks that could adversely impact the
Company’sresults of operationsand financial condition.

Changes in economic conditions, particularly an economic slowdown, could hurt the Company’s business. The
Company’s businessis directly affected by political and market conditions, broad trends in industry and finance,
legislative and regulatory changes, and changesin governmental monetary and fiscal policies and inflation, al of which
are beyond the Company’s control. A deterioration in economic conditions, in particular an economic slowdown within
the Company’s geographic region, could result in the following consegquences, any of which could have amaterial
adverse effect on the Company’ s business:

* loan delinguencies may increase;
» problem assets and foreclosures may increase;
» demand for the Company’s products and services may decline; and

« collateral for loans made by the Company may declinein value, in turn reducing aclient’s borrowing power, and
reducing the value of assets and collateral associated with the Company’sloans held for investment.

Thedeclining real estate market could impact the Company’s business.

The Company’s business activities and credit exposure are concentrated in Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina,
Tennessee and the surrounding region. A continued downturnin thisregional real estate market could hurt the
Company'’s business because of the geographic concentration within thisregional area. If thereisasignificant decline
inreal estate values, the collateral for the Company’sloanswill provide less security. Asaresult, the Company’s ability
to recover on defaulted loans by selling the underlying real estate would be diminished, and we would be more likely to
suffer losses on defaulted |oans.

The Company'slevel of credit risk isincreasing dueto its focus on commercial lending, and the concentration on
small businesses and middle market customerswith heightened vulnerability to economic conditions.

Commercial business and commercial real estate |oans generally are considered riskier than single-family residential
loans because they have larger balances to a single borrower or group of related borrowers. Commercial
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business and commercial real estate loansinvolve risks because the borrowers’ ability to repay the loans typically
depends primarily on the successful operation of the businesses or the properties securing the loans. Most of the
Bank’s commercial business |loans are made to small business or middle market customers who may have a heightened
vulnerability to economic conditions. Moreover, a portion of these |oans have been made or acquired by the Company
in recent years and the borrowers may not have experienced a compl ete business or economic cycle.

The Bank may suffer lossesin itsloan portfolio despite its underwriting practices.

The Bank seeks to mitigate the risks inherent in the Bank’s loan portfolio by adhering to specific underwriting
practices. These practicesinclude analysis of aborrower’s prior credit history, financial statements, tax returns and cash
flow projections, valuation of collateral based on reports of independent appraisers and verification of liquid assets.
Although the Bank believesthat its underwriting criteria are appropriate for the various kinds of loansit makes, the
Bank may incur losses on loans that meet its underwriting criteria, and these losses may exceed the amounts set aside
asreservesin the Bank’s allowance for |oan losses.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation which could adversely affect them.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ operations are subject to extensive regulation and supervision by federal and
state governmental authorities and are subject to various laws and judicial and administrative decisions imposing
regquirements and restrictions on part or all of the Company’s operations. Banking regulations governing the Company’s
operations are primarily intended to protect depositors’ funds, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system
asawhole, not security holders. Congress and federal regulatory agencies continually review banking laws, regulations
and policiesfor possible changes. Changesto statutes, regulations or regulatory policies, including changesin
interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations or policies, could affect the Company in substantial and
unpredictable ways. Such changes could subject the Company to additional costs, limit the types of financial services
and products the Company may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banksto offer competing financial services and
products, among other things. Failure to comply with laws, regulations or policies could result in sanctions by
regulatory agencies, civil money penalties and/or reputation damage, which could have amaterial adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. While the Company has policies and procedures
designed to prevent any such violations, there can be no assurance that such violations will not occur. These laws,
rules and regulations, or any other laws, rules or regulations, that may be adopted in the future, could make compliance
more difficult or expensive, restrict the Company’s ability to originate, broker or sell loans, further limit or restrict the
amount of commissions, interest or other charges earned on loans originated or sold by the Bank and otherwise
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition or prospects.

The Company faces strong competition from other financial institutions, financial service companies and other
organizations offering services similar to those offered by the Company and its subsidiaries, which could hurt the
Company’s business.

The Company’s business operations are centered primarily in Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, Tennessee
and the surrounding region. Increased competition within this region may result in reduced loan originations and
deposits. Ultimately, we may not be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors. Many
competitors offer the types of loans and banking services that we offer. These competitorsinclude other savings
associations, national banks, regional banks and other community banks. The Company also faces competition from
many other types of financial institutions, including finance companies, brokerage firms, insurance companies, credit
unions, mortgage banks and other financial intermediaries. In particular, the Bank’s competitors include other state and
national banks and major financial companies whose greater resources may afford them a marketplace advantage by
enabling them to maintain numerous banking locations and mount extensive promotional and advertising campaigns.

Additionally, banks and other financial institutions with larger capitalization and financial intermediaries not
subject to bank regulatory restrictions have larger lending limits and are thereby able to serve the credit needs of larger
clients. Theseinstitutions, particularly to the extent they are more diversified than the Company, may be able
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to offer the same loan products and services that the Company offers at more competitive rates and prices. If the
Company is unableto attract and retain banking clients, the Company may be unable to continue the Bank’sloan and
deposit growth and the Company’s business, financial condition and prospects may be negatively affected.

Potential Acquisitions May Disrupt the Company’s Business and Dilute Stockholder Value

The Company may seek merger or acquisition partners that are culturally similar and have experienced management
and possess either significant market presence or have potential for improved profitability through financial
management, economies of scale or expanded services. Acquiring other banks, businesses, or branchesinvolves
various risks commonly associated with acquisitions, including, among other things:

* Potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of the target company.

» Exposure to potential asset quality issues of the target company.

« Difficulty and expense of integrating the operations and personnel of the target company.
» Potential disruption to the Company’s business.

» Potential diversion of the Company’s management’s time and attention.

* The possibleloss of key employees and customers of the target company.

« Difficulty in estimating the value of the target company.

» Potential changesin banking or tax laws or regulations that may affect the target company.

The Company regularly evaluates merger and acquisition opportunities and conducts due diligence activities
related to possible transactions with other financial institutions and financial services companies. Asaresult, merger or
acquisition discussions and, in some cases, negotiations may take place and future mergers or acquisitionsinvolving
cash, debt or equity securities may occur at any time. Acquisitionstypically involve the payment of a premium over
book and market values, and, therefore, some dilution of the Company’s tangible book value and net income per
common share may occur in connection with any future transaction. Furthermore, failure to realize the expected revenue
increases, cost savings, increasesin geographic or product presence, and/or other projected benefits from an
acquisition could have amaterial adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

During 2007, the Company acquired GreenPoint, a full-service insurance agency located in High Point,
North Carolina. Details of this transaction are presented in Note 2 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 hereof.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

The Company has no unresolved staff comments as of the filing date of this 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company generally ownsits offices, related facilities, and unimproved real property. The principal offices of
the Company are located at One Community Place, Bluefield, Virginia, where the Company owns and occupies
approximately 36,000 square feet of office space. The Company operates 60 locations, with 17 officesin Virginia, 26 in
West Virginia, 11in North Carolina, onein South Carolina, and fivein Tennessee. The Company owns 44 of its banking
officeswhile others are leased or are located on leased land. There are no mortgages or liens against any property of the
Bank or the Company. A complete listing of all branchesand ATM sites can be found on the Internet at
www.fcbresource.com. Information on such website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

The Company is currently adefendant in various legal actions and asserted claimsinvolving lending and collection
activities and other mattersin the normal course of business. Although the Company and legal counsel are unableto
assess the ultimate outcome of each of these matters with certainty, they are of the belief that the resolution of these
actions should not have a material adverse affect on the financial position or the results of operations of the Company.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERSTO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FORREGISTRANT'SCOMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The number of common stockholders of record on December 31, 2007, was 2,431 and outstanding shares totaled
11,069,646. The number of common stockholdersis measured by the number of recordhol ders.

The Company’s common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select market under the symbol, FCBC. On
December 31, 2007, the Company’s year-end common stock price was $31.89, a 19.39% decrease from the $39.56 closing
price on December 31, 2006.

Book value per common share was $19.61 at December 31, 2007, compared with $18.92 at December 31, 2006, and
$17.29 at the close of 2005. The year-end market price for the Company’s common stock of $31.89 represents 162.62% of
the Company’ s book value as of the close of the year and reflects total market capitalization of $353.01 million. Utilizing
the year-end market price and 2007 diluted earnings per share, the Company’s common stock closed the year trading at
aprice/earnings multiple of 12.2 times diluted earnings per share.

Cash dividends for 2007 totaled $1.08 per share, up $0.04 or 3.85% from the $1.04 paid in 2006. The 2007 dividends
resulted in acash yield on the year-end market value of 3.39%. Total dividends paid for the current and prior years
totaled $12.08 million and $11.66 million, respectively.

The following table sets forth the high and low stock prices, book value per share, and dividends paid per share on
the Company’s common stock during the periodsindicated.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2007

Dividends Paid $ 027 $ 027 $ 027 $ 027
High 42.30 39.21 37.45 38.85
Low 35.19 28.89 2540 30.07
2006

Dividends Paid $ 026 $ 026 $ 026 $ 026
High 35.27 33.00 34.44 4117
Low 30.16 29.50 30.04 31.67

The Company’s stock repurchase plan, as amended, allows the purchase and retention of up to 550,000 shares. The
plan has no expiration date, remains open and no plans have expired during the reporting period. No determination has
been made to terminate the plan or to stop making purchases. The following table sets forth open market purchases by
the Company of its equity securities during the fourth quarter of 2007.

Maximum

Total Number Number of

Total of Shares Shares That

Number of Average Purchased as May Yet Be

Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Purchased
Purchased per Share  Announced Plan  Under the Plan
October 1-31, 2007 9,000 33.46 9,000 218,032
November 1-30, 2007 81,200 3341 81,200 141,027
December 1-31, 2007 33,800 33.15 33,800 120,634

Total 124000 $ 3335 124,000

On September 28, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group, Inc.
("GreenPoint"), an insurance agency located in High Point, North Carolina,. In connection with the initial payment of
approximately $1.66 million, the Company issued 49,088 shares of its common stock.
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Total Return Analysis

The following chart was compiled by SNL Securities LC, and compares cumulative total shareholder return of the
Company’s common stock for the five-year period ended December 31, 2007, with the cumulative total return of the
NASDAQ Composite index and the Asset Size & Regional Peer Group. The Asset Size & Regional Peer Group consists
of 49 bank holding companiesthat are traded on the NASDAQ, OTC Bulletin Board, and pink sheetswith total assets
between $1 billion and $5 billion and are located in the Southeast region of the United States. The cumulative returns
include payment of dividends by the Company.

Total Return Performance
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First Community Bancshares, Inc. 100.00 122.13 137.10 122.41 160.36 133.59
S& P 500 100.00 128.68 142.69 149.70 173.34 182.86
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 150.01 162.89 165.13 180.85 198.60
Asset Size & Regiona Peer Group 100.00 134.94 159.26 164.27 182.54 131.50
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

Five-Year Selected Financial Data

Balance Sheet Summary
(at end of period)
Securities(a)
Loans held for sale
Loans, net of unearned income
Allowancefor loan losses
Assetsrelated to discontinued operations
Total assets
Deposits
Borrowings
Liabilitiesrelated to discontinued operations
Total liahilities
Stockholders' equity

Summary of Earnings

Total interest income

Total interest expense

Provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Income from continuing operations before
income taxes

Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations

(Loss) income from discontinued operations
before income taxes

Income tax (benefit) expense

(Loss) income from discontinued operations

Net income

At or for the Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Amountsin thousands, except per share data)

$ 676195 $ 528389 $ 428554 $ 410218 $ 473,177
811 781 1,274 1,194 424
1,225,502 1,284,863 1,331,039 1,238,756 1,026,191
12,833 14,549 14,736 16,339 14,624
— — — — 22,372
2,149,838 2,033,698 1,952,483 1,830,822 1,672,727
1,393,443 1,394,771 1,403,220 1,356,719 1,223,376
517,843 406,556 335,885 274,212 242,267
— — — — 17,992
1,932,740 1,820,968 1,757,982 1,647,589 1,497,692
217,098 212,730 194,501 183,233 175,035
$ 127591 $ 120,026 $ 109508 $ 96,136 $ 90,641
59,276 48,381 35,880 26,953 26,397
717 2,706 3,706 2,671 3,419
24,831 21,323 22,305 17,329 14,542
50,463 49,837 55,501 48,035 37,590
41,966 40,425 36,636 35,806 37,777
12,334 11,477 10,191 9,786 11,058
29,632 28,948 26,445 26,020 26,719
— — (233) (5,746) (2,174)
— — (92) (2,090) (693)
— — (142) (3,656) (1,481)
29,632 28,948 26,303 22,364 25,238

(a) Reflectsthe reclassification during 2003-2004 periods of Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock
from Securities Available for Sale to Other Assets, consistent with the 2005-2007 presentation.
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At or for the Year Ended December 31,

Five-Year Selected Financial Data-continued 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Per Share Data
Basic earnings per share $264 $258 $233 $199 $227
Basic earnings per common share-

continuing operations 2.64 2.58 2.35 2.32 241
Basic (loss) earnings per common share-

discontinued operations — — (0.02) (0.33) (0.14)
Diluted earnings per common share $262 $257 $232 $197 $225
Diluted earnings per common share-

continuing operations 2.62 2.57 2.33 2.29 2.39
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share-

discontinued operations — — (0.02) (0.32) (0.14)
Cash dividends $108 $104 $102 $100 $098
Book value at year-end $19.61 $18.92 $17.29 $16.29 $15.57
Selected Ratios
Return on average assets 139% 146% 137% 124% 1.56%
Return on average assets-continuing 139% 146% 138% 145% 1.70%
Return on average equity 1354% 14.32% 13.79% 1253% 15.13%
Return on average equity-continuing 1354% 14.32% 13.87% 14.58% 16.02%
Average equity to average assets 10.30% 10.21% 9.91% 9.88% 10.32%
Average equity to average assets-continuing 10.30% 10.21% 991% 9.96% 10.64%
Dividend payout 4091% 40.31% 43.78% 50.25% 43.17%
Risk based capital to risk adjusted assets 12.34% 12.69% 11.65% 12.09% 14.55%
Leverageratio 809% 850% 7.77% 7.62% 8.83%

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, notes and tables
included throughout thisreport. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in thisreport, including
statementsin this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are, or may
be deemed to be, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As discussed below, the financial statements, footnotes, schedules
and discussion within this report have been reformatted to conform to the presentation required for "discontinued
operations" pursuant to the Company’s sale of its mortgage banking subsidiary in August 2004.

Executive Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. is abank holding company that, through its bank subsidiary, provides
commercial banking services and has positioned itself asaregional community bank and afinancial services aternative
to larger banks which often provide less emphasis on personal relationships, and smaller community banks which lack
the capital and resourcesto efficiently serve customer needs. The Company has focused its growth efforts on building
financial partnerships and more enduring and compl ete rel ationships with businesses and individual s through avery
personal approach to banking and financial services. The Company and its operations are guided by a strategic plan
which includes growth through acquisitions and through office expansion in new market areas including strategically
identified metro marketsin Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee. While the
Company’s mission remains that of acommunity bank, management believesthat entry
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into new marketswill accelerate the Company’s growth rate by diversifying the demographics of its customer base and
customer prospects and by generally increasing its sales and service network.

Economy

Thelocal economiesin which the Company operates are diverse and span afive-state region. West Virginiaand
Southwest Virginia continue to benefit from increasing coal and natural gas prices. These economies have significant
exposure to extractive industries, such as coal and natural gas, which become more active and lucrative when oil prices
rise. The local economiesin the central portion of North Carolina have suffered in recent years due to foreign
competition in both furniture and textiles, as well as consolidation in the financial servicesindustry. Despite these
detractions, the economiesin this region continue to benefit from national companies rel ocating and expanding in the
Triad and Central Piedmont areas. The Eastern Virginialocal economies are benefiting from awide array of corporate
and government activities and relocations.

The capital markets have experienced significant illiquidity in the last half of 2007, which has had an adverse effect
on the valuation of debt securities.

Competitive Focus

Asthe Company competes for increased market share and growth in both loans and depositsit continues to
encounter strong competition from many sources. Bank expansion through de novo branches and loan production
offices has grown in popularity as a means of reaching out to new markets. Many of the markets targeted by the
Company are also being entered by other banks in nearby markets and, in some cases, from more distant markets.
Despite strong competition from other banks, credit unions and mortgage companies, the Company has seen successin
newly established officesin Winston-Salem as well as other marketsin both Virginiaand North Carolina. The Company
attributes this measure of successto its recruitment of local, established bankers and loan personnel in those targeted
markets. Competitive forces impact the Company through pressure on interest yields, product fees and loan structure
and terms; however, the Company has countered these pressures with its relationship style of banking, competitive
pricing and a disciplined approach to loan underwriting.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") and conform to general practices within the banking industry. The Company’s
financial position and results of operations are affected by management’s application of accounting policies, including
judgments made to arrive at the carrying val ue of assets and liabilities and amounts reported for revenues, expenses and
related disclosures. Different assumptionsin the application of these policies could result in material changesin the
Company’s consolidated financial position and consolidated results of operations.

Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necessary principally when assets and liabilities are required to be
recorded at estimated fair value, when adecline in the value of an asset carried on the financial statementsat fair value
warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be established, or when an asset or liability needsto be
recorded based upon the probability of occurrence of afuture event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value
inherently resultsin more financial statement volatility. The fair values and the information used to record valuation
adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices or are provided by third party
sources, when available. When third party information is not available, valuation adjustments are estimated by
management primarily through the use of financial modeling techniques and appraisal estimates.

The Company’s accounting policies are fundamental to understanding Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation. The following isasummary of the Company’s more subjective and
complex "critical accounting policies." In addition, the disclosures presented in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and in Management’s Discussion and Analysis provide information on how significant assets and liabilities
arevalued in the financial statements and how those values are determined. Based on the val uation techniques used
and the sensitivity of financial statement amountsto the methods, assumptions, and estimates underlying those
amounts, management has identified the determination of the allowance for loan losses,

17




accounting for acquisitions and intangible assets, and accounting for income taxes as the accounting areas that require
the most subjective or complex judgments.

Allowancefor Loan Losses

The allowance for loan lossesis maintained at level s management deems adequate to absorb probable losses
inherent in the portfolio, and is based on management’s evaluation of the risksin the loan portfolio and changesin the
nature and volume of loan activity. The Company consistently applies areview process to periodically evaluate loans
for changesin credit risk. This process serves as the primary means by which the Company eval uates the adequacy of
the allowance for |oan losses.

The Company determines the allowance for |oan losses by making specific allocations to impaired |oans that exhibit
inherent weaknesses and various credit risk factors, and general allocations to commercial, residential real estate, and
consumer loans are devel oped giving weight to risk ratings, historical loss trends and management’s judgment
concerning those trends and other relevant factors. These factors may include, among others, actual versus estimated
losses, regional and national economic conditions, business segment and portfolio concentrations, industry
competition and consolidation, and the impact of government regulations. The foregoing analysisis performed by
management to evaluate the portfolio and cal culate an estimated valuation allowance through a quantitative and
qualitative analysis that applies risk factorsto those identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at both the portfolio level and theindividual loan level for commercial
loans and credit relationships while the level of consumer and residential mortgage loan allowance is determined
primarily on atotal portfolio level based on areview of historical |oss percentages and other qualitative factors
including concentrations, industry specific factors and economic conditions. The commercial portfolio requires more
specific analysis of individually significant loans and the borrower’s underlying cash flow, business conditions,
capacity for debt repayment and the valuation of secondary sources of payment, such as collateral. This analysis may
result in specifically identified weaknesses and corresponding specific impairment allowances. While allocations are
made to specific loans and classifications within the various categories of loans, the allowance for loan lossesis
availablefor all loan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in the Company’s ongoing evaluation of the required level of
allowance can significantly impact the Company’s results of operations and financial condition and may result in either
greater provisions against earnings to increase the allowance or reduced provisions based upon management’s current
view of portfolio and economic conditions and the application of revised estimates and assumptions. Differences
between actual loan loss experience and estimates are reflected through adjustments either increasing or decreasing the
loan loss provision based upon current measurement criteria.

Acquisitions and I ntangible Assets

The Company may, from time to time, engage in business combinations with other companies. The acquisition of a
businessis generally accounted for under purchase accounting rules promulgated by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board ("FASB"). Purchase accounting requires the recording of underlying assets and liabilities of the entity
acquired at their fair market value. Any excess of the purchase price of the business over the net assets acquired and
any identified intangiblesis recorded as goodwill. Fair values are assigned based on quoted prices for similar assets, if
readily available, or appraisal by qualified independent partiesfor relevant asset and liability categories. Financial assets
and liabilities are typically valued using discount models which apply current discount ratesto streams of cash flow. All
of these valuation methods require the use of assumptions which can result in alternate valuations and varying levels of
goodwill and, in some cases, amortization expense or accretion income.

Management must also make estimates of useful or economic lives of certain acquired assets and liabilities. These
lives are used in establishing amortization and accretion of some intangible assets and liabilities, such asthe intangible
associated with core deposits acquired in the acquisition of acommercial bank.

Goodwill isrecorded as the excess of the purchase price, if any, over the fair value of the revalued net assets.
Goodwill istested annually in the month of November for possible impairment by comparing the fair value of the unit
with its book value, including goodwill. If the fair value of the Company is greater than its book value, no

18




goodwill impairment exists. However, if the book value of the Company is greater than its determined fair value, goodwill
impairment may exist and further testing is required to determine the amount, if any, of the actual impairment loss.
Further testing would use a discounted cash flow model applied to the anticipated stream of cash flows from operations
of the business or segment being tested. Impairment testing necessarily uses estimates in the form of growth and
attrition rates, anticipated rates of return, and discount rates. These estimates have a direct bearing on the results of the
impai rment testing and serve as the basis for management’ s conclusions as to impairment.

Income Taxes

The establishment of provisionsfor federal and state income taxesis a complex area of accounting which also
involves the use of judgments and estimates in applying relevant tax statutes. The Company operatesin multiple state
tax jurisdictions and this requires the appropriate all ocation of income and expense to each state based on avariety of
apportionment or allocation bases. Management strives to keep abreast of changesin tax law and the issuance of
regulations which may impact tax reporting and provisions for income tax expense. The Company is also subject to audit
by federal and state tax authorities. Results of these audits may produce indicated liabilities which differ from Company
estimates and provisions. The Company continually evaluates its exposure to possible tax assessments arising from
audits and recordsits estimate of possible exposure based on current facts and circumstances.

Recent Acquisitionsand Branching Activity

In September 2007, the Company acquired GreenPoint Insurance Group (" GreenPoint"), an insurance agency
located in High Point, North Carolina. As of September 30, 2007, GreenPoint had annualized commission revenues of
approximately $4.60 million. In connection with the initial payment of approximately $1.66 million, the Company issued
49,088 shares of common stock. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, former shareholders of GreenPoint
are entitled to additional consideration aggregating up to $1.45 million in the form of cash or the Company’s common
stock, valued at the time of issuance, if certain future operating performance targets are met. If those operating targets
are met, portions of the value of the consideration ultimately paid will be added to the cost of the acquisition, which will
increase the amount of goodwill related to the acquisition. The acquisition of GreenPoint added $7.19 million of goodwill
and intangibles to the Company’ s balance sheet. The Company also assumed $5.57 million debt in connection with the
acquisition, of which approximately $5.00 million was retired at closing.

In December 2006, the Company completed the sale of its Rowlesburg, West Virginia, branch location. At the time
of the sale, the branch had deposits and repurchase agreements totaling approximately $10.6 million and loans of
approximately $2.2 million. The transaction resulted in a pre-tax gain of approximately $333 thousand.

In November 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants, Inc. ("IPC"), a
registered investment advisory firm located in Bluefield, West Virginia. In connection with theinitial payment of
approximately $1.47 million, the Company issued 39,874 shares of common stock. Under the terms of the stock purchase
agreement, former shareholders of 1PC are entitled to additional consideration of $1.43 million in the form of the
Company’s common stock if certain future operating performance targets are met. If those operating targets are met,
portions of the value of the consideration ultimately paid will be added to the cost of the acquisition, which will increase
the amount of goodwill related to the acquisition. In December 2007, the Company issued 13,401 sharesin connection
with the acquisition of 1PC.

In June 2006, the Company completed the sale of its Drakes Branch, Virginia, branch location. At the time of the
sale, the branch had deposits and repurchase agreements totaling approximately $16.4 million and loans of
approximately $1.9 million. The transaction resulted in apre-tax gain of approximately $702 thousand.

In December 2005, the Company completed the sale of its Clifton Forge, Virginia, branch location. The sale included
deposits and repurchase agreements totaling approximately $45.3 million and loans of approximately $7.1 million. The
transaction resulted in an approximate $4.4 million pre-tax gain on sale.
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The Company opened six branches during 2007 and has plans to open one new branch during the second quarter
of 2008. New branches included two offices in Winston-Salem, North Carolina, two officesin Richmond, Virginia, and
new officesin Daniels and Princeton, West Virginia. The remaining office to be opened isin Summersville, West
Virginia

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Net income for 2007 was $29.63 million, up $684 thousand from $28.95 million in 2006. Basic and diluted earnings per
share for 2007 were $2.64 and $2.62, respectively, compared with basic and diluted earnings per share of $2.58 and $2.57,
respectively, in 2006.

The Company’s key profitability ratios are return on average assets and return on average equity. Returns on
average assets for 2007 and 2006 were 1.39% and 1.46%, respectively. The returns on average equity for 2007 and 2006
were 13.54% and 14.32%, respectively. The Companys returns compare favorably to national peer return on average
assets and return on average equity of 0.98% and 11.23%, respectively, based on the September 2007 Bank Holding
Company Performance Report prepared by the Federal Reserve Board.

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s earningsis net interest income, the difference between income on earning
assets and the cost of funds supporting those assets. Significant categories of earning assets are loans and securities
while deposits and borrowings represent the major portion of interest-bearing liabilities. For purposes of the following
discussion, comparison of net interest income is performed on atax equivalent basis, which provides acommon basis
for comparing yields on earning assets exempt from federal income taxes to those assets which are fully taxable (see the
table titled Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Analysis).

Net interest income was $68.32 million for 2007, compared with $71.65 million for 2006. Tax-equivalent net interest
income totaled $72.79 million for 2007, a decrease of $2.87 million from the $75.66 million reported for 2006. The decrease
is attributable to a $759 thousand decrease due to volume and a$2.11 million decrease due to rate changes on the
underlying assets and liabilities.

During 2007, average earning assets increased $122.68 million while average interest-bearing liabilities increased
$136.71 million, in each case over the comparable period. The yield on average earning assets decreased three basis
points to 6.89% for 2007 from 6.92% for 2006. Short-term market interest rates were very stable from August 2006
through July 2007. That stability positively impacted the rate earned on loans and securities, as new loan production
and new securities purchased through September 2007 were being added at rates generally higher than those added in
2006. During, the last four months of 2007, the Federal Reserve' starget federal funds rate was decreased 100 basis
points, and the average bank prime loan rate decreased in concert. Those decreases were the largest driver in the overall
decrease in the Company’syield on average earning assets.

Total cost of average interest-bearing liabilitiesincreased 39 basis pointsto 3.57% during 2007. The Company’s
time deposit portfolio experienced significant upward repricing during 2007, as many of the certificates written in alower
market rate environment matured and then repriced at a higher interest rate. The net result was a decrease of 42 basis
pointsto net interest rate spread, or the difference between interest income on earning assets and expense on interest-
bearing liabilities. Spread for 2007 was 3.32% compared with 3.74% for 2006. The Company’s tax-equivalent net interest
margin of 3.80% for 2007 represents a decrease of 42 basis points from 4.22% in 2006.

Loan interest income decreased $3.94 million during 2007 as compared with 2006 as volume declined, while theyield
on loans increased seven basis points. During 2007, the tax-equivalent yield on available-for-sale securities increased
27 basis pointsto 5.77% while the average balance increased by $196.83 million as compared with 2006. The average tax-
equivalent yield increased due to the addition of higher-rate securities and the sales, maturities, and calls of lower-rate
securities.
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Average interest-bearing balances with banks declined $2.63 million during 2007 to $24.66 million, while the yield
increased 20 basis pointsto 4.76%. These balances include overnight liquidity and asmall portfolio of time deposits
purchased in 2002. Theyield on these balancesis largely affected by changesin the target federal funds rate.

The Company attempts to control the cost of deposited fundsin relation to the prevailing economic climate and
competitive forces. The Company determinesits overall balance sheet management goals through its Asset/Liability
Management Committee. The average total cost of interest-bearing deposits rose 39 basis pointsin 2007 compared with
2006. The average rate paid on interest-bearing demand deposits decreased one basis point, while the average rate paid
on savings, which includes money market and savings accounts, increased 22 basis points. The Company was
successful in keeping rates paid on interest-bearing checking accountsrelatively stable and increased money market
account rates to remain competitive and retain deposit funding. In 2007, average time deposits decreased $17.62 million
while the average rate paid increased 54 basis points to 4.44% as compared with 2006. The level of average non interest-
bearing demand deposits decreased $9.13 million to $228.58 million in 2007 compared with the prior year.

Average federal funds purchased and repurchase agreementsincreased $72.29 million in 2007, due mostly to
increases in the balances of repurchase agreements. The average rate paid on those funds also increased, asthey are
closely tied to the target federal funds rate and 3-month LIBOR. Average Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") advances
increased $57.98 million while the rate paid on those borrowings increased one basis point in 2007. Other borrowings
remained steady in 2007, but the rate paid increased 111 basis points because the majority of such borrowings consist
of the Company’strust preferred borrowing, which isindexed to 3-month LIBOR.
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Earning Assets:
Loans Held for Investment:(2)
Available-for-Sale Securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Total
Held-to-Maturity Securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Total
Interest-bearing
deposits with banks
Total earning assets
Other assets

Total

Interest-bearing liagbilities:
Demand deposits
Savings deposits
Time deposits
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements
FHLB borrowings and
other long-term debt

Average Balance Sheetsand Net I nterest Income Analysis

2007

2006

2005

Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,658,597

Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Stockholders' equity
Total
Net Interest Income
Net Interest Rate Spread(3)

Net Interest Margin(4)

Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/

Balance Interest(1) Rate(l) Balance Interest(1) Rate(l) Balance Interest(l) Rate(1)
(Dollarsin thousands)

1,251,028 93,561 7.48% 1,316,475 97,500 7.41% 1,302,020 89,965 6.91%
444413 24,702 556% 276,142 13,929 5.04% 262,715 11,062 4.21%
181,000 11,411 6.30% 152,437 9,655 6.33% 144,242 9,193 6.37%
625,413 36,113 5.77% 428579 23584 550% 406,957 20,255 4.98%

378 23 6.08% 386 22  570% 399 15 3.76%
14,842 1,189 8.01% 20,912 1,686 8.06% 28,336 2,269 8.01%
15,220 1,212 7.96% 21,298 1,708 8.02% 28,735 2,284 7.95%
24,662 1,175 4.76% 27,289 1,244 4.56% 32,100 1,077 3.36%

1,916,323 $132,061 6.89% 1,793,641 $124,036 6.92% 1,769,812 $113,581 6.42%
208,916 186,639 153,410

$2,125,239 $1,980,280 $1,923,222
$ 147856 $ 456 0.31%$ 146,248 $ 462 0.32%$ 152,774 $ 401 0.26%
330,969 7,327 221% 343,854 6,857 199% 368,339 4309 1.17%
697,996 30,974 444% 680,380 26,549 3.90% 658915 19,321 2.93%
223,132 8302 3.72% 150,839 5079 3.37% 128,551 2,782 2.16%
258,644 12217 4.72% 200,570 9434 470% 177,832 9,068 5.10%
59,276 357% 1,521,891 48,381 3.18% 1,486,411 35881 241%
228,583 237,714 228,781
19,210 18,551 17,355
218,849 202,124 190,675
$2,125,239 $1,980,280 $1,923,222
$ 72,785 $ 75,655 $ 77,700
3.32% 3.74% 4.01%
3.80% 4.22% 4.39%

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35%.
(2) Non-accrual loans areincluded in average balances outstanding but with no related interest income during the

period of non-accrual.

(3) Representsthe difference between the tax equivalent yield on earning assets and cost of funds.
(4) Representstax equivalent net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.

22




Rate and VVolume Analysis of Interest

The following table summarizes the changes in interest earned and paid resulting from changes in volume of
earning assets and paying liabilities and changesin their interest rates. In thisanalysis, the changesin interest due to
both rate and volume have been allocated to the volume and rate columns in proportion to dollar amounts.

2007 Compared to 2006 2006 Compared to 2005
$ Increase/(Decrease) due to $ Increase/(Decrease) due to
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
(Amountsin thousands)
Interest Earned On(1):
Loans $(4845 $ 906 $(3939) $ 1,003 $6532 $ 753
Securities availablefor sale 10,297 2,232 12,529 1,088 2,241 3,329
Securities held to maturity (490) (6) (496) (595) 19 (576)
Interest-bearing deposits with other banks (120) 51 (69) (161) 328 167
Total interest-earning assets 4,842 3,183 8,025 1,335 9,120 10,455
Interest Paid On:
Demand deposits 5 (11) (6) (18) 79 61
Savings deposits (257) 727 470 (286) 2,834 2,548
Time deposits 687 3,738 4,425 629 6,599 7,228
Federal funds purchased and repurchase
agreements 2,434 789 3,223 482 1,815 2,297
FHLB borrowings and other long-term debt 2,732 51 2,783 1,159 (793) 366
Total interest-bearing liabilities 5,601 5,294 10,895 1,966 10,534 12,500
Changein net interest income $ (759) $(2,111) $(2870) $ (631) $(1414) $(2,045)

(1) Fully taxable equivalent using arate of 35%.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for 2007 was $717 thousand, a decrease of $1.99 million when compared with 2006.
The decrease in loan loss provision between the periodsis primarily attributable to changesin specific allocations,
decreasesin commercia and consumer installment loan volume, reductions in net charge-offs, overall improved asset
quality, and changes in various qualitative risk factors. Net charge-offs for 2007 and 2006 were $2.43 million and
$2.89 million, respectively. Expressed as a percentage of average loans, net charge-offs decreased to 0.19% for 2007 from
0.22% in 2006.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists of all revenues which are not included in interest and fee income related to earning
assets. Noninterest income for 2007 was $24.83 million compared with $21.32 million in 2006. Wealth management
income, which includes fees for trust services and commission and fee income generated by |PC, increased $1.07 million
in 2007 compared with 2006, largely aresult of the November 2006 acquisition of 1PC.

Service charges on deposit accounts increased $1.15 million as aresult of increased overdraft fees and alarger
number of fee-based deposit accounts. Other service charges, commissions and fees reflected an increase of $608
thousand in 2007 compared with 2006, due mainly to increased debit card interchange income and ATM service fees.
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The Company acquired its insurance subsidiary, GreenPoint | nsurance Group, Inc., in September 2007. Essentially
all income for the insurance subsidiary is derived from commissions earned on the sale of policies. Since acquisition,
commissions earned on the sale of policies by GreenPoint in 2007 were $1.14 million.

Other operating income for 2007 includes a gain of $298 thousand resulting from the Company’s departure from a
state banking association insurance operation. The Company was contractually required to exit the operation upon
acquisition of GreenPoint. Other operating income for 2006 includes $1.04 million in gains from the sale of branch
locations, aswell as a $676 thousand recovery relating to a 1997 payment system fraud loss. The remaining components
of other operating income increased $621 thousand compared with 2006. During 2007, the Company al so recognized
securities gains of $411 thousand, an increase of $336 thousand over gains recognized in 2006.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $50.46 million for 2007, an increase of $626 thousand over 2006. Salaries and benefits
decreased approximately $1.02 million due to the Company’s efforts on expense control and efficiency and the
implementation of abranch staffing model. During 2007, total full-time equivalent employees decreased to 615 from 624
at December 31, 2006. Full-time equivalent employees are cal culated using the number of hours worked. Greenpoint
accounted for approximately 51 full-time equivalent employees at year-end. Total full-time equivalent employees at the
Bank and I PC decreased by 60 compared with 2006.

Occupancy expenses increased $112 thousand compared with 20086, as the Company opened new branches and
acquired GreenPoint. Furniture and equi pment expenses decreased $96 thousand, due mainly to a $90 thousand
decrease in depreciation and amortization expense from 2006 to 2007.

All other operating expense accounts increased $1.57 million in 2007 compared with 2006. Contributing to the
increaseisin operating expenses were increased new account promotions of $245 thousand and consulting expense of
$728 thousand. In 2007, service fees related to clearing costs for | PC also increased $339 thousand compared with 2006
and reflecting the full year impact in 2007. Professional fees also increased $207 thousand in 2007 compared with 2006 as
the Company outsourced itsinternal audit function near mid-year 2007.

The Company uses an efficiency ratio that is anon-GAAP financial measure of operating expense control and
efficiency of operations. Management believes thisratio better focuses attention on the core operating performance of
the Company over time than does a GAAP-based ratio, and is highly useful in comparing period-to-period operating
performance of the Company’s core business operations. It is used by management as part of its assessment of its
performance in managing noninterest expenses. However, this measure is supplemental and is not a substitute for an
analysis of performance based on GAAP measures. The reader is cautioned that the efficiency ratio used by the
Company may not be comparable to efficiency ratios reported by other financial institutions.

In general, the efficiency ratio used by the Company is noninterest expenses as a percentage of net interest income
plus noninterest income. Noninterest expenses used in the cal culation exclude amortization of intangibles and non-
recurring expenses. Income for the ratio isincreased for the favorable effect of tax-exempt income (see Average Balance
Sheets and Net Interest Income Analysis), and excludes securities gains and losses, which vary widely from period to
period without appreciably affecting operating expenses, and non-recurring gains. The measure is different from the
GAAP-based efficiency ratio, which also is presented in this report, which is cal culated using noninterest expense and
income amounts as shown on the face of the Consolidated Statements of Income. Both types of efficiency ratio
calculations are set forth and are reconciled in the table below.
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Our (non-GAAP) efficiency ratios for continuing operations for 2007, 2006, and 2005 were 51.20%, 51.05%, and
53.83%, respectively. The following table detail s the components used in calculation of the efficiency ratios.

GAAP-based and Our Efficiency Ratios

2007 2006 2005
(Dollarsin thousands)

GAAP-based efficiency ratio

Noninterest expenses $50,463 $49,837 $55,591
Net interest income plus noninterest income 93,146 92,968 95,933
GAAP-based efficiency ratio 54.18% 53.61% 57.95%
Our efficiency ratio
Noninterest expenses — GAAP-based $50,463 $49,837 $55,591
L ess non-GAAP adjustments:
Foreclosed property expense (185) (248) (288)
Amortization of intangibles (467) (410 (435)
Prepayment penalties on FHLB advances — — (3,794)
Other non-core, non-recurring expense items (200) (581) —
Adjusted non-interest expenses 49,711 48,598 51,074
Net interest income plus noninterest income — GAAP-based 93,146 92,968 95,933
Plus non-GAAP adjustment:
Tax-equivalency 4.470 4,010 4,072
L ess non-GAAP adjustments:
Security gains (411) (75) (753)
Branch sale gains — (1,035) (4,366)
Other non-core, non-recurring income items (104) (676) —
Adjusted net interest income plus noninterest income 97,101 95,192 94,886
Our efficiency ratio 51.20% 51.05% 53.83%

Equity-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the equity-based compensation accounting provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS') 123R. Through December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for equity-based
compensation under APB Opinion No. 25, using the intrinsic value model. Under Opinion No. 25, the Company
recognized no compensation expense related to stock options granted, and provided pro-forma disclosures of the
effects of accounting for stock options under the fair value model. The Company selected the modified prospective
method of transition. The adoption of the new equity-based compensation accounting standard resulted in increased
compensation expense. The total after-tax compensation cost related to stock option awards vesting in 2007 and 2006
was approximately $148 thousand and $208 thousand, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenseis comprised of federal and state current and deferred income taxes on pre-tax earnings of the
Company. Income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax income may vary significantly from statutory rates due to items of
income and expense which are excluded, by law, from the calculation of taxable income. These items are commonly
referred to as permanent differences. The most significant permanent differences for the Company include income on
state and municipal securities which are exempt from federal income tax, certain dividend payments which are deductible
by the Company, and tax credits generated by investmentsin low income housing and historical building rehabilitation.
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Consolidated income taxes for 2007 were $12.33 million, a29.39% effective tax rate, compared with $11.48 million, a
28.39% effective tax rate for 2006. The effective tax rate was higher during 2007 due mostly to lower levels of available
tax creditsthan in 2006.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

Net income for 2006 was $28.95 million, up $2.65 million from $26.30 million in 2005. Basic and diluted earnings per
share for 2006 were $2.58 and $2.57, respectively, compared with basic and diluted earnings per share of $2.33 and $2.32,
respectively, in 2005. Returns on average assets for 2006 and 2005 were 1.46% and 1.37%, respectively. The returnson
average equity for 2006 and 2005 were 14.32% and 13.79%, respectively.

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s earningsis net interest income, the difference between income on earning
assets and the cost of funds supporting those assets. Significant categories of earning assets are loans and securities
while deposits and borrowings represent the major portion of interest-bearing liabilities. For purposes of the following
discussion, comparison of net interest income is performed on atax equivalent basis, which provides acommon basis
for comparing yields on earning assets exempt from federal income taxes to those assets which are fully taxable (see the
table titled Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Analysis).

Net interest income was $71.65 million for 2006, compared with $73.63 million for 2005. Tax-equivalent net interest
income totaled $75.66 million for 2006, a decrease of $2.05 million from the $77.70 million reported for 2005. The decrease
is primarily attributable to a $631 thousand decrease due to volume and a $1.41 million decrease due to rate changes on
the underlying assets and liahilities.

During 2006, average earning assets increased $23.83 million while average interest-bearing liabilities increased
$35.48 million, in each case over the comparable period. Theyield on average earning assets increased 50 basis points
t0 6.92% from 6.42% for 2005. The rate earned on assets was positively impacted by the continued increases in short-
term market interest rates throughout 2006.

Total cost of average interest-bearing liabilities increased 77 basis points to 3.18% during 2006, as liabilities were
also affected by increasesin short-term market interest rates. The net result was a decrease of 27 basis points to net
interest rate spread, or the difference between interest income on earning assets and expense on interest-bearing
liabilities. Spread for 2006 was 3.74% compared with 4.01% for 2005. The Company’ s tax-equivalent net interest margin
of 4.22% for 2006 was a decrease of 17 basis points from 4.39% in 2005.

The largest contributor to the increase in the yield on average earning assetsin 2006, on a volume-weighted basis,
was a 50 basis point increase in the rate earned on loans held for investment. The increase in rate contributed
approximately $6.53 million to the $7.54 million change in interest income from the portfolio. Theyield on variable-rate
loanstied to Prime and other indices increased in response to the recent increases in short-term interest rates leading
the overall portfolio yield to the higher level.

During 2006, the tax-equivalent yield on available-for-sal e securitiesincreased 52 basis points to 5.50% while the
average balance increased by $21.62 million. The average tax-equivalent yield increased due to the addition of higher-
rate securities and the sales, maturities, and calls of |lower-rate securities.

Average interest-bearing balances with banks declined $4.81 million during 2006 to $27.29 million, whiletheyield
increased 120 basis pointsto 4.56%. The yield on those balancesis directly correlated to the increases in the target
federal funds rate which occurred throughout the year.

Throughout 2006, the pressures of increasing short-term interest rates resulted in an increase of 86 basis pointsin
the average cost of interest-bearing deposits. The average rate paid on interest-bearing demand deposits increased
6 basis points, while the average rate paid on savings, which includes money market and passhbook accounts, increased
82 basis points. The Company was successful in keeping rates paid on interest-bearing checking accountsrelatively
stable and increased money market account rates to remain competitive and retain deposit funding. Average time
depositsincreased $21.47 million while the average rate paid increased 97 basis pointsto 3.90%. The
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level of average non interest-bearing demand deposits increased $8.93 million to $237.71 million compared with the prior
year.

Average federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements increased $22.29 million, due mostly to increasesin
the balances of repurchase agreements. The average rate paid on those funds also increased, as they are closely tied to
the target federal funds rate and 3-month LIBOR. Average FHLB advances increased $22.74 million while interest paid
on those borrowings decreased 56 basis points as the Company repositioned its FHL B borrowings, and took advantage
of lower interest rate borrowing products. In January of 2006, the Company borrowed $75.00 million from the FHLB. At
the same time, the Company entered into a $50.00 million pay fixed, receive variable interest rate swap, effectively fixing
the borrowing rate at approximately 4.34%. Other borrowings remained steady, but the rate paid increased 176 basis
points because the magjority of such borrowings consist of debentures associated with the Company’strust preferred
issue, which isindexed to 3-month LIBOR.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income for 2006 was $21.32 million compared with $22.31 million in 2005. Wealth management income,
which includes fees for trust services and commission and fee income generated by 1PC (post-acquisition) and the
Company’s prior investment advisory subsidiary, whose customer base migrated to IPC in 2006, decreased $145
thousand in 2006, or 4.91%, compared with 2005.

Service charges on deposit accounts increased $147 thousand, or 1.46%, while other service charges, commissions
and fees reflected gains of $207 thousand, or 7.43%.

Other operating income includes $1.04 million and $4.37 million in gains from the sale of branch locationsin 2006
and 2005, respectively. The remaining components of other operating income increased $2.8 million compared with 2005.
Thelargest single item in that increase is the $976 thousand earned on the Company’s $25.00 million investment in life
insurance madein April 2006. Also included in other income for 2006 is a $676 thousand recovery relating to a 1997
payment system fraud loss. During 2006, the Company also recognized securities gains of $75 thousand, which were
$678 thousand | ess than those recognized in 2005.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $49.84 million for 2006, a decrease of $5.75 million over 2005. Salaries and benefits
decreased approximately $2.61 million due to the Company’s refocused efforts on expense control and efficiency.
During 2006, total full-time equivalent employees decreased to 624 from 684 at December 31, 2005. Also contributing to
the decrease from year to year was the $3.79 million prepayment penalty incurred in connection with the early
termination of $77.00 million of FHLB advancesin 2005.

Occupancy and furniture and equipment expenses increased $165 thousand and $147 thousand, respectively,
compared with 2005. The general level of occupancy and furniture and equipment costsin 2006 grew largely as aresult
of increasesin depreciation associated with continued investment in facilities, operating equipment, and technol ogy
infrastructure.

All other operating expense accounts increased $367 thousand, or less than 3%, in 2006 compared with 2005.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenseis comprised of federal and state current and deferred income taxes on pre-tax earnings of the
Company. Income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax income may vary significantly from statutory rates due to items of
income and expense which are excluded, by law, from the calculation of taxable income. These items are commonly
referred to as permanent differences. The most significant permanent differences for the Company include income on
state and municipal securities which are exempt from federal income tax, certain dividend payments which are deductible
by the Company, and tax credits generated by investmentsin low income housing and historical building rehabilitation.

Consolidated income taxes for 2006 were $11.48 million, a 28.39% effective tax rate, compared with $10.10 million, an
effective tax rate of 27.74%, for 2005. The effective tax rate for 2006 was greater than 2005 due
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to alower proportion of tax-free municipal interest income and results of a state tax audit. An audit of state income,
franchise, and salestax in one of the Company’stax jurisdictions was concluded during the fourth quarter of 2005. The
outcome of this audit was favorable to the Company and resulted in total state income and franchise tax refunds of
approximately $473 thousand, which was reflected in the 2005 provision for income tax expense.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Available-for-Sale Securities

Available-for-sal e securities were $664.12 million at December 31, 2007, compared with $508.37 million at
December 31, 2006, an increase of $155.75 million. The Company purchased securities throughout the year with liquidity
provided by net loan portfolio payoffs and borrowings.

The Company attempts to maintain an acceptable level of interest rate risk within its securities portfolio. At
December 31, 2007, the average life and duration of the portfolio were 6.9 years and 4.7, respectively. Averagelifeand
duration improved slightly from December 31, 2006, at 7.1 years and 5.4, respectively.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are reviewed quarterly for possible other-than-temporary
impairment. Thisreview includes an analysis of the facts and circumstances of each individual investment such asthe
length of time the fair value has been below cost, the expectation for that security’s performance, the creditworthiness
of the issuer and the Company’sintent and ability to hold the security to recovery or maturity. A declinein valuethat is
considered to be other-than-temporary would be recorded as aloss within noninterest income in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. The Company does not believe any unrealized loss, individually or in the aggregate, as of
December 31, 2007, represents other-than-temporary impairment. The Company has the intent and ability to hold these
securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. Furthermore, the Company believesthe
recorded declinesin the value of these securities at December 31, 2007 and 2006, are attributable to changesin market
interest rates and not the credit quality of the issuers.

At December 31, 2007, there was one security of asingleissuer, other than U.S. federal agency debentures and
other U.S. government-sponsored agency securities, which exceeded 10% of stockholders' equity. The Company held a
AAA-rated, non-agency mortgage-backed security which had a book value and a market value at December 31, 2007, of
$25.26 million and $23.58 million, respectively.

The following table details amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Amountsin thousands)
U.S. Government agency securities $ 136,791 $139,237 $ 117,777 $116,061 $ 92,739 $ 91,424
States and political subdivisions 186,834 188,536 152,189 154,047 151,118 152,168
Corporate Notes 164,731 150,625 85,080 85,033 61,466 61,274
M ortgage-backed securities 177,984 176,727 146,444 144,754 94,954 92,994
Equities 8,597 8,995 6,933 8,475 5,390 6,521
Tota $ 674,937 $664,120 $ 508,423 $508,370 $ 405,667 $404,381

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Investment securities classified as held-to-maturity are comprised primarily of high-grade state and municipal
bonds. These securities generally carry AAA bond ratings, most of which also carry credit enhancement insurance by
major insurers of debt instruments. The portfolio totaled $12.08 million at December 31, 2007, compared with
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$20.02 million at December 31, 2006. This decrease is reflective of continuing paydowns, maturities and calls within the
portfolio. The market value of held-to-maturity investment securities was 101.85% and 101.65% of book value at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Recent trendsin interest rates have had little effect on the portfolio market
value since December 31, 2006, dueto its larger percentage of municipal securitieswhich display less price sensitivity to
rate changes.

The average final maturity of the held-to-maturity investment portfolio decreased to 5.5 years at December 31, 2007,
from 6.1 years at December 31, 2006, with the tax-equivalent yield decreasing to 7.96% at December 31, 2007, from 8.02%
at year-end 2006. The weighted-average expected maturity, based on market assumptions for prepayment, was six
months and ten months at December 2007 and 2006, respectively. The average maturity data differs from final maturity
data because of the use of assumptions as to anticipated prepayments, and is generally a more accurate indicator of true
average life of the investment.

The following table details amortized cost and fair value of held-to-maturity securities for the three years ended
December 31, 2007.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Amountsin thousands)

States and political subdivisions $ 11699 $11,922 $ 19638 $19970 $ 23,781 $24,486
Corporate Notes 375 375 375 374 375 374
M ortgage-backed securities 1 1 6 6 17 17
Tota $ 12075 $12,298 $ 20,019 $20,350 $ 24,173 $24,877

LoansHeld for Sale

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Company sells most of the long-term, fixed-rate mortgage loansit originatesin the
secondary market. At December 31, 2007, the Company held $811 thousand of loans for sale to the secondary market, up
from $781 thousand at December 31, 2006. The gross notional amount of outstanding commitments to originate
mortgage loans for customers at December 31, 2007, was $10.94 million on 75 loans. The Company sells these mortgages
on abest-efforts basis and generates non-interest income through origination fees and yield spread gains.

LoansHeld for | nvestment

Total loans held for investment decreased $59.36 million to $1.23 billion at December 31, 2007, from $1.28 billion at
December 31, 2006, as aresult of decreased |oan production and large payoffs occurring throughout 2007. The average
loan to deposit ratio decreased to 89.02% for 2007, compared with 93.49% for 2006. Average loans held for investment
for 2007 of $1.25 billion decreased $65.45 million when compared with the average for 2006 of $1.32 billion.
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The held for investment |oan portfolio continues to be diversified among loan types and industry segments. The
following table presents the various |oan categories and changes in composition at year-end 2003 through 2007.

Loan Portfolio Summary

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Amountsin thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultural
$ 96261 $ 106645 $ 110211 $ 99302 $ 69,395
Real estate — commercia 386,112 421,067 464,510 453,899 317,421
Real estate — construction 163,310 158,566 143,976 112,705 98,510
Real estate — residential 498,345 506,370 504,387 457,417 421,299
Consumer 75,450 88,679 106,206 113,639 119,195
Other 6,027 3,549 1,808 2,012 992
Tota 1,225,505 1,284,876 1,331,098 1,238,974 1,026,812
L ess unearned income 3 13 59 218 621
1,225,502 1,284,863 1,331,039 1,238,756 1,026,191
Less allowance for loan |osses 12,833 14,549 14,736 16,339 14,624
Net loans $1212669 $1,270314 $1,316,303 $1,222417 $1,011,567

The Company maintained no foreign loansin the periods presented. Although the Company’sloans are made
primarily in the five-state region in which it operates, the Company had no concentrations of loans to one borrower or
industry representing 10% or more of outstanding loans at December 31, 2007.

The following table details the maturities and rate sensitivity of the Company’sloan portfolio at December 31, 2007.

Remaining Maturities

Over
One Year Oneto Over
and Less FiveYears FiveYears Total Per cent
(Amountsin thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 44647 $ 42473 $ 9141 $ 96,261 7.85%
Real estate — commercia 67,303 241,549 77,260 386,112 31.51%
Real estate — construction 100,515 60,234 2,561 163,310 13.33%
Real estate — mortgage 48,588 147,901 301,856 498,345 40.66%
Consumer 16,248 54,891 4,308 75,447 6.16%
Other 3,398 2,005 624 6,027 0.49%

$ 280,699 $ 549,053 $ 395,750 $1,225,502 100.00%
Rate Sensitivity:
Pre-determined rate $ 138417 $ 426,221 $ 107,322 $ 671,960 54.83%
Floating- or adjustable-rate 142,282 122,832 288,428 553,542 45.17%

$ 280,699 $ 549,053 $ 395,750 $1,225,502 100.00%

Allowancefor Loan Losses

The allowance isincreased by chargesto earningsin the form of provisions charged to current earnings and by
recoveries of prior loan charge-offs, and decreased by |oan charge-offs. The provisions are cal culated to bring the
allowanceto alevel, which, according to a systematic process of measurement, is reflective of the amount that
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management deems adequate to absorb probable losses. Additional information regarding the determination of the
allowance for loan losses can be found in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in [tem 8
hereof.

The allowance for loan losses was $12.83 million at December 31, 2007, compared with $14.55 million at
December 31, 2006. Management considers the all owance adequate based upon its analysis of the portfolio as of
December 31, 2007, however, no assurance can be made that additions to the allowance for loan losses will not be
required in future periods.

The following table details loan charge-offs and recoveries by loan type for the five years ended December 31, 2003
through 2007.

Y ears Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Amountsin thousands)

Allowance for loan losses at beginning of period $14549 $14,736 $16,339  $14,624  $14,410
Acquisition balances — — — 1,786 1,583
Charge-offs:

Commercial, financial, agricultural and commercial real estate 2,245 1,953 5,017 1,925 3,302

Real estate-residential 824 1,234 385 723 636

I nstallment 1,226 1,356 1,534 1,526 2,133

Total charge-offs 4,295 4,543 6,936 4,174 6,121

Recoveries:

Commercial, financial and agricultural 879 1,032 1,413 127 711

Real estate-residential 535 125 188 90 58

Installment 448 493 418 615 564

Total recoveries 1,862 1,650 2,019 1,432 1,333

Net charge-offs 2,433 2,893 4,917 2,742 4,788
Provision charged to operations 717 2,706 3,706 2,671 3,419
Reclassification of allowance for

lending-related commitments(1) — — (392 — —
Allowance for loan losses at end of period $12,833 $14549 $14736 $16,339  $14,624
Ratio of net charge-offsto average |oans outstanding 0.19% 0.22% 0.38% 0.24% 0.49%
Ratio of allowance for loan |osses to

total loans outstanding 1.05% 1.13% 1.11% 1.32% 1.43%

(1) AtJune 30, 2005, the Company reclassified $392 thousand of its allowance for |oan losses to a separate allowance
for lending-related liabilities. Net income and prior period balances were not affected by this reclassification. The
allowance for lending-related liabilitiesisincluded in other liabilities.
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The following table details the all ocation of the allowance for |oan losses and the percent of loans in each category
to total loansfor the five years ended December 31, 2007.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollarsin thousands)

Commercidl, financial and

agricultural $7441 53% $ 8418 53% $ 9993 58% $11,700 57% $ 9,414 47%
Real estate — mortgage 3699 41% 3,858 39% 2462 34% 2084 34% 2207 41%
Consumer 1693 6% 2273 8% 2281 8% 2555 9% 3003 12%
Total $12,833 100% $14,549 100% $14,736  100% $16,339 100% $14,624 100%
Risk Elements

Non-performing assets include loans on non-accrual status, loans contractually past due 90 days or more and still
accruing interest, and other real estate owned. The levels of non-performing assets for the last five years ending
December 31, 2007, are presented in the following table.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollarsin thousands)

Non-accrual loans $2,923 $3,813 $3,383 $5,168 $2,993
L oans 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest — — 11 — —
Total non-performing loans 2,923 3,813 3,394 5,168 2,993
Other real estate owned 545 258 1,400 1,419 2,091
Total non-performing assets $3,468 $4,071 $4794 $6,587 $5,084
Non-performing loans as a percentage of total loans 024% 030% 025% 042% 0.29%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total |oans and other real

estate owned 028% 0.32% 036% 053% 0.49%
Allowance for |oan | osses as a percentage of non-performing loans 439.0% 381.6% 4342% 316.2% 488.6%
Allowance for |oan | osses as a percentage of non-performing assets 370.0% 357.4% 307.4% 248.0% 287.6%

Total non-performing assets were $3.47 million at December 31, 2007, compared with $4.07 million at December 31,
2006, a decrease of $603 thousand. Non-accrual loans decreased by $890 thousand to $2.92 million at December 31, 2007,
compared with 2006. Ongoing activity within the classification and categories of non-performing loans continues to
include collections on delinquent loans, foreclosures, and movementsinto or out of the non-performing classification as
aresult of changing customer business conditions. There were no loans 90 days past due and still accruing at
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Other real estate owned increased $287 thousand to $545 thousand in 2007 and is carried at
the lesser of estimated net realizable value or cost.

Certain loansincluded in the non-accrual category have been written down to the estimated realizable value or
have been assigned specific reserves within the allowance for |oan losses based upon management’ s estimate of 10ss
upon ultimate resol ution.

The Company has considered all impaired loansin the evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses
at December 31, 2007. The following table presents additional detail of non-performing and restructured

32




loansfor the five years ended December 31, 2007. Additional information regarding nonperforming loans can be found
in Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Item 8 hereof.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Amountsin thousands)

Non-accruing loans $2923 $3,813 $3383 $5168 $2,993
L oans past due over 90 days and still accruing interest — — 11 — —
Restructured |oans performing

in accordance with modified terms 245 272 302 354 356

Gross interest income which would have

been recorded under original terms of

non-accruing and restructured loans 301 397 380 439 282
Actual interest income during the period 179 286 161 293 194

There are no outstanding commitments to lend additional funds to borrowersrelated to restructured loans.

Deposits

Total deposits decreased by $1.33 million during 2007. Noninterest-bearing demand deposits decreased during
2007 by $20.68 million while interest-bearing demand deposits increased $12.99 million. Savings deposits, which consist
of money market accounts and savings accounts, increased $10.01 million during 2007 while time deposits decreased
$3.65 million.

Average total deposits decreased slightly to $1.41 billion for 2007. Average interest-bearing demand deposits and
time depositsincreased $1.61 million and $17.62 million during 2007, respectively. Average noninterest-bearing demand
deposits and savings deposits decreased $9.13 million and $12.89 million during 2007, respectively. In 2007, the average
rate paid on interest bearing deposits was 3.29%, up 40 basis points from 2.89% in 2006. The attrition from interest-
bearing demand and savings deposits and the continued increase in time deposits reflects the migration of new and
current customer funds in response to the upward movement in time deposit interest rates during most of 2007.

Average Deposits and Average Rates

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(Dollarsin thousands)
Demand deposits $ 147856 $ 456 031%$ 146248 $ 462 0.32%$ 152,774 $ 401 0.26%
Savings deposits 330,969 7,327 221% 343854 6,857 199% 368,339 4,309 117%
Time deposits 697,996 30,974 444% 680,380 26,549 390% 658,915 19,321 2.93%
Total interest-bearing deposits $1,176,821 $38,757 3.29% $1,170,482 $33,868 2.89% $1,180,028 $24,031 2.04%

Non-interest bearing demand deposits $ 228,583 $ 237,714 $ 228,781

Borrowings

The Company’s borrowings consist primarily of overnight federal funds purchased from the FHLB and other
sources, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and term FHL B borrowings. This category of liabilities
represents wholesal e sources of funding and liquidity for the Company.

Short-term borrowingsincreased on average approximately $72.29 million for 2007 compared with the prior year asa
result of continued increases in portfolio assets. Funding cost is managed by the Company’s A sset/
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Liability Management Committee, which monitors, among other things, product and pricing, overall cost of funds, and
maintenance of an acceptable net interest margin.

Federal funds purchased were $18.50 million and $7.70 million, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Repurchase agreements were $207.43 million and $201.19 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Retail
repurchase agreements are sold to customers as an alternative to available deposit products and commercial treasury
accounts. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, total repurchase agreements included $50.00 million of wholesal e instruments,
which were added during 2006. The weighted-average rate of those whol esal e repurchase agreements was 3.85% and
4.30% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The underlying securitiesincluded in repurchase agreements remain
under the Company’s control during the effective period of the agreements.

Short-term borrowings include overnight federal funds and repurchase agreements. Balances and rates paid on
short-term borrowings for continuing operations are summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands) -
At year-end $225,927 4.32%  $208,885 3.70% $206,654 2.79%
Average during the year 223,132 3.72% 150,839 3.37% 128,551 2.16%
Maximum month-end balance 273,920 208,885 206,654

At December 31, 2007, FHLB borrowingsincluded $275.00 million in convertible and callable advances and $888
thousand of noncallable advances for atotal of $275.89 million. The weighted-average interest rate of all advances was
4.38% and 4.64% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. $50.00 million of the advances are hedged by an interest
rate swap to approximate afixed rate of 4.34%. After considering the effect of the interest rate swap, the weighted-
average interest rate of all advances was 4.30% at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, the FHL B advances had
maturities between two and thirteen years.

Alsoincluded in other indebtednessis $15.46 million of junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company in
October 2003 through FCBI Capital Trust, an unconsolidated trust subsidiary, with an interest rate of three-month
LIBOR plus 2.95%. The debentures mature in October 2033 and are callable in October 2008.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents the Company’s ability to respond to demands for funds and is primarily derived from maturing
investment securities, overnight investments, periodic repayment of loan principal, and the Company’s ability to
generate new deposits. The Company also has the ability to attract short-term sources of funds and draw on credit lines
that have been established at financial institutions to meet cash needs.

Total liquidity of $493.72 million at December 31, 2007, is comprised of the following: cash on hand and deposits
with other financial institutions of $52.75 million; unpledged available-for-sal e securities of $305.01 million;
held-to-maturity securities due within one year of $375 thousand; and FHLB credit availability of $135.58 million.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term function of business management. Excess liquidity is generally
used to pay down short-term borrowings. On alonger-term basis, the Company maintains a strategy of investing in
securities, mortgage-backed obligations and loans with varying maturities. The Company uses these sources of funds
to meet ongoing commitments, to pay maturing savings certificates and savings withdrawals, fund loan commitments
and maintain a portfolio of securities.

At December 31, 2007, approved |oan commitments outstanding amounted to $225.42 million. Certificates of deposit
scheduled to mature in one year or less totaled $529.70 million. Management believes that the Company has adequate
resources to fund outstanding commitments and could either adjust rates on certificates of deposit in order to retain or
attract deposits in changing interest rate environments or replace such deposits with advances from the FHLB or other
funds providersif it proved to be cost effective to do so.




The following table presents contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2007.

Total Payments Due by Period

Less Than Two to Four to After
Total 1 Year ThreeYears FiveYears 5Years
(Amountsin thousands)

Deposits without a stated maturity(1) $ 705348 $ 705348 $ — 3 — % —
Federal funds borrowed and overnight security

repurchase agreements 126,591 126,591 — — —

Certificates of Deposit(2)(3) 711,598 543,829 115,331 38,980 13,458

Term security repurchase agreements 119,526 50,737 5,296 5,121 58,372

FHL B advances(2)(3) 343,527 11,855 47,026 70,228 214,418

Trust preferred indebtedness 49,932 1,266 2,533 3,097 43,036

L eases 3,998 879 1,140 1,014 965

Tota $2,060520 $1,440505 $ 171,326 $ 118,440 $330,249

(1) Excludesinterest.

(2) Includesinterest on both fixed and variable-rate obligations. The interest associated with variable-rate obligations
is based upon interest ratesin effect at December 31, 2007. The interest to be paid on variable-rate obligationsis
affected by changesin market interest rates, which materially affect the contractual obligation amounts to be paid.

(3) Excludes carrying value adjustments such as unamortized premiums or discounts.

The following table presents detailed information regarding the Company’s off-bal ance sheet arrangements at
December 31, 2007.

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less Than Two to Four to After
Total OneYear(l) ThreeYears FiveYears FiveYears

(Amountsin thousands)

Commitments to extend credit Commercial, financial

and agricultural $33902 $ 31,958 $ 1,787 $ 136 $ 21
Real estate — commercial 23,575 17,691 3,357 1,400 1,127
Real estate — residential 66,696 6,615 3,255 5,318 51,508
Real estate — construction 58,087 39,307 4,416 8,086 6,278
Consumer lines of credit 43,157 41,825 155 28 1,149
Total unused commitments $225417 $ 137396 $ 12970 $ 14968 $ 60,083
Financial letters of credit $ 1,763 $ 1746 $ — $ 7% 10
Performance letters of credit 1,832 1,531 229 8 64
Total letters of credit $ 3595 $ 3277 $ 229 $ 15 $ 74

(1) Linesof credit with no stated maturity date are included in commitments for less than one year.

The Company has a pay fixed and receive variable interest rate swap that effectively fixes $50 million of FHLB
borrowings at 4.34% for a period of five years. Management does not anticipate this derivative transaction will have a
significant impact on reported earnings or cash flows.
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Stockholders' Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased $4.37 million to $217.10 million at December 31, 2007, as the Company
balances capital adequacy and returns to stockholders through earnings retention, management of dividend payments
to stockholders, and management of leverage and asset growth rates. Theincrease in equity in 2007 was due mainly to
comprehensive net earnings of $22.12 million less dividends paid to stockholders of $12.08 million and net additions of
treasury stock at a cost of $5.66 million.

Risk-based capital guidelines and the leverage ratio measure capital adequacy of banking institutions. At
December 31, 2007, the Company’s Tier | capital ratio was 11.45% compared with 11.60% in 2006. The Company’stotal
risk-based capital-to-asset ratio was 12.34% at December 31, 2007, compared with 12.69% at December 31, 2006. Both of
these ratios are well above the current minimum level of 8% prescribed for bank holding companies by the Federal
Reserve Board. The leverage ratio isthe measurement of total tangible equity to total assets. The Company’sleverage
ratio at December 31, 2007, was 8.09% versus 8.50% at December 31, 2006, both of which are well above the minimum
levels prescribed by the Federal Reserve Board. See Note 14 of the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statementsin Item 8
hereof.

Wealth Management Services

As part of its community banking services, the Company offers trust management and estate administration
servicesthrough its Trust and Financial Services Division (Trust Division). The Trust Division reported market val ue of
assets under management of $480 million and $507 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
Trust Division manages inter vivostrusts and trusts under will, develops and administers employee benefit plans and
individual retirement plans and manages and settles estates. Fiduciary fees for these services are charged on a schedule
related to the size, nature and complexity of the account.

The Trust Division employs a staff of trust professionals and support staff with awide variety of estate and
financial planning, investing and plan administration skills. The Trust Division islocated within the Company’s banking
officesin Bluefield, West Virginia. Services and trust development activities are offered to other branch locations and
primary markets through the Bluefield-based division.

The Company also offersinvestment advisory services through the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, IPC, which
reported assets under management of $360 million and $354 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. IPC
utilizes the Raymond James investment platform, which provides all settlement and clearing services.
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RI SK.

The Company’s profitability is dependent to alarge extent upon its net interest income, which isthe difference
between its interest income on interest-earning assets, such asloans and securities, and its interest expense on interest-
bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. The Company, like other financial institutions, is subject to interest
rate risk to the degree that its interest-earning assets reprice differently than itsinterest-bearing liabilities. The Company
manages its mix of assets and liabilities with the goals of limiting its exposure to interest rate risk, ensuring adequate
liquidity, and coordinating its sources and uses of funds while maintaining an acceptable level of net interest income
given the current interest rate environment.

The Company’s primary component of operational revenue, net interest income, is subject to variation as aresult
of changesin interest rate environments in conjunction with unbalanced repricing opportunities on earning assets and
interest-bearing liahilities. Interest rate risk has four primary componentsincluding repricing risk, basisrisk, yield curve
risk and option risk. Repricing risk occurs when earning assets and paying liabilities reprice at differing times as interest
rates change. Basis risk occurs when the underlying rates on the assets and liabilities the institution holds change at
different levelsor in varying degrees. Yield curverisk isthe risk of adverse consequences as aresult of unequal
changesin the spread between two or more rates for different maturities for the same instrument. Lastly, optionrisk is
the result of "embedded options', often called put or call options, given or sold to holders of financial instruments.

In order to mitigate the effect of changesin the general level of interest rates, the Company manages repricing
opportunities and thus, itsinterest rate sensitivity. The Company seeksto control itsinterest rate risk ("IRR") exposure
to insulate net interest income and net earnings from fluctuationsin the general level of interest rates. To measure its
exposureto IRR, quarterly simulations of net interest income are performed using financial models that project net
interest income through arange of possible interest rate environments including rising, declining, most likely and flat
rate scenarios. The results of these simulationsindicate the existence and severity of IRR in each of those rate
environments based upon the current balance sheet position, assumptions as to changes in the volume and mix of
interest-earning assets and interest-paying liabilities, management’s estimate of yieldsto be attained in those future rate
environments, and rates that will be paid on various deposit instruments and borrowings. Specific strategies for
management of IRR have included shortening the amortized maturity of new fixed-rate loans, increasing the volume of
adjustable-rate loans to reduce the repricing term of the Bank’s interest-earning assets, and monitoring the term
structure of liabilities to maintain a balanced mix of maturity and repricing to mitigate the potential exposure. The
simulation model used by the Company captures all earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities and all off-balance sheet
financial instruments and combines the various factors affecting rate sensitivity into an earnings outlook. Based upon
the latest simulation, the Company believesthat it isin aneutral sensitivity position.

The Company has established policy limits for tolerance of interest rate risk that allow for no more than a 10%
reduction in the next twelve months' projected net interest income based on the income simulation compared with
forecasted results. In addition, the policy addresses exposure limitsto changesin the economic val ue of equity
according to predefined policy guidelines. The most recent simulation indicates that current exposure to interest rate
risk is within the Company’s defined policy limits.
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The following table summarizes the impact of immediate and sustained rate shocks in the interest rate environment
on net interest income and the economic value of equity as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The model simulates plus
and minus 200 basis point changes from the base case rate simulation. Thistable, which illustrates the prospective
effects of hypothetical interest rate changes, is based upon numerous assumptions including relative and estimated
levels of key interest rates over atwelve-month time period. This modeling technique, although useful, does not take
into account all strategies that management might undertake in response to a sudden and sustained rate shock as
depicted. Also, as market conditions vary from those assumed in the sensitivity analysis, actual results will also differ
due to prepayment and refinancing levelslikely deviating from those assumed, the varying impact of interest rate
change caps or floors on adjustabl e rate assets, the potential effect of changing debt service levels on customers with
adjustable rate loans, depositor early withdrawals and product preference changes, and other internal and external

variables.
Rate Sensitivity Analysis
2007
I ncrease (Decr ease) Changein Changein
in Interest Rates Net I nterest % Market Value %
(Basis Points) Income Change of Equity Change
(Dollarsin thousands)
200 $ (3,124) 42 $ (30,894) (10.7)
100 (327) (0.9) (5,315) (1.8)
(200) (449 (0.6) (11,128) (3.9
(200) (1,657) (2.2 (32,008) (11.2)
2006
I ncrease (Decr ease) Changein Changein
in Interest Rates Net I nterest % Market Value %
(Basis Points) Income Change of Equity Change
200 $ (2,006) 28 $ (16,229) (5.4)
100 (958) 1.3 (7,453) (2.5)
(200) (1,024) (1.49) (4,3012) (1.49)
(200) (1,614) (2.3 (18,278) (6.2)
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2007 2006
(Amountsin thousands,
except share and per
share data)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 50051 $ 47,909
Interest-bearing balances with banks 2,695 9,850
Total cash and cash equivalents 52,746 57,759
Securities available for sale (amortized cost of $674,937, 2007; $508,423, 2006) 664,120 508,370
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $12,298, 2007; $20,350, 2006) 12,075 20,019
Loans held for sale 811 781
Loans held for investment, net of unearned income 1,225,502 1,284,863
Less allowance for |oan |osses 12,833 14,549
Net loans held for investment 1,212,669 1,270,314
Premises and equipment, net 48,383 36,889
Other real estate owned 545 258
Interest receivable 12,465 12,141
Goodwill 66,310 60,135
Other intangibl e assets 3,746 2,061
Other assets 75,968 64,971
Total Assets $2,149,838  $2,033,698
LIABILITIES

Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing $ 224087 $ 244,771
Interest-bearing 1,169,356 1,150,000
Total Deposits 1,393,443 1,394,771
Interest, taxes and other liabilities 21,454 19,641
Federal funds purchased 18,500 7,700
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 207,427 201,185
FHLB borrowings and other indebtedness 291,916 197,671
Total Liabilities 1,932,740 1,820,968

Stockholders Equity
Preferred stock, par value undesignated; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and

outstanding in 2007 and 2006 — —
Common stock, $1 par value; shares authorized: 25,000,000; shares issued: 11,499,018 in 2007

and 2006; shares outstanding: 11,069,646 in 2007 and 11,245,742 in 2006 11,499 11,499
Additional paid-in capital 108,825 108,806
Retained earnings 117,670 100,117
Treasury stock, at cost (13,613) (7,924)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (7,283) 232

Total Stockholders' Equity 217,098 212,730
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $2,149,838 $2,033,698

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Interest Income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on securities-taxable
Interest on securities-nontaxable

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Y ears Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

Interest on federal funds sold and deposits in banks

Total interest income
Interest Expense:
Interest on deposits
Interest on short-term borrowings
Interest on long-term debt
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

(Amountsin thousands,
except share and per share data)

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest Income:
Wesalth management income

Service charges on deposit accounts

Other service charges, commissions and fees

Insurance commissions
Net gains on sale of securities
Other operating income
Total noninterest income
Noninterest Expense:
Salaries and employee benefits

Occupancy expense of bank premises

Furniture and equipment expense
Amortization of intangible assets

Prepayment penalties on FHLB advances

Other operating expense
Total noninterest expense

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations before income tax

Income tax benefit

Loss from discontinued operations

Net income
Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common share

Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations

Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations

Dividends declared per common share

$ 93501 $ 97460 $ 89,903
24,725 13,951 11,077
8,190 7,371 7,451

1,175 1,244 1,077
127,591 120,026 109,508
38,757 33,868 24,030
9,760 6,977 9,721
10,759 7,536 2,129
59,276 48,381 35,880
68,315 71,645 73,628

717 2,706 3,706

67,598 68,939 69,922
3,880 2,811 2,956
11,387 10,242 10,095
3,600 2,992 2,785

1,142 — —

411 75 753

4,411 5,203 5,716
24,831 21,323 22,305
25,848 26,867 29,481
4,180 4,068 3,903

3,370 3,466 3,319

467 410 435

— — 3,794

16,598 15,026 14,659
50,463 49,837 55,591
41,966 40,425 36,636
12,334 11,477 10,191
29,632 28,948 26,445

— — (233)

— — (91)

— — (142)

$ 20632 28948$ 26,303
$ 264 $ 258 $ 2.33
$ 262 $ 257 $ 2.32
$ 264 $ 258 $ 2.35
$ 262 $ 257 $ 2.33
$ 1.08 $ 104 $ 1.02

Weighted average basic shares outstanding

11,204,676 11,204,875 11,269,258

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding

11,292,871 11,279,480 11,341,804

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities — continuing operations:
Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Provision for loan losses

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment

Intangible amortization

Net investment amortization and accretion

Gains on the sale of assets

Mortgage loans originated for sale

Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans

Equity-based compensation expense

Deferred income tax expense

Increase in interest receivable

Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation

(Increase) decrease in other assets

Increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities — continuing operations
Cash flows from investing activities — continuing operations:

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of held to maturity securities

Purchase of securities available for sale

Purchase of bank-owned life insurance

Net decrease (increase) in loans made to customers

Cash used in divestitures and acquisitions, net

Purchase of premises and equipment

Proceeds from sale of equipment
Net cash used in investing activities — continuing operations
Cash flows from financing activities — continuing operations:

Net (decrease) increase in demand and savings deposits

Net increase (decrease) in time deposits

Net increase (decrease) in FHLB and other borrowings

Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased

Net increase in securities sold under agreement to repurchase

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation

Acquisition of treasury stock

Dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities — continuing operations
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents — continuing operations

Cash flows from discontinued operations:

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities
Net cash used in discontinued operations
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year — continuing operations
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year — discontinued operations
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year — continuing operations
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year — discontinued operations
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental information — Noncash items Transfers of loans to other real estate

Y ears Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(Amountsin thousands)

$ 29,632 $ 28,948 $ 26,445

717 2,706 3,706
3,276 3,366 3,339
467 410 436
534 699 1,049
(357)  (1,329)  (4,845)
(42,598) (33,565) (37,593)
42,568 34,058 37,513
271 427 =
216 465 1,864
(324)  (1,928)  (1,707)
(327) (201) —
(3,407) 215  (6,549)
1,781 769 1,516
32,449 35040 25174
12,010 14,185 33,159
28,635 23515 44,115
7,907 4,221 10,097
(211,321) (139,624) (111,223)
—  (25,000) =
56,623 40,610 (104,307)
(5,364) (22,046) (32,630)
(15,160)  (5,709)  (3,215)
526 402 1,018

(126,144) (109,446) (162,986)

2,158
(3,649)
93,272
10,800

6,242
781
327

(9,170)
(12,079)

(17,215)
35,551
68,440

(74,800)
77,369

1,305

201
(4,566)
(11,659)

(6,362)
95,751
(3,088)
50,000
16,721
522
(1,303)
(11,494)

88,682

74,626

140,747

$ (5013)%

220 $

2,935

$ — 3

— 3

(142)

$ — 3

— 3

(142)

$ 57,759 $

57,539 $

54,746

$ 57,759 $

57,539 $

54,746

$ 52,746 $

57,759 $

57,539

$ 52,746 $

57,759 $

57,539

$ 1342 %

1,281 $

1,263

(See Note 1 for detail of income taxes and interest paid and Note 2 for supplemental information regarding detail of

cash paid in acquisitions.)

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY

BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGESIN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance December 31, 2004
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale of $5,647, net of
$2,259 tax benefit
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income
of $428, net of $171 tax benefit

Comprehensive income (l0ss)
Common dividends declared ($1.02 per share)
Purchase of 41,534 treasury shares at $31.38 per share
Acquisition of Stone Capital Management — 2,541 shares issued
Tax benefit from exercise of non-qualified stock options
Equity-based compensation
Exercise of 38,146 options under stock option plans
Balance December 31, 2005
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale of $1,242, net of
$497 tax expense
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income
of $10, net of $4 tax benefit
Unrealized gain on derivative securities of $441, net of $177
tax expense

Comprehensive income
Common dividends declared ($1.04 per share)
Purchase of 145,161 treasury shares at $31.46 per share
Acquisition of Stone Capital Management — 2,706 shares issued
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants — 39,874 shares
issued
ESOP allocation 27,733 shares
Equity-based compensation
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Exercise of 63,655 options under stock option plans

Balance December 31, 2006
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale of $11,028, net
of $4,411 tax benefit
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized in
net income of $263, net of $105 tax expense
Unrealized loss on derivative securities of $1,760, net of $704
tax benefit

Comprehensive income
Common dividends declared ($1.08 per share)
Purchase of 287,500 treasury shares at $31.89 per share
Acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group — 49,088 shares issued
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants — 13,401 shares
issued
Equity-based compensation
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Exercise of 45,665 options under stock option plans

Balance December 31, 2007

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common  Paid-in Retained  Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Income Total

(Amountsin thousands, except shareand per shareinformation)
$11,472 $108,263 $ 68,019 $ (6,881) $ 2,360 $183,233

= — 26,303 = — 26,303
= = = = (3,388) (3,388)
— — — — 257 257
= — 26,303 = (3131) 23,172
— —  (11,494) — —  (11,494)
= = —  (1,303) —  (1,303)
2 85 — — — 87
= 102 = = = 102
2 17 — 8 — 27
20 106 = 551 = 677
11,496 108,573 82,828 (7,625) (771) 194,501
— — 28,948 — — 28,948
— — — — 745 745
= = = = (6) (6)
— — — — 264 264
= — 28,948 = 1,003 29,951
— —  (11,659) — —  (11,659)
= = —  (4,566) —  (4,566)
3 85 — — — 88
= 217 — 17248 — 1465
— 16 — 867 — 883
= 267 = 160 = 427
— 335 — — — 335
= (687) — 1,992 — 1,305
11,499 108,806 100,117  (7,924) 232 212,730
— — 29632 — — 29632
— — — — (6,617)  (6,617)
— — — — 158 158
= = = = (1,056)  (1,056)
— — 29,632 — (7,515) 22,117
= —  (12,079) = —  (12,079)
— — —  (9,170) —  (9,170)
= 133 — 1524 — 1657
— 30 — 425 — 455
= 169 = 102 = 271
— 336 — — — 336
= (649) — 1,430 = 781
$11,499 $108,825 $117,670 $(13,613)$  (7,283) $217,098

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements






FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries ("First Community" or
the "Company") conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and to predominant practices
within the banking industry. In preparing financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and revenues
and expenses for the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Assets held in an agency or fiduciary
capacity are not assets of the Company and are not included in the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of First Community include the accounts of all wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. First Community
operates in the community banking segment through its subsidiary bank, First Community Bank, N. A. (the "Bank").

Thefinancial statements and footnotes within this report have been reformatted to conform to the presentation
required in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") 144 for "discontinued operations' pursuant to the
Company’s sale of its former mortgage banking subsidiary in August 2004. Income statement items for the discontinued
subsidiary, including contractual obligations, are presented in discontinued operations without elimination. Interest
expense accrued and paid by the discontinued operation is based upon the contractual terms of the obligations entered
into by the former mortgage subsidiary including lines of credit extended by its parent company.

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statementsin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as
of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks, time deposits with other banks, federal funds sold,
and interest-bearing balances on deposit with the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") that are available for immediate
withdrawal. Interest and income taxes paid were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)
Interest $58,797 $46,241 $35,880
Income Taxes 12,097 9,717 8,962

Pursuant to agreements with the Federal Reserve Bank, the Company maintains a cash balance of approximately
$1.0 millionin lieu of charges for check clearing and other services.

Trading Securities

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, no securities were held for trading purposes and no trading account was
maintained.




FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Available-for-Sale Securities

Securitiesto be held for indefinite periods of time, including securities that management intends to use as part of
its asset/liability management strategy and that may be sold in response to changesin interest rates, changesin
prepayment risk, or other similar factors, are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at estimated fair value.
Unrealized appreciation or depreciation in fair value above or below amortized cost isincluded in stockholders equity,
net of income taxes, and is entitled " Other Comprehensive Income." Premiums and discounts are amortized to expense
or accreted to income over the life of the security. Gain or loss on saleis based on the specific identification method.
Other than temporary impairment, if any, on available-for-sale securities are included in net securities |osses and gains.
All securities, including held-to-maturity securities, are evaluated for indications of other-than-temporary impairment.
For available-for-sale debt securities with unrealized | osses, management has the intent and ability to hold these
securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature.

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Investments in debt securities that management has the ability and intent to hold to maturity are carried at
amortized cost. Premiums and discounts are amortized to expense and accreted to income over the lives of the securities.
Gain or loss on the call or maturity of investment securities, if any, isrecorded based on the specific identification
method.

LoansHeld for Sale

Loans held for sale primarily consist of one-to-four family residential loans originated for salein the secondary
market and are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value determined on an aggregate basis. The long-term,
fixed-rate loans are sold to investors on a best efforts basis such that the Company does not absorb the interest rate
risk involved in theloan. Thefair value of loans held for sale is determined by reference to quoted prices for loans with
similar coupon rates and terms.

The Company entersinto rate-lock commitmentsit makes to customers with the intention to sell theloanin the
secondary market. The derivatives arising from the rate-lock commitments are recorded at fair valuein other assets and
liabilities and changesin that fair value are included in other income. The fair value of the rate-lock commitment
derivatives are determined by reference to quoted prices for loans with similar coupon rates and terms. The Company
also entersinto forward sales commitments with institutional investors for the sale of those |oans, which have been
determined not to qualify as derivatives. Gains and |osses on the sale of those loans are included in other income.

LoansHeld for | nvestment

Loans held for investment are carried at the principal amount outstanding less any write-downs which may be
necessary to reduce individual loansto net realizable value. Individually significant commercial loans are evaluated for
impairment when evidence of impairment exists. Impairment allowances are recorded through specific additionsto the
allowance for loan losses. L oans are considered past due when principal or interest becomes delinquent by 30 days or
more. Consumer loans are charged off when the loan becomes 120 days past due (180 daysif secured by residential real
estate). Other loans are charged off against the allowance for |oan losses after collection attempts have been exhausted,
which generally iswithin 120 days. Recoveries of |oans charged off are credited to the allowance for loan lossesin the
period received.

Allowancefor Loan Losses

The allowance for loan lossesis maintained at level s management deems adequate to absorb probable losses
inherent in the portfolio, and is based on management’s evaluation of the risksin the loan portfolio and changesin the
nature and volume of loan activity. The Company consistently appliesareview processto periodically evaluate
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loans and commitments for changesin credit risk. This process serves as the primary means by which the Company
evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for |oan | osses.

The Company determines the allowance for |oan losses by making specific allocations to impaired |oans that exhibit
inherent weaknesses and various credit risk factors. General allocationsto commercial, residential real estate, and
consumer loan pools are devel oped giving weight to risk ratings, historical loss trends and management’s judgment
concerning those trends and other relevant factors. These factors may include, among others, actual versus estimated
losses, regional and national economic conditions, business segment and portfolio concentrations, industry
competition and consolidation, and the impact of government regulations. The foregoing analysisis performed by
management to evaluate the portfolio and cal culate an estimated valuation allowance through a quantitative and
qualitative analysis that applies risk factorsto those identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at both the portfolio level and theindividual loan level for commercial
loans and credit relationships while the level of consumer and residential mortgage loan allowance is determined
primarily on atotal portfolio level based on areview of historical |oss percentages and other qualitative factors
including concentrations, industry specific factors and economic conditions. The commercial portfolio requires more
specific analysis of individually significant loans and the borrower’s underlying cash flow, business conditions,
capacity for debt repayment and the valuation of secondary sources of payment, such as collateral. This analysis may
result in specifically identified weaknesses and corresponding specific impairment allowances. While allocations are
made to specific loans and classifications within the various categories of loans, the allowance for loan lossesis
availablefor all loan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in the Company’s ongoing evaluation of the required level of
allowance can significantly impact the Company’s results of operations and financial condition and may result in either
greater provisions against earnings to increase the allowance or reduced provisions based upon management’s current
view of portfolio and economic conditions and the application of revised estimates and assumptions. Differences
between actual loan loss experience and estimates are reflected through adjustments either increasing or decreasing the
loan loss provision based upon current measurement criteria.

Long-term I nvestments

Certain long-term equity investments representing less than 20% ownership are accounted for under the cost
method, are carried at cost, and are included in other assets. These investments in operating companies represent
required long-term investmentsin insurance, investment and service company affiliates or consortiums which serve as
vehiclesfor the delivery of various support services. In accordance with the cost method, dividends received are
recorded as current period revenues and there is no recognition of the Company’s proportionate share of net operating
income or loss. The Company has determined that fair value measurement is not practical, and further, nothing has come
to the attention of the Company that would indicate impairment of any of these investments.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost |ess accumul ated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are
computed on the straight-line method over estimated useful lives. Useful lives range from 5 to 10 yearsfor furniture,
fixtures, and equipment; threeto five years for software, hardware, and data handling equipment; and 10 to 40 years for
buildings and building improvements. Land improvements are amortized over a period of 20 years, and leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life or the term of the lease plusthe first optional renewal
period, when renewal is reasonably assured. Maintenance and repairs are charged to current operations while
improvements that extend the economic useful life of the underlying asset are capitalized. Disposition gains and losses
arereflected in current operations.
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The Company |eases various properties within its branch network. L eases generally have initial terms of up to
20 years and most contain options to renew with reasonable increasesin rent. All leases are accounted for as operating
leases.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned and acquired through foreclosure is stated at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated
coststo sell. Loan losses arising from the acquisition of such properties are charged against the allowance for loan
losses. Expensesincurred in connection with operating the properties, subsequent write-downs and gains or losses
upon sale are included in other noninterest expense.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The excess of the cost of an acquired company over the fair value of the net assets and identified intangibles
acquired isrecorded as goodwill. The net carrying amount of goodwill was $66.31 million and $60.14 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. A portion of the purchase pricein certain transactions has been allocated to
values associated with the future earnings potential of acquired deposits and is being amortized over the estimated lives
of the deposits, ranging from seven to ten years while the weighted average remaining life of these core depositsis
approximately 4.0 years. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the balance of core deposit intangibles was $4.59 million and
$4.42 million, respectively, while the corresponding accumul ated amortization was $3.41 million and $2.89 million,
respectively. The net unamortized balance of identified intangibles associated with acquired deposits was $1.18 million
and $1.53 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The acquisition of Greenpoint added $5.69 million of
goodwill and $2.15 million in other identified intangible assets. The acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants, Inc.
has added atotal of $1.44 million of goodwill and $534 thousand in other intangible assets. Annual amortization expense
of all intangibles for 2008 and the following four yearsis approximately $615 thousand, $577 thousand, $484 thousand,
$479 thousand, and $290 thousand, respectively.

The Company reviews and tests goodwill for potential impairment on an annual basis. Goodwill istested for
impairment by comparing the fair value of the unit with its book value, including goodwill. If the fair value of the
Company is greater than its book value, no goodwill impairment exists. However, if the book value of the Company is
greater than its determined fair value, goodwill impairment may exist and further testing is required to determine the
amount, if any, of the actual impairment loss.

47




FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The progression of the Company’s goodwill and intangible assets for continuing operations for the three years
ended December 31, 2007, isdetailed in the following table:

Other

Goodwill Intangibles

(Amountsin thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2004 $ 58828 $ 2,482
Dispositions — (209)
Tax Benefits, Exercise of Stock Options and Other Adjustments 354 —
Amortization — (436)
Balance at December 31, 2005 59,182 1,937
Acquisitions and dispositions, net 953 472
Tax Benefits, Exercise of Stock Options and Other Adjustments — —
Amortization — (348)
Balance at December 31, 2006 60,135 2,061
Acquisitions 6,175 2,152
Tax Benefits, Exercise of Stock Options and Other Adjustments — —
Amortization — (467)
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 66310 $ 3,746

Securities Sold Under Agreementsto Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are generally accounted for as collateralized financing transactions.
Securities, generally U.S. government and Federal agency securities, pledged as collateral under these arrangements
cannot be sold or repledged by the secured party. The fair value of the collateral provided to athird party is continually
monitored, and additional collateral is provided as appropriate.

Loan I nterest | ncome Recognition

Accrual of interest on loansis based generally on the daily amount of principal outstanding. Loans are considered
past due when either principal or interest payments are delinquent by 30 or more days. It isthe Company’s policy to
discontinue the accrual of interest on loans based on the payment status and eval uation of the related collateral and the
financial strength of the borrower. The accrual of interest income is normally discontinued when aloan becomes
90 days past due asto principal or interest. Management may elect to continue the accrual of interest when theloanis
well secured and in process of collection. When interest accruals are discontinued, interest accrued and not collected in
the current year isreversed from income and interest accrued and not collected from prior yearsis charged to the
allowance for loan losses. Interest income realized on impaired loans is recognized upon receipt if theimpaired loanison
anon-accrual basis. Accrual of interest on non-accrual loans may be resumed if the loan is brought current and follows
aperiod of substantial performance, including six months of regular principal and interest payments. Accrual of interest
onimpaired loansis generally continued unless the loan becomes delinquent 90 days or more. Cash receipts are
credited first to interest unless the loan has been converted to non-accrual, in which case the receipts are applied to
principal.

Loan Feelncome

L oan origination and underwriting fees are reduced by direct and indirect costs associated with loan processing,
including salaries, review of legal documents and obtainment of appraisals. Net origination fees and costs are deferred
and amortized over thelife of the related loan. Loan commitment fees are deferred and
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amortized over the related commitment period. Net deferred |oan costs were $574 thousand and $57 thousand at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred. Amounts recognized for the three years ended December 31,
2007, are detailed in Note 15 — Other Operating Expenses.

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company has stock option plans for certain executives and directors. The Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") issued SFAS 123R, " Share-Based Payment," which is an amendment of SFAS 123. For public
companies, the cost of employee services received in exchange for equity instruments including options and restricted
stock awards generally will be measured at fair value at the grant date. The Company adopted the standard’ sfair-value
method of accounting for share-based payments to employees on January 1, 2006, using the "modified prospective"
method. Under the modified prospective method the Company recognized compensation cost beginning January 1,
2006, for all share-based payments granted after December 31, 2005, and for all unvested awards granted prior to
January 1, 2006.

The effect of option shares on earnings per share relates to the dilutive effect of the underlying options
outstanding. To the extent the granted exercise share price is|ess than the current market price, or "in the money", there
isan economic incentive for the options to be exercised and an increase in the dil utive effect on earnings per share.

I ncome Taxes

Income tax expenseis comprised of federal and state current and deferred income taxes on pre-tax earnings of the
Company. Income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax income may vary significantly from statutory rates due to items of
income and expense which are excluded, by law, from the calculation of taxable income. These items are commonly
referred to as permanent differences. The most significant permanent differences for the Company include income on
state and municipal securities which are exempt from federal income tax, income on bank-owned life insurance, certain
dividend payments which are deductible by the Company, and tax credits generated by investmentsin low income
housing and rehabilitation of historic structures.

The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, which had no significant impact. The Company includesinterest
and penalties related to income tax liabilitiesin income tax expense. The Company and its subsidiaries’ tax filings for the
years ended December 31, 2003 through 2006 are currently open to audit under statutes of limitation by the Internal
Revenue Service and various state tax departments.

During 2005 and 2006, the Company invested in limited partnerships formed to perform the rehabilitation of
properties certified as historic structures by the National Park Service. The Company’sinvestment in these partnerships
generates federal and state historic tax credits. The associated credits are realized and the balance of the investment is
written off at the time the buildings are placed in service. As of December 31, 2007, all buildings associated with the
partnership investments were in service.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax ratesin effect for the year in which the temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by avaluation allowanceif it is more
likely than not that the tax benefitswill not be realized.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per shareis determined by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per shareis determined by dividing net income by the weighted average shares
outstanding increased by the dilutive effect of stock options. Basic and diluted net income per common share
calculationsfollow:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

(Amountsin thousands, except share
and per share data)

Basic:

Income from continuing operations $ 29,632 $ 28,948 $ 26,445
L oss from discontinued operations — — (142)
Net income $ 29,632 $ 28,948 $ 26,303
Weighted average shares outstanding 11,204,676 11,204,875 11,269,258
Dilutive sharesfor stock options 65,320 74,605 72,546
Contingently issuable shares 22,875 — —
Weighted average dil utive shares outstanding 11,292,871 11,279,480 11,341,804
Basic:

Earnings per share continuing operations $ 264 % 258 % 2.35
L oss per share discontined operations — — (0.02)
Earnings per share 2.64 2.58 2.33
Diluted:

Diluted earnings per share continuing operations $ 262 % 257 % 2.33
Diluted loss per share discontined operations — — (0.02)
Diluted earnings per share 2.62 2.57 2.32

Variable I nterest Entities

The Company maintains ownership positionsin various entities which it deems variable interest entities ("VIE'S")
asdefined in FIN 46R. These VIE sinclude certain tax credit limited partnerships and other limited liability companies
which provide aviation services, insurance brokerage, investment brokerage, title insurance and other financial and
related services. Based on the Company’s analysis, it is a non-primary beneficiary; accordingly, these entities do not
meet the criteriafor consolidation under FIN 46R. The carrying value of VIE'swas $1.89 million and $3.20 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company’s maximum possible |oss exposure was $1.93 million and
$3.24 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Management does not believe losses resulting from its
involvement with the entities discussed above will be material.

Derivative | nstruments

The Company entersinto derivative transactions principally to protect against the risk of adverse price or interest
rate movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on future cash flows. In addition, certain contracts and
commitments are defined as derivatives under generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the requirements of SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as
amended, all derivative instruments are carried at fair value on the balance sheet. SFAS 133 provides special hedge
accounting provisions, which permit the changein the fair value of the hedged item related to the risk being hedged to
be recognized in earningsin the same period and in the same income statement line as the change in the fair value of the
derivative.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge rel ationship to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value of an
asset, liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such asinterest rate risk, are considered fair value
hedges under SFAS 133. Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability in
expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges.
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The Company formally documents all rel ationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, aswell asitsrisk
management objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction.

Reclassifications

The Company has made certain reclassifications of amounts necessary to conform with the current year
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the Company’sfinancial position, stockholders' equity, or results
of operations.

Other Recent Accounting Developments

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), "Business Combinations." SFAS 141(R) will significantly
change how entities apply the acquisition method to business combinations. The most significant changes affecting
how the Company will account for business combinations under this Statement include: the acquisition date will be the
date the acquirer obtains control; all (and only) identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling
interestsin the acquiree will be stated at fair value on the acquisition date; assets or liabilities arising from
noncontractual contingencies will be measured at their acquisition date fair value only if it ismore likely than not that
they meet the definition of an asset or liability on the acquisition date; adjustments subsequently made to the
provisional amounts recorded on the acquisition date will be made retroactively during a measurement period not to
exceed one year; acquisition-related restructuring costs that do not meet the criteriain SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities," will be expensed asincurred; transaction costs will be expensed as
incurred; reversals of deferred income tax valuation allowances and income tax contingencies will be recognized in
earnings subseguent to the measurement period; and the allowance for 1oan losses of an acquiree will not be permitted
to be recognized by the acquirer. Additionally, SFAS 141(R) will require new and modified disclosures surrounding
subsequent changes to acquisition-related contingencies, contingent consideration, noncontrolling interests,
acquisition-related transaction costs, fair values and cash flows not expected to be collected for acquired loans, and an
enhanced goodwill rollforward.

The Company will be required to prospectively apply SFAS 141(R) to all business combinations completed on or
after January 1, 2009. Early adoption is not permitted. For business combinations in which the acquisition date was
before the effective date, the provisions of SFAS 141(R) will apply to the subsequent accounting for deferred income tax
valuation allowances and income tax contingencies and will require any changes in those amountsto be recorded in
earnings. Management is currently evaluating the effectsthat SFAS 141(R) will have on the financial condition, results
of operations, liquidity, and the disclosures that will be presented in the consolidated financial statements.

In November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109
("SAB 109"), which addresses the valuation of written loan commitments accounted for at fair value through earnings.
The guidancein SAB 109 expresses the staff’s view that the measurement of fair value for awritten loan commitment
accounted for at fair value through earnings should incorporate the expected net future cash flows related to the
associated servicing of theloan. Previously under SAB 105, "Application of Accounting Principlesto Loan
Commitments," this component of value was not incorporated into the fair value of the loan commitment. The Company
adopted the provisions of SAB 109 for written loan commitments entered into or modified after December 31, 2007,
related to residential and commercial real estate loans held for sale that are accounted for as derivatives under
SFAS 133. The Company does not account for any other written loan commitments at fair value through earnings. The
impact of SAB 109 will be to accel erate the recognition of the estimated fair value of the servicing inherent in the loan to
the commitment date. The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)." SFAS 158 requires an
employer to: (a) recognizein its statement of financial position an asset for aplan’s overfunded status or a
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liability for aplan’s underfunded status; (b) measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its funded status
as of the end of the employer’sfiscal year (with limited exceptions); and (c) recognize changesin the funded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur. Those changes will be reported in
comprehensive income. The requirement to recognize the funded status of a benefit plan and the disclosure
reguirements are effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’sfiscal year-end statement of financial positionis
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to
have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, "Fair Value Measurements,” which definesfair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for financial statementsissued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted, except for theimpact of FASB Staff Position (FSP) 157-2. FSP 157-2
deferred adoption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and liabilities until years ended after November 15, 2008. The
Company must adopt these new requirements no later than the first quarter of 2008. The Company has not yet
determined the effect of adopting SFAS 157 onits consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the Emerging I ssues Task Force reached a consensus regarding EITF 06-4 " Accounting for
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.”
The scope of EITF 06-4 islimited to the recognition of aliability and related compensation costs for endorsement split-
dollar life insurance policies that provide a benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement periods. Therefore, this
EITF would not apply to asplit-dollar life insurance arrangement that provides a specified benefit to an employeethat is
limited to the employee’ s active service period with an employer. EITF is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2007, with earlier application permitted. The Company adopted EITF 06-4 on January 1, 2008, and made a
cumulative effect adjustment to equity of $523 thousand upon adoption.

Note2. Merger, Acquisitionsand Branching Activity

In September 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group, Inc. ("GreenPoint"), an
insurance agency located in High Point, North Carolina,. In connection with theinitial payment of approximately
$1.66 million, the Company issued 49,088 shares of its common stock. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement,
former shareholders of GreenPoint are entitled to additional consideration aggregating up to $1.45 million in the form of
cash or the Company’s common stock, valued at the time of issuance, if certain future operating performance targets are
met. If those operating targets are met, portions of the value of the consideration ultimately paid will be added to the
cost of the acquisition, which will increase the amount of goodwill related to the acquisition. The Company also
assumed $5.57 million debt in connection with the acquisition, of which approximately $5.00 million was paid off at
closing.

In December 2006, the Company completed the sale of its Rowlesburg, West Virginia, branch location. At the time
of the sale, the branch had deposits and repurchase agreements totaling approximately $10.6 million and loans of
approximately $2.2 million. The transaction resulted in a pre-tax gain of approximately $333 thousand.

In November 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants, Inc. ("IPC"), a
registered investment advisory firm. In connection with theinitial payment of approximately $1.47 million, the Company
issued 39,874 shares of common stock. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, former shareholders of IPC are
entitled to additional consideration of up to $1.43 million in the form of the Company’s common stock if certain future
operating performance targets are met. If those operating targets are met, portions of the value of the consideration
ultimately paid will be added to the cost of the acquisition, which will increase the amount of goodwill arising in the
acquisition.
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In June 2006, the Company completed the sale of its Drakes Branch, Virginia, branch location. At the time of the
sale, the branch had deposits and repurchase agreements totaling approximately $16.4 million and loans of
approximately $1.9 million. The transaction resulted in apre-tax gain of approximately $702 thousand.

In December 2005, the Company compl eted the sale of its Clifton Forge, Virginia, branch location. At the time of the
sale, the branch had deposits and repurchase agreements of approximately $45.3 million and loans of approximately
$7.1 million. The transaction resulted in an approximate $4.4 million pre-tax gain on sale.

The following table summarizes the net cash provided by or used in acquisitions and divestitures during the three
years ended December 31, 2007.

2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)
Fair value of assets acquired $ 382 $ 22 $ —
Fair value of liabilities assumed (1,167) 17 —
Purchase price in excess of net assets acquired 7,838 1,488 —
Total purchase price 7,053 1,703 —
L ess non-cash purchase price 1,658 1,465 —
L ess cash acquired 32 18 —
Net cash paid for acquisition $5363 $ 220 $ —
Book value of assets sold $ —  $(4678) $(7,803)
Book value of liabilities sold — 27,164 45,363
Sales pricein excess of net liabilities assumed — (1,035) (4,570)
Total salesprice — 21,451 32,990
Add cash on hand sold — 395 166
L ess amount due remaining on books — 20 526
Net cash paid for divestiture $ — $21,826 $32,630

Note3. Investment Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, classified as
available-for-sale are asfollows:

December 31, 2007

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
(Amountsin thousands)
U.S. Government agency securities $ 136791 $ 2446 $ —  $139,237
States and political subdivisions 186,834 2,667 (965) 188,536
Corporate Notes 164,731 — (14,206) 150,625
M ortgage-backed securities 177,984 816 (2,073) 176,727
Equities 8,597 814 (416) 8,995
Tota $ 674937 $ 6,743 $ (17,560) $664,120
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U.S. Government agency securities
States and political subdivisions
Corporate Notes
M ortgage-backed securities
Equities

Total

December 31, 2006

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
(Amountsin thousands)

$ 117,777 $ — % (1,716) $116,061
152,189 2,379 (521) 154,047
85,080 350 (397) 85,033
146,444 206 (1,896) 144,754
6,933 1,615 (73) 8,475
$ 508423 $ 4550 $ (4,603) $508,370

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale securities by contractual maturity, at December 31,
2007, are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have theright to

call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

uU.S. States Tax
Government and Equivalent
Agencies & Political Corporate Purchase
Available For Sale Corporations  Subdivisions Notes Total Yield
(Dollarsin thousands)
Amortized Cost Maturity:
Within one year $ —  $ 128 $ — $ 128 7.28%
After one year through five years 25,000 5,353 — 30,353 5.19%
After five yearsthrough ten years 41,370 82,166 70,909 194,445 5.73%
After tenyears 70,421 98,030 93,822 262,273 6.15%
Amortized cost $ 136,791 $ 186,834 $ 164,731 488,356
M ortgage-backed securities 177,984 5.32%
Equity securities 8,597 2.67%
Total Amortized cost $674,937
Tax equivalent purchaseyield 5.46% 6.36% 5.83% 5.93%
Average contractual maturity (in years) 9.35 11.21 17.34 12.75
Fair Value Maturity:
Within one year $ —  $ 1288 $ — $ 1,288
After one year through five years 25,009 5,412 — 30,421
After five years through ten years 42,409 82,985 64,964 190,358
After tenyears 71,819 98,851 85,661 256,331
Fair Value $ 139237 $ 188536 $ 150,625 478,398
M ortgage-backed securities 176,727
Equity securities 8,995
Total Fair Value $664,120
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Asacondition to membership in the FHLB system, the Bank is required to subscribe to aminimum level of stock in
the FHLB. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank owned approximately $16.89 million and $12.68 millionin FHLB
stock, respectively, which is classified as other assets. Because of the redemption provisions of the FHLB stock, the
Company estimates that fair value approximates cost resulting in no impairment at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, classified as held-
to-maturity are asfollows:

December 31, 2007

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
(Amountsin thousands)
States and political subdivisions $ 11699 $ 223 % —  $11,922
Other securities 375 — — 375
M ortgage-backed securities 1 — — 1
Tota $ 12075 $ 223 % —  $12,298

December 31, 2006

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
(Amountsin thousands)
States and political subdivisions $ 19638 $ 34 $ (2) $19,970
Other securities 375 — Q) 374
M ortgage-backed securities 6 — — 6
Total $ 20019 $ 334 3 (3) $20,350

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities by contractual maturity, at December 31, 2007, are shown
below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
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States Tax
and Equivalent
Political Other Purchase
Held-to-Maturity Subdivisions  Securities Total Yield

(Dollarsin thousands)
Amortized Cost Maturity:

Within one year $ — % 315 $ 375 6.08%
After one year through five years 5,847 — 5,847 7.87%
After five yearsthrough ten years 5,852 — 5,852 8.12%
After ten years — — — 0.00%
Amortized cost $ 11699 $ 375 12,074
M ortgage-backed securities 1 6.90%
Total Amortized cost $12,075
Tax equivalent purchaseyield 8.00% 6.08% 7.94%
Average contractual maturity (in years) 5.62 0.75 5.47
Fair Value Maturity:
Within one year $ — % 315 $ 375
After one year through five years 5,928 — 5,928
After five yearsthrough ten years 5,994 — 5,994
After tenyears — — —
Fair Value $ 11922  $ 375 12,297
M ortgage-backed securities 1
Total Fair Value $12,298

The carrying value of securities pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required by law were
$426.41 million and $341.76 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2007, there was one security of asingleissuer, other than U.S. federal agency debentures and
other U.S. government-sponsored agency securities, which exceeded 10% of stockholders’ equity. The Company held a
AAA-rated, non-agency mortgage-backed security which had a book value and a market value at December 31, 2007, of
$25.26 million and $23.58 million, respectively.

In 2007, net gains on the sale of securities were $411 thousand. Gross gains were $540 thousand while gross losses
were $128 thousand. In 2006, net gains on the sale of securities were $75 thousand. Gross gains were $240 thousand
while gross losses were $165 thousand.

The following tables reflect those investments, both available-for-sale and hel d-to-maturity, in a continuous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 months and for 12 months or longer for the years ended December 31, 2007
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and 2006. There were no securities for either period in a continuous unrealized loss position for 12 or more months for
which the Company does not have the ability to hold until the security matures or recoversin value.

Description of Securities

U. S. Government agency securities
States and political subdivisions
Corporate Notes
M ortgage-backed securities
Equity securities

Total

Description of Securities

U. S. Government agency securities
States and political subdivisions
Corporate Notes
M ortgage-backed securities
Equity securities

Total

December 31, 2007

Lessthan 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value L osses Value L osses Value L osses
(Amountsin thousands)
$ — $ — $ 199 $ — $ 199 $ =
40,461 (900) 12,287 (65) 52,748 (965)
129,006 (12,431) 21,994 (1,675) 151,000 (14,106)
7,991 (108) 63,393 (1,965) 71,384 (2,073)
2,269 (345) 1,759 (72) 4,028 (416)
$179,727 $ (13,784) $101,432 $ (3,776) $281,159 $ (17,560)
December 31, 2006
Lessthan 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value L osses Value L osses Value L osses
(Amountsin thousands)
$ 60,416 $ (517) $ 55645 $ (1,199) $116,061 $ (1,716)
10,732 (34 36,797 (489) 47,529 (523)
28,339 (213) 27,698 (185) 56,037 (398)
50,093 (223) 66,620 (1,673) 116,713 (1,896)
2,186 (70) 32 3) 2,218 (73)
$151,766 $ (1,057) $186,792 $ (3,549) $338558 $ (4,606)

At December 31, 2007, the combined depreciation in value of the 159 individual securitiesin an unrealized loss
position was approximately 2.69% of the combined reported value of the aggregate securities portfolio. At December 31,
2006, the combined depreciation in value of the 191 individual securitiesin an unrealized |oss position was less than
1.00% of the combined reported value of the aggregate securities portfolio. Management does not believe any
individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2007, represents an other-than-temporary impairment. The Company has
the intent and ability to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. Furthermore,
the Company believesthe change in valueis attributable to changes in market interest rates and not the credit quality of
the issuer. However, the Company acknowledges that any impaired securities may be sold in future periodsin response
to significant, unanticipated changes in asset/liability management decisions, unanticipated future market movements or

business plan changes.
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Note4. Loans

Loans held for investment, net of unearned income, consist of the following at December 31:

2007 2006
(Amountsin thousands)
Real estate-commercial $ 386,112 $ 421,067
Real estate-construction 163,310 158,566
Real estate-residential 498,345 506,370
Commercial, financial and agricultural 96,261 106,645
Loansto individuals for household and other consumer expenditures 75,447 88,666
All other loans 6,027 3,549
Total loans $ 1,225,502 $ 1,284,863

In the normal course of business, the Company’s subsidiary bank has made loans to directors and executive
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. All loans and commitments made to such officers and directors and to
companiesin which they are officers, or have significant ownership interest, have been made on substantially the same
terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparabl e transactions with other
persons. The aggregate dollar amount of such loans was $5.05 million and $5.01 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. During 2007, approximately $1.67 million in new loans and increases were made, repayments totaled $936
thousand, and other decreases due to the change in composition of the Bank’s board members and executive officers
approximated $693 thousand.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, customer overdrafts totaling $3.23 million and $1.15 million, respectively, were
reclassified asloans.
Note5. Allowancefor Loan L osses

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)
Balance at January 1 $14,549 $14,736 $16,339
Provision for loan losses 717 2,706 3,706
L oans charged of f (4,295) (4,543) (6,936)
Recoveries credited to allowance 1,862 1,650 2,019
Net charge-offs (2,433) (2,893) (4,917)
Reclassification of allowance for lending-related commitments(1) — — (392
Balance at December 31 $12,833 $14,549 $14,736

(1) AtJune 30, 2005, the Company reclassified $392 thousand of its allowance for |oan losses to a separate allowance
for lending-related liabilities. Net income and prior period balances were not affected by this reclassification. The
allowance for lending-related liabilitiesisincluded in other liabilities.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio regularly for concentrations of credit risk, including concentrationsin
specific industries and geographic location. At December 31, 2007, commercial real estate loans comprised 31.51% of the
total loan portfolio. Commercial loansinclude loansto small to mid-size industrial, commercial and service companies
that include but are not limited to coal mining companies, manufacturers, automobile dealers, and retail and wholesale
merchants. Commercial real estate projects represent several different sectors of the commercial real estate market,
including residential land development, single family and apartment building operators, commercial
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real estate lessors, and hotel/motel developers. Underwriting standards require that comprehensive reviews and
independent evaluations be performed on credits exceeding predefined market limits on commercial loans. Updates to
these loan reviews are done periodically or on an annual basis depending on the size of the |oan relationship.

The mgjority of theloansin the current portfolio were made and collateralized in Virginia, West Virginia, North
Carolina, Tennessee and the surrounding region. Although sections of the West Virginiaand Southwestern Virginia
economies are closely related to natural resources, they are supplemented by service industries. The Company’s
presence in five states, Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee, provides additional
diversification against geographic concentrations of credit risk.

The following table presents the Company’sinvestment in loans considered to be impaired and related information
on those impaired loans:

2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)

Recorded investment in loans considered to be impaired $4,325 $5,786 $4,645

L oans considered to be impaired that were on anon-accrual basis 2,923 3,813 3,383

Recorded investment in impaired loans with related allowance 3,129 4,070 3,555

Allowance for loan losses related to loans considered to be impaired 880 1,531 1,528

Average recorded investment in impaired loans 4,762 6,410 5,687

Total interest income recognized on impaired loans 237 390 338

Recorded investment in impaired loans with no related allowance 1,196 1,716 1,090
Note 6. Premisesand Equipment

Premises and equipment are comprised of the following as of December 31:
2007 2006
(Amountsin
thousands)

Land $14,841 $13,131

Bank premises 42,608 33,022

Equipment 28,087 24,956

85,536 71,109

L ess: accumulated depreciation and amortization 37,153 34,220

Tota $48,383 $36,889

Total depreciation and amortization expense for years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, was $3.28 million,
$3.37 million, and $3.34 million, respectively.

The Company began construction on eight branches over the last four years. The primary contractor for
construction of two of those branchesis afirm which has a preferred shareholder who is an immediate family member of
two directors of the Company. All branch construction contractsinvolving the related party were let pursuant to a
competitive bidding process. Total payments to the related party were $703 thousand and $247 thousand for 2007 and
2005, respectively. There were no payments to the related party in 2006.

The Company also entersinto land and building leases for the operation of banking and loan production offices,
operations centers and for the operation of automated teller machines. All such leases qualify as operating
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leases. Following is a schedule by year of future minimum |lease payments required under operating leases that have
initial or remaining non-cancelable lease termsin excess of one year as of December 31, 2007:

Year Ended December 31:

(Amountsin

thousands)

2008 $ 879
2009 627
2010 513
2011 440
2012 573
Later years 965
Total $ 3,997

Total lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, was $981 thousand, $1.02 million, and
$777 thousand, respectively. Certain portions of the above listed |eases have been sublet to third parties for properties
not currently being used by the Company. The impact of the future |ease payments to be received and the non-
cancelable subleases are asfollows:

(Amountsin
Year Ended December 31: thousands)
2008 $ 19
2009 19
2010 19
2011 20
2012 21
Later years 294
Total $ 392
Note7. Deposits
Thefollowing isasummary of interest-bearing deposits by type as of December 31:
2007 2006
(Amountsin thousands)
Interest-bearing demand deposits $ 153,570 $ 140,578
Money market accounts 167,296 146,052
Savings deposits 160,395 171,626
Certificates of deposit 608,470 614,126
Individual Retirement Accounts 79,625 77,618
Total $ 1,169,356 $ 1,150,000
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At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are asfollows:

(Amountsin
thousands)
2008 $ 529,699
2009 61,697
2010 45,978
2011 21,582
2012 and thereafter 29,139
$ 688,095

Time deposits of $100 thousand or more were $246.63 million and $262.32 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit of $100 thousand or more are as follows:

(Amountsin

thousands)
Three months or less $ 75,423
Over threeto six months 76,014
Over six to twelve months 42 917
Over twelve months 52,273
Total $ 246,627

Included in total deposits are deposits by related partiesin the total amount of $30.70 million and $27.79 million at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note8. Borrowings

The following table detail s borrowings as of December 31:

2007 2006
(Amountsin
thousands)
Federal funds purchased $ 18,500 $ 7,700
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 207,427 201,185
FHL B borrowings 275,888 182,207
Subordinated debt 15,464 15,464
Other debt 564 —
Tota $517,843 $406,556

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase include $157.43 million and $151.19 million of retail overnight and
term repurchase agreements and $50.00 million of wholesal e repurchase agreements at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The Bank isamember of the FHLB which provides credit in the form of short-term and long-term advances
collateralized by various mortgage assets. At December 31, 2007, credit availability with the FHLB total ed approximately
$275.89 million. Advances from the FHLB are secured by stock in the FHLB of Atlanta, qualifying first mortgage loans
of $397.55 million, mortgage-backed securities, and certain other investment securities. The FHLB advances are subject
to restrictions or penaltiesin the event of prepayment.
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FHLB borrowings include $275.00 million and $175.00 million in convertible and callable advances at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The callable advances may be called, or redeemed at quarterly intervals after various
lockout periods. These call options may substantially shorten the lives of these instruments. If these advances are
called, the debt may be paid in full, converted to another FHL B credit product, or converted to an adjustable rate
advance. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company also held non-callable term advances of $888 thousand and
$7.21 million, respectively. The weighted-average contractual rate of the FHLB advances was 4.38% at December 31,
2007.

At December 31, 2007, the FHL B advances have approximate contractual final maturities between two and thirteen
years. The scheduled maturities of the advances are as follows:

(Amountsin
thousands)
2008 $ —
2009 —
2010 25,000
2011 —
2012 50,000
2013 and thereafter 200,888
$ 275,888

In January 2006, the Company entered into a derivative swap instrument where it receives LIBOR-based variable
interest payments and pays fixed interest payments. The notional amount of the derivative swap is $50 million and
effectively fixes a portion of the FHLB borrowings at approximately 4.34%. After considering the effect of the interest
rate swap, the effective weighted average interest rate of the FHLB borrowings was 4.30% and 4.47% at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. Thefair value of the interest rate swap was aliability of $1.32 million and an asset of $441
thousand at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Alsoincluded in borrowingsis $15.46 million of junior subordinated debentures (the "Debentures") issued by the
Company in October 2003 to an unconsolidated trust subsidiary, FCBI Capital Trust (the "Trust"), with an interest rate
of three-month LIBOR plus 2.95%. The Trust was able to purchase the Debentures through the issuance of trust
preferred securities which had substantially identical terms as the Debentures. The Debentures mature on October 8,
2033, and are callable beginning October 8, 2008. The net proceeds from the offering were contributed as capital to the
Company’s subsidiary bank to support further growth.

The Company has committed to irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee the following payments or distributions
with respect to the trust preferred securities to the holders thereof to the extent that the Trust has not made such
payments or distributions: (i) accrued and unpaid distributions, (ii) the redemption price, and (iii) upon adissolution or
termination of the Trust, the lesser of the liquidation amount and all accrued and unpaid distributions and the amount of
assets of the Trust remaining available for distribution, in each case to the extent the Trust has funds available.
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Note9. Income Taxes, Continuing Operations
The components of income tax expense from continuing operations consist of the following:

Y ears Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)

Current tax expense

Federal $11,776 $ 9,883 $ 7,673
State 342 1,129 654
12,118 11,012 8,327

Deferred tax expense
Federal 194 418 1,673
State 22 47 191
216 465 1,864
Total income tax expense $12,334 $11,477 $10,191

Deferred income taxes rel ated to continuing operations reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting versustax purposes. The tax effects of significant items
comprising the Company’s net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007 2006
~ (Amountsin
thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $ 5,311 $5,940
Unrealized losses on AFS securities 4,327 21
Unrealized |osses on assets 500 465
Unrealized | oss on derivative security 528 —
Deferred compensation 2,741 2,554
Other 638 850
Total deferred tax assets $14,095 $9,830

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets $ 3,263 $3,214
Odd daysinterest deferral 2,023 2,548
Fixed assets 1,196 1,336
Accrued discounts 845 755
Other 913 1,088
Total deferred tax liabilities 8,240 8,941
Net deferred tax assets $ 5,855 $ 889

Income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax income may vary significantly from statutory rates due to items of income
and expense which are excluded, by law, from the calculation of taxable income, as well asthe utilization of available tax
credits. State and municipal bond income represent the most significant permanent tax difference. These permanent
differencesresulted in a consolidated effective tax rate of 29.39% in 2007, compared with 28.39% in 2006, and 27.74% in
2005.
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Thereconciliation of the statutory federal tax rate and the effective tax rates from continuing operations for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 is as.

Years Ended
December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Tax at statutory rate 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
(Reduction) increase resulting from:
Tax-exempt interest, net of nondeductible expense (5.95) (5.79) (6.70)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 212 1.89 2.19
Other, net (1.78) (2.711) (2.67)
Effectivetax rate 29.39% 28.39% 27.82%

Note10. Employee Benefits
Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan ("KSOP"). Coverage under the planis
provided to al employees meeting minimum eligibility requirements.

Employer Stock Fund: Annual contributionsto the stock portion of the plan were made through 2006 at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, and allocated to plan participants on the basis of relative compensation. The plan
was frozen to future contributions for periods after 2006. Substantially all plan assets are invested in common stock of
the Company. The Company reports the contributions to the plan as a component of salaries and benefits. The
Company made a modification to the KSOP in 2007 that transferred all future contributions to the 401(k) feature of the
plan. Accordingly, there were no contributions to the Employer Stock Fund in 2007. Total expense recognized by the
Company related to the Employer Stock Fund within the KSOP was $254 thousand and $891 thousand in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The 2006 contribution rate was 3.0% of €ligible employee compensation, but the total expense was offset
by the availability of forfeited shares. The Employer Stock Fund held 423,941 and 495,725 shares of the Company’s
stock at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Employee Savings Plan: The Company provides a401(k) savings feature within the KSOP that is available to
substantially all employees meeting minimum eligibility requirements. The cost of Company contributions under the 401
(k) savings component of the KSOP was $942 thousand, $902 thousand, and $967 thousand in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The Company’s matching contributions are at the discretion of the Board up to 100% of elective deferrals
of compensation of ho more than 8% in 2007 and 6% in 2006 and 2005, as designated by the Board. The Company
matching rate was 100% for 2007, 2006, and 2005. The employee participants have various investment alternatives
available in the 401(k) savings feature, but Company securities are not permitted as an investment alternative.

Employee Welfare Plan

The Company provides various medical, dental, vision, life, accidental death and dismemberment and long-term
disability insurance benefitsto all full-time employees who elect coverage under this program (basic life, accidental
death and dismemberment, and long-term disability coverage are automatic). The health plan is managed by athird party
administrator. Monthly employer and employee contributions are made to atax-exempt employer benefits trust against
which the third party administrator processes and pays claims. Stop loss insurance coverage limits the Company’ srisk
of lossto $85 thousand and $3.28 million for individual and aggregate claims, respectively. Total Company expenses
under the plan were $1.66 million, $1.62 million, and $2.66 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has deferred compensation agreements with certain current and former officers providing for benefit
payments over various periods commencing at retirement or death. Theliability at December 31, 2007 and 2006, was
approximately $494 thousand and $504 thousand, respectively. The annual expenses associated with these agreements
were $60 thousand, $64 thousand and $41 thousand for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The obligation is based upon
the present val ue of the expected payments and estimated life expectancies of the individuals.

The Company maintains alife insurance contract on the life of one of the participants covered under these
agreements. Proceeds derived from death benefits are intended to provide reimbursement of plan benefits paid over the
post employment lives of the participants. Premiums on the insurance contract are currently paid through policy
dividends on the cash surrender values of $1.03 million and $946 thousand at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Executive Retention Plan

The Company maintains an Executive Retention Plan for key members of senior management. The Executive
Retention Plan provides for abenefit at normal retirement (age 62) targeted at 35% of final compensation projected at an
assumed 3% salary progression rate. Benefits under the Executive Retention Plan become payable at age 62. Actual
benefits payable under the Executive Retention Plan are dependent on an indexed retirement benefit formulawhich
accrues benefits equal to the aggregate after-tax income of associated life insurance contracts less the Company’s tax-
effected cost of fundsfor that plan year. Benefits under the Executive Retention Plan are dependent on the performance
of the insurance contracts and are not guaranteed by the Company.

In connection with the contracts, the Company purchased bank-owned life insurance ("BOLI"), whichis
anticipated to fully fund the projected benefit payout after retirement. The cash surrender value of the BOLI for the
Executive Retention Plan at December 31, 2007 and 2006, was $3.77 million and $3.65 million, respectively. The
associated benefit accrued as of year-end 2007 and 2006 was $1.58 million and $1.33 million, respectively, while the
associated expense incurred in connection with the Executive Retention Plan was $110 thousand, $131 thousand, and
$247 thousand for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. The income derived from policy appreciation was $147 thousand,
$134 thousand, and $117 thousand in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

In connection with the Executive Retention Plan, the Company has also entered into Life Insurance Endorsement
Method Split Dollar Agreements with the individuals covered under the Executive Retention Plan. Under Split Dollar
Agreements, the Company shares 80% of death benefits (after recovery of cash surrender value) with the designated
beneficiaries of the plan participants under life insurance contracts referenced in the Plan. The Company as owner of the
policiesretains a 20% interest in life proceeds and a 100% interest in the cash surrender value of the policies.

The Executive Retention Plan also contains provisions for change of control, as defined, which allow the
participants to retain benefits and accel erate vesting, subject to certain conditions, in the event of achangein control.
Benefits under the Executive Retention Plan, which begin to accrue with respect to years of service, vest 25% after five
years, 50% after ten years, 75% after 15 years and 5% per year thereafter, with vesting accel erated to 100% upon
attainment of age 62.

Directors Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a Directors Supplemental Retirement Plan (the "Directors Plan") for its non-employee
directors. The Directors Plan provides for a benefit upon retirement from service on the Board at specified ages
depending upon length of service or death. Benefits under the Directors Plan become payable at age 70, 75, and 78
depending upon theindividual director’s age and original date of election to the Board. Actual benefits payable under
the Directors Plan are dependent on an indexed retirement benefit formulathat accrues benefits equal to the
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aggregate after-tax income of associated life insurance contracts less the Company’s tax-effected cost of funds for that
plan year. Benefits under the Directors Plan are dependent on the performance of the insurance contracts and are not
guaranteed by the Company. Participantsin the Directors Plan vest in the indexed benefit balance asit accrues.

In connection with the Directors Plan, the Company purchased BOLI, which is anticipated to fully fund the
projected benefit payout after retirement. The cash surrender value of the BOLI for the Directors Plan at December 31,
2007 and 2006, was $3.57 million and $3.44 million, respectively. The associated benefit accrued as of year-end 2007 and
2006 was $1.41 million and $1.44 million, respectively, while the associated expense incurred in connection with the
Directors Plan was $195 thousand, $366 thousand and $322 thousand for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Theincome
derived from policy appreciation was $134 thousand, $121 thousand, and $113 thousand in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

In connection with the Directors Plan, the Company has also entered into Life Insurance Endorsement Method
Split Dollar Agreements (the " Agreements") with certain directors covered under the Directors Plan. Under the
Agreements, the Company shares 80% of death benefits, after recovery of cash surrender value, with the designated
beneficiaries of the executives under life insurance contracts referenced in the Retention Plan. The Company, as owner
of the policies, retains a20% interest in life proceeds and a 100% interest in the cash surrender value of the policies.

The Directors Plan also contains provisions for change of control, as defined, which allow the directorsto retain
benefits under the Directors Plan in the event of atermination of service, other than for cause, during the 12 months
prior to achange in control or anytime thereafter, unless the director voluntarily terminates his service within 90 days
following the change in control.

Notel1l. Equity-Based Compensation
Stock Options

The Company maintains share-based compensation plans to promote the long-term success of the Company by
encouraging officers, employees, directors and individuals performing services for the Company to focus on critical
long-range objectives.

At the 2004 Annual Meeting, the Company’s shareholders ratified approval of the 2004 Omnibus Stock Option Plan
("2004 Plan") which made available up to 200,000 shares for potential grants of incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, restricted stock awards or performance awards.. Non-qualified and incentive stock options, aswell as
restricted and unrestricted stock may continue to be awarded under the 2004 Plan. Vesting under the 2004 Plan is
generally over athree-year period.

In 2003, with the acquisition of CommonWealth, the Company acquired additional stock options on 120,155 shares
(adjusted by the merger conversion factor of .9015 and the 10% stock dividend in 2003). These options were issued by
CommonWealth in 12 grants beginning in 1994 and ending in 2002 and, following the merger, reflect adjusted exercise
prices ranging from $4.75 to $17.40. These options were fully vested at the point of grant and are exercisable for up to
ten yearsfollowing the original grant date.

In 2001, the Company also instituted a plan to grant stock options to non-employee directors (the "Directors
Option Plan"). The options granted pursuant to the Plan expire at the earlier of ten years from the date of grant or two
years after the optionee ceases to serve as a director of the Company. Options not exercised within the appropriate time
shall expire and be deemed cancelled. Options under the Directors Option Plan were granted in the form of non-
statutory stock options with the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for grant under the Directors
Option Plan set at 108,900 shares (adjusted for the 10% stock dividends paid in 2002 and 2003).

In 1999, the Company instituted the 1999 Stock Option Plan (the "1999 Plan™). Options under the 1999 Plan were
granted in the form of non-statutory stock options with the aggregate number of shares of common stock
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available for grant under the Plan set at 332,750 (adjusted for 10% stock dividends paid in 2002 and 2003). The options
granted under the 1999 Plan represent the rights to acquire the option shares with deemed grant dates of January 1st for
each year beginning with the initial year granted and the following four anniversaries. All stock options granted
pursuant to the 1999 Plan vest ratably on the first through the seventh anniversary dates of the deemed grant date. The
option price of each stock option is equal to the fair market value (as defined by the 1999 Plan) of the Company’s
common stock on the date of each deemed grant during the five-year grant period. Vested stock options granted
pursuant to the 1999 Plan are exercisable during employment and for aperiod of five years after the date of the grantee’s
retirement, provided retirement occurs at or after age 62. If employment isterminated other than by early retirement,
disability, or death, vested options must be exercised within 90 days after the effective date of termination. Any option
not exercised within such period will be deemed cancelled.

The Company adopted FASB Statement No. 123R, "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS 123R"), on January 1, 2006,
using the "modified prospective" method. Under this method, awards that are granted, modified, or settled after
December 31, 2005, are measured and accounted for in accordance with SFAS 123R. Also under this method, expenseis
recognized for unvested awards that were granted prior to January 1, 2006, based upon the fair value determined at the
grant date under FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS 123). Prior to the
adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for stock compensation under the intrinsic value method permitted by
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" and related interpretations.
Accordingly, the Company previously recognized no compensation cost for employee stock options that were granted
with an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Thefollowing tableillustrates the effect on net income and earnings per shareif the Company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 in 2005.

2005

(Dollarsin thousands,
except per share data)

Net income as reported $ 26,303
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based

method for all awards, net of related tax effects (258)
Pro formanet income $ 26,045
Earnings per share:
Basic asreported $ 2.33
Basic pro forma $ 231
Diluted as reported $ 2.32
Diluted pro forma $ 2.30

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the
exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted stock as operating cash flowsin the consolidated statements of
cash flows. SFAS 123R requires the cash flows from the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the
compensation expense recognized for those options and restricted stock ("excess tax benefits") to be classified as
financing cash flows. Excess tax benefits totaling $327 thousand and $201 thousand are classified as afinancing cash
inflows for 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Asaresult of adopting SFAS 123R, pre-tax income and net income for 2007 are approximately $242 thousand and
$179 thousand lower, respectively, than accounting for stock options under the intrinsic value method. Pre-tax income
and net income for 2006 are approximately $287 thousand and $208 thousand lower, respectively, than accounting for
stock options under the intrinsic value method. The increased compensation expense decreased basic and diluted
earnings per share approximately two cents for 2007 and 2006.
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During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company recoghized pre-tax compensation expense
related to total equity-based compensation of approximately $271 thousand and $427 thousand, respectively. The
Company recognizes equity-based compensation on a straight-line pro-rata basis, so that the percentage of the total
expense recognized for an award is never less than the percentage of the award that has vested.

As of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $299 thousand unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested stock options. That cost is expected to be recognized over aweighted average period of 1.0 years. The actual
compensation cost recognized will differ from this estimate due to a number of items, including new awards granted and
changesin estimated forfeitures.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity, and related information for the year ended December 31, 2007,
isasfollows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Option Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Years) Value
(In thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2007 326640 $ 2272
Granted 9,500 33.05
Exercised 45,665 16.47
Forfeited 18,361 27.62
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 272,114 $ 2381 111 % 2,416
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 228812 $ 2266 110 $ 2,279

The fair value of optionswas estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and
certain assumptions. Expected volatility is based on the weekly historical volatility of our stock price over the expected
term of the option. Expected dividend yield is based on the ratio of the most recent dividend rate paid per share of the
Company’s common stock to recent trading price of the Company’s common stock. The expected term is cal culated
using the SEC’s "shortcut method" described in Staff Accounting Bulletin 107 and reaffirmed in Staff Accounting
Bulletin 110. The risk-freeinterest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of grant for the period equal
to the expected term of the option.

Thefair values of grants made during the three years ended December 31, 2007, were estimated using the following
weighted-average assumptions:

2007 2006 2005

Volatility 28.33% 28.95% 28.26%
Expected dividend yield 328% 3.00% 3.54%
Expected term (in years) 6.00 6.23 5.53

Risk-freerate 474% 480% 4.10%

The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted during the three years ended December 31, 2007,
was $8.14, $9.16, and $6.53, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the three years ended
December 31, 2007, was approximately $913 thousand, $830 thousand, and $650 thousand, respectively.

Stock Awards

The 2004 Plan permits the granting of restricted and unrestricted stock grants either alone, in addition to, or in
tandem with other awards made by the Company. Stock grants are generally measured at fair value on the date of grant
based on the number of shares granted and the quoted price of the Company’s stock. Such valueis recognized
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as expense over the corresponding service period. Compensation costs rel ated to these types of awards are
consistently reported for all periods presented.

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s nonvested shares for the year ended December 31,
2007.

2007

Weighted

Average
Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1 4800 $ 30.04
Granted 1,050 37.91
Vested 3,150 30.55
Forfeited 1,000 26.24
Nonvested at December 31 1,700 $ 36.20

As of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $60 thousand unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested stock awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over aweighted average period of 0.7 years. The actual
compensation cost recognized will differ from this estimate due to a number of items, including new awards granted and
changesin estimated forfeitures.

Note12. Litigation, Commitmentsand Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company isadefendant in various legal actions and asserted claims, most of
which involve lending, collection and employment matters. While the Company and legal counsel are unable to assess
the ultimate outcome of each of these matters with certainty, they are of the belief that the resolution of these actions,
singly or in the aggregate, should not have amaterial adverse affect on the financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows of the Company.

The Bank isaparty to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of businessto meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitmentsto extend credit, standby |etters of
credit and financial guarantees. These instrumentsinvolve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk
beyond the amounts recognized on the balance sheet. The contractual amounts of those instruments reflect the extent
of involvement the Company hasin particular classes of financial instruments. The Company’s exposureto credit loss
in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations asit does for on-
bal ance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer aslong as there is not aviolation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses
and may require payment of afee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the
total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the
Company, upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparties. Collateral held
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and income-producing
commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and written financial guarantees are conditional commitmentsissued by the Company to
guarantee the performance of a customer to athird party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. To the extent deemed necessary,
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collateral of varying types and amountsis held to secure customer performance under certain of those letters of credit
outstanding.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk at December 31, 2007 and 2006, are
commitments to extend credit (including availability of lines of credit) of $225.41 million and $206.83 million, respectively,
and standby letters of credit and financial guarantees of $3.60 million and $6.98 million, respectively.

The Company hasissued, through FCBI Capital Trust (the " Trust"), $15.00 million of trust preferred securitiesin a
private placement. In connection with the issuance of the trust preferred securities, the Company has committed to
irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee the following payments or distributions with respect to the trust preferred
securities to the holders thereof to the extent that the Trust has not made such payments or distributions and has the
fundstherefor: (i) accrued and unpaid distributions, (ii) the redemption price, and (iii) upon adissolution or termination
of the Trust, the lesser of the liquidation amount and all accrued and unpaid distributions and the amount of assets of
the Trust remaining available for distribution.

Note13. Derivative Instrumentsand Hedging Activities

The Company uses derivative instruments primarily to protect against the risk of adverse price or interest rate
movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on future cash flows. These derivatives may consist of
interest rate swaps, floors, caps, collars, futures, forward contracts, and written and purchased options. Derivative
instruments represent contracts between parties that usually require little or no initial net investment and result in one
party delivering cash or another type of asset to the other party based on a notional amount and an underlying as
specified in the contract.

The Company entered into an interest rate swap derivative accounted for as a cash flow hedge in January 2006.
The $50.00 million notional amount pay fixed, receive variable interest rate swap was aliability with an estimated fair
value of $1.32 million at December 31, 2007, and an asset with an estimated fair value of $441 thousand at December 31,
2006. The Company pays afixed rate of 4.34% and receives a LIBOR-based floating rate from the counterparty. The cash
flow hedgeis accounted for under the shortcut method provided for in SFAS 133. Under the shortcut method, the gains
and losses associated with the market value fluctuations of the interest rate swap are included in other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive incomeincluded $1.06 million of unrealized loss and $264 thousand of unrealized gain on
the interest rate swap, net of income taxes, for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company
held no interest rate derivatives at December 31, 2005.

Note14. Regulatory Capital Requirementsand Restrictions

The primary source of funds for dividends paid by the Company is dividends received from its subsidiary bank.
Dividends paid by the Bank are subject to restrictions by banking regulations. The most restrictive provision of the
regulations requires approval by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency if dividends declared in any year exceed
the year’s net income, as defined, plus retained net profit of the two preceding years. During 2008, subsidiary
accumulated earnings available for distribution as dividends to the Company without prior approval are $31.56 million
plus net income for the interim period through the date of dividend declaration.

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulatorsthat, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’sfinancial
statements. Under the capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, which
applies only to the Bank, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
entity’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as cal culated under regulatory accounting practices. The
Bank’s capital amounts and classifications are a so subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings, and other factors. Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts
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and ratios for total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1
capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). As of December 31, 2007, the Company and the Bank met all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the most recent notifications from
regul ators categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized aswell capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage
ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events since those notifications that management
believes have changed the institution’s category.

The Company’s and the Bank’s capital ratios as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, are presented in the following
table.

December 31, 2007

ToBeWell
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollarsin thousands)
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Inc. $182,476 12.34% $118,276 8.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A. 167,865 11.44% 117,398 8.00% $146,748 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Inc. $169,258 11.45% $ 59,138 4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A. 154,826 10.55% 58,699 400% $ 88,049 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (L ever age)
First Community Bancshares, Inc. $169,258 8.09% $ 83,639 4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A. 154,826 7.44% 83,233 4.00% $104,041 5.00%
December 31, 2006
ToBeWell
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollarsin thousands)
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Inc. $180,758 12.69% $113,961 8.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A. 166,802 11.77% 113,328 8.00% $141,660 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Inc. $165,302 11.60% $ 56,981 4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A. 152,040 10.73% 56,664 400% $ 84,996 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (L ever age)
First Community Bancshares, Inc. $165,302 8.50% $ 77,763 4.00% N/A N/A
First Community Bank, N. A. 152,040 7.85% 77,424 400% $ 96,780 5.00%

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, $15.46 million in subordinated debt istreated as Tier 1 capital for bank regulatory
purposes for the Company.
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Note15. Other Operating Expenses

Included in other operating expenses are certain costs, the total of which exceeds one percent of combined interest
income and noninterest income. Following are such costs for the years indicated:

Y ears Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)
Advertising and public relations $1,616 $1,265 $1,158
Servicefees 1,716 1,096 829
Telephone and data communications 1,372 1,403 1,488

Note 16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for whichiit is
practical to estimate the value is based upon the characteristics of the instruments and relevant market information.
Financial instruments include cash, evidence of ownership in an entity, or contracts that convey or impose on an entity
that contractual right or obligation to either receive or deliver cash for another financial instrument. Fair value isthe
amount at which afinancial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
inaforced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted market priceif one exists.

The following summary presents the methodol ogies and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments presented below. The information used to determine fair valueis highly subjective and
judgmental in nature and, therefore, the results may not be precise. Subjective factors include, among other things,
estimates of cash flows, risk characteristics, credit quality, and interest rates, all of which are subject to change. Since
the fair value is estimated as of the balance sheet date, the amounts that will actually be realized or paid upon settlement
or maturity on these various instruments could be significantly different.

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

(Amountsin thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 52,746 $ 52,746 $ 57,759 $ 57,759
Investment Securities 676,195 676,418 528,389 528,720
Loans held for sale 811 813 781 787
Loans held for investment 1,212,669 1,202,396 1,270,314 1,248,960
Derivative financial assets — — 441 441
Liabilities

Demand deposits 224,087 224,087 244,771 244,771
Interest-bearing demand deposits 153,570 153,570 140,578 140,578
Savings deposits 327,691 327,691 317,678 317,678
Time deposits 688,095 688,503 691,744 688,178
Federal funds purchased 18,500 18,500 7,700 7,700
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 207,427 207,427 201,185 201,185
FHLB and other indebtedness 291,916 286,087 197,671 196,233
Derivative financia liabilities 1,320 1,320 — —
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Financial I nstrumentswith Book Value Equal to Fair Value:

The book values of cash and due from banks and federal funds sold and purchased are considered to be equal to
fair value as aresult of the short-term nature of these items.

| nvestment Securities:

Fair valueis based on current market quotations, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair
val ue has been based on the quoted price of similar instruments.

Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans held for investment is measured based upon discounted future cash flows and
using the current rates for similar loans. Loans held for sale are recorded at lower of cost or estimated fair value. Thefair
value of loans held for saleis determined based upon the market sales price of similar loans.

Derivative Financial | nstruments:

The estimated fair value of derivative financial instrumentsis based upon the current market price for similar
instruments.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreementsto Repurchase:

Deposits without a stated maturity, including demand, interest-bearing demand, and savings accounts, are
reported at their carrying value in accordance with SFAS 107. No value has been assigned to the franchise value of
these deposits. For other types of deposits with fixed maturities, fair value has been estimated by discounting future
cash flows based on interest rates currently being offered on deposits with similar characteristics and maturities.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reported at their carrying value.

Other | ndebtedness:

Fair value has been estimated based on interest rates currently available to the Company for borrowings with
similar characteristics and maturities.

Commitmentsto Extend Credit, Standby L etters of Credit, and Financial Guarantees:

The amount of off-balance sheet commitmentsto extend credit, standby letters of credit, and financial guaranteesis
considered equal to fair value. Because of the uncertainty involved in attempting to assess the likelihood and timing of
commitments being drawn upon, coupled with the lack of an established market and the wide diversity of fee structures,
the Company does not believe it is meaningful to provide an estimate of fair value that differs from the given value of
the commitment.

Note17. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of the Company’s accumulated other comprehensive (10ss) income, net of income taxes, as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows:

Unrealized
Unrealized Gain (L oss) Accumulated
(Loss) on Cash Flow Comprehensive
on Securities Hedge Derivative Income (L oss)
(Amountsin thousands)
December 31, 2006 $ (32 $@ $ 232
December 31, 2007 $(6,491) $(7£) $(7,283)
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note18. Parent Company Financial Information

Condensed financial information related to First Community as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and for each of the

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, is asfollows:

Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets

Cash

Securities availablefor sale
Investment in subsidiary
Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Other liabilities
Long-term debt
Total liahilities
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive (l0ss) income
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Condensed Statements of Income

Cash dividends received from subsidiary bank
Other income
Operating expense

Income tax (expense) benefit

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary — continuing operations

Net income

December 31,

2007 2006
(Amountsin
thousands)

$ 2,880 $ 4511
6,877 9,066
217,307 214,030
6,108 1,328
$233,172 $228,935
$ 610 $ 74

15,464 15,464

16,074 16,205

11,499 11,499

108,795 108,806

117,670 100,117

(13,583) (7,924)

(7,283) 232

217,098 212,730

$233,172 $228,935

Y ears Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Amountsin thousands)
$26,408 $15,775 $11,600

2,853 354 823
(2,106) (2,049) (1,808)
27,155 14,080 10,615

(545) 1,237 662

3,022 13,631 15,026

$29,632 $28,948 $26,303




FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from oper ating activities
Net income
Adjustmentsto reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary — continuing operations
Gain on sale of securities
Decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flowsfrom investing activities
Purchase of securities availablefor sale
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale
Investment in subsidiary
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flowsfrom financing activities
Issuance of common stock
Acquisition of treasury stock
Dividends paid
Other, net
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note19. Discontinued Operations

Y ears Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(Amountsin thousands)

$ 20632 $28948  $ 26303
(3022) (13631  (15026)
(447) (62) (513)
(2,679) 63 312
996 455 (666)

— ®) 379
24,481 15,770 10,789
(3.217) (1,881) (3,819)
4,671 2,210 1,568
(5,397) — —
(2,390) 3 —
(6,333) 332 (2,251)
1,117 1,518 522
(9,170) (4,566) (1,303)
(12079) (11659  (11,494)
353 1,772 —
(197790 (12935  (12,275)
(1,631) 3,167 (3.737)
4,511 1,344 5,081

$ 2880 $ 4511 $ 1344

On August 18, 2004, the Company sold United First Mortgage, Inc., its mortgage banking subsidiary
headquartered in Richmond, Virginia. The business related to the former mortgage banking subsidiary is accounted for
as discontinued operationsin accordance with SFAS 144 for all periods presented in thisreport. The results of the
former mortgage banking subsidiary are presented as discontinued operationsin a separate category on the income

statement following results from continuing operations.
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Theresults of discontinued operations for the most recent three years ended December 31 are asfollows:

Interest income

Interest expense

Other income

Other expenses

L oss before income taxes
Applicable income tax benefit

Net loss

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

Year Ended
December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(Amountsin
thousands)

$— §

$ —

233

(233)
(91)

$ —

$ —

$(142)

There were no discontinued assets and liabilities from the former mortgage banking subsidiary at December 31,

2007 and 2006.

Note20. Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly earnings for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are as follows:

2007
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amountsin thousands, except per share data)
Interest income $ 30,686 $31,979 $32,732 $32,194
Interest expense 13,671 14,965 15,589 15,051
Net interest income 17,015 17,014 17,143 17,143
Provision for loan |osses — — — 717
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17,015 17,014 17,143 16,426
Other income 5,086 5,517 5,970 7,847
Net securities gains 129 30 50 202
Other expenses 12,158 12,075 12,836 13,3%
Income before income taxes 10,072 10,486 10,327 11,081
Income taxes 2,948 3,047 3,011 3,328
Net income $ 7124 $ 7439 $ 7,316 $ 7,753
Per share:
Basic earnings $ 063 $ 066 $ 0.65 $ 070
Diluted earnings $ 063 $ 066 $ 065 $ 069
Dividends $ 027 $ 027 $ 027 $ 027
Weighted average basi ¢ shares outstanding 11,259 11,261 11,179 11,121
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 11,347 11,320 11,230 11,206
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2006
Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

(Amountsin thousands, except per share data)
Interest income $ 28,923 $30,025 $30,240 $30,838
Interest expense 10,858 11,852 12,484 13,187
Net interest income 18,065 18,173 17,756 17,651
Provision for loan |osses 408 811 579 908
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 17,657 17,362 17,177 16,743
Other income 4,989 5,614 5,104 5,542
Net securities gains 159 (94) (6) 15
Other expenses 13,333 12,588 12,213 11,703
Income before income taxes 9,472 10,294 10,062 10,597
Income taxes 2,628 3,002 2,877 2,970
Net income $ 684 $ 7,292 $ 7,185 $ 7,627

Per share:

Basic earnings $ 061 $ 065 $ 0.64 $ 0.68
Diluted earnings $ o061 $ 065 $ 064 $ 068
Dividends $ 026 $ 0.26 $ 026 $ 026
Weighted average basi ¢ shares outstanding 11,233 11,201 11,174 11,212
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 11,312 11,259 11,245 11,298
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- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and its
Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
changesin stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, aswell as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and its Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 12, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Dixorn Hyghs PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 12, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of First
Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of
First Community Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2005. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, aswell as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementsreferred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the consolidated
results of their operations and cash flows of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

YoungLLP'>
Charleston, West Virginia

March 3, 2006
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MANAGEMENT’'SASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statementsincluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated
financial statements and notes included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been prepared in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily include some amounts that are based on management’s
best estimates and judgments.

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining effectiveinternal control
over financial reporting that is designed to produce reliable financial statementsin conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. The system of internal control over financial reporting asit relates to the financial
statements is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for reliability. Any system of internal control, no
matter how well designed, hasinherent limitations, including the possibility that a control can be circumvented or
overridden and misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, because of changesin
conditions, internal control effectiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, even an effective system of internal control
will provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation.

Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’sinternal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management concluded that its system of
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007. Dixon Hughes PLL C, independent
registered public accounting firm, hasissued an attestation report on the effectiveness of the Company’sinternal
control over financial reporting.

The Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm on Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appears hereafter in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM -

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited First Community Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary’s (the "Company") internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Company’sinternal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in al material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that amaterial weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included, performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides areasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabl e assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statementsfor external purposesin
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’sinternal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabl e detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as hecessary to permit preparation of financial statementsin accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivenessto future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changesin conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Community Bancshares, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements of First Community Bancshares, Inc. as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007, and our report dated March 12, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated
financial statements.

Dixorn Hyghs PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 12, 2008
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ITEM 9. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision
and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer along with
the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures pursuant to the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b). Based upon that eval uation, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer along with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to the Company (including
its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in the Company’s periodic SEC filings. There have not been any
changesin the Company’sinternal controls over financial reporting during the most recent fiscal quarter that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materialy affect the Company’sinternal controls over financial reporting.

Disclosure controls and procedures are Company controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reportsthat it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’srules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reportsthat it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated
and communicated to the Company’ s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer, as
appropriate, to alow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and the Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm on Management’s Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting are each hereby
incorporated by reference from Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9B. OTHERINFORMATION.

None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The required information concerning directors and executive officers has been omitted in accordance with General
Instruction G. Such information regarding directors and executive officers will be set forth under the headings of
"Election of Directors", "Continuing Directors', and "Executive Officers who are not Directors" of the Proxy Statement
relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and isincorporated herein by reference.

A portion of the information relating to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act has been omitted in
accordance with General Instruction G. Such information will be set forth under the heading of " Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” of the Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 Annua Meeting of Stockholdersand is
incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethicsthat appliesto its principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions, aswell as all employees and directors
of the Company. A copy of the Company’s Code of Ethicsis available on the Company’s website at www.fcbinc.com.
Since its adoption, there have been no waivers of the code of ethicsrelated to any of the above officers.

A portion of theinformation relating to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee Financial Expert has been
omitted in accordance with General Instruction G. Such information regarding the Audit Committee and the
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Audit Committee Financial Expert will be set forth under the heading "Report of the Audit Committee” of the Proxy
Statement relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and isincorporated herein by reference.

The Company has not made any material changes to the procedures by which stockholders may recommend
nominees to the Company’s board of directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

Franklin P. Hall A.A.Modena

Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Family Law Firm Past Executive Vice President and Secretary, First
Community Bancshares, Inc.; Past President and
Chief Executive Officer, The Flat Top National Bank of

Bluefield
Allen T. Hamner, Ph.D. Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Retired Professor of Chemistry, West VirginiaWesleyan Past Vice President-Operations, MAPCO Coal, Inc. —
College Virginia Region
|. NorrisKantor William P. Stafford
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys-at-Law President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.
John M. Mendez William P. Stafford, I1
President and Chief Executive Officer, First Community Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Mullins,

Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer, First Community Caruth, Moore, Kersey & Stafford, PLLC
Bank, N. A.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

John M. Mendez David D. Brown

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

E. Stephen Lilly Robert L. Buzzo

Chief Operating Officer Vice President and Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANK, N. A.

Gregory J. Beier
President and Chief Executive Officer, Novant Health —
Triad Region

W. C. Blankenship, Jr.
Agent, State Farm Insurance

D.L.Bowling, Jr.
President, True Energy, Inc.

Juanita G. Bryan
Homemaker

Robert L. Buzzo

Vice President and Secretary, First Community Bancshares,
Inc.; President, First Community Bank, N. A.

C. William Davis

Attorney-at-L aw, Richardson & Davis

Franklin P. Hall
Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Family Law Firm

Allen T. Hamner, Ph.D.
Retired Professor of Chemistry, West VirginiaWesleyan
College

|. NorrisKantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys-at-Law

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

John M. Mendez

President and Chief Executive Officer, First Community
Bancshares, Inc.; Executive Vice President, First
Community Bank, N. A

A.A.Modena

Past Executive Vice President and Secretary, First
Community Bancshares, Inc.; Past President and Chief
Executive Officer, The Flat Top National Bank of
Bluefield

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Past Vice President-Operations, MAPCO Coal, Inc. —
VirginiaRegion

ClydeB. Ratliff
President, Gasco Drilling, Inc.

William P. Stafford
President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.

William P. Stafford, I1
Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Mullins,
Caruth, Moore, Kersey & Stafford, PLLC

Frank C. Tinder
President, Tinder Enterprises, Inc. and Tinco Leasing
Corporation

Dale F. Woody
President, Woody Lumber Company

Theinformation called for by Item 11 has been omitted in accordance with General Instruction G. Such information
will be set forth in the Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and isincorporated herein

by reference.

ITEM 12
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERSAND MANAGEMENT AND

Thereguired information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management has been
omitted in accordance with General Instruction G. Such information appears under the heading of "Beneficial Ownership
of Common Stock by Certain Beneficial Owners and Management™ of the Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and isincorporated herein by reference.




The following table presents information for all equity compensation planswith individual compensation
arrangements, whether with employees or non-employees such as directors, in effect as of December 31, 2007.

Number of Number of Securities
Securitiesto be Remaining Available
Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Futurelssuance
Exer cise of Exercise price of Under Equity
Outstanding Outstanding Compensation Plans
Options, Warrants  Options, Warrants (Excluding Securities
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
(@ (b) ©
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 49250 $ 29.93 92,993
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders 222,864 22.45 42711
Total 272,114 135,704

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Theinformation called for by Item 13 has been omitted in accordance with General Instruction G. Such information
shall be set forth in the Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and isincorporated herein

by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEESAND SERVICES.

Theinformation called for by Item 14 has been omitted in accordance with General Instruction G. Such information
shall be set forth in the Proxy Statement relating to the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and isincorporated herein

by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(a) Documents Filed as Part of this Report

(1) Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries together with
the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Report dated March 10, 2008, are incorporated by reference

to Item 8 hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are being filed since the required information isinapplicable or is presented

in the consolidated financial statements or related notes.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit No. Exhibit

3() — Articlesof Incorporation of First Community Bancshares, Inc., as amended.(1)
3(ii) — Bylawsof First Community Bancshares, Inc., as amended.(17)
41 — Specimen stock certificate of First Community Bancshares, Inc.(3)
42 — Indenture Agreement dated September 25, 2003.(11)
43 — Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of FCBI Capital Trust dated September 25, 2003.(11)
44  — Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated September 25, 2003.(11)

101 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Contracts(2) and Plan.(4)

10.1.1 — Amendment to First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan.(11)

85




Exhibit No. Exhibit

102 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Non-Qualified Directors Stock Option Plan.(5)

103 — Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2000 and amended October 17, 2000, between First Community
Bancshares, Inc. and John M. Mendez.(2)(6)

104  — First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2000 Executive Retention Plan, as amended.(2)

105 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. Split Dollar Plan and Agreement.(2)

106 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Directors Supplementa Retirement Plan.(2)

10.6.1 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Directors Supplemental Retirement Plan. Second Amendment
(B.W. Harvey, Sr. — October 19, 2004).(14)

10.7 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. Wrap Plan.(7)

108 — Reserved.

109 — Form of Indemnification Agreement between First Community Bancshares, its Directors and Certain
Executive Officers.(9)

10.10 — Form of Indemnification Agreement between First Community Bank, N. A, its Directors and Certain

Executive Officers.(9)

1011 — Reserved.

10.12 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Stock Option Plan (10) and Award Agreement.(13)

10.13 — Reserved.

10.14 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. Directors Deferred Compensation Plan.(7)

10.15 — First Community Bancshares, Inc. Deferred Compensation and Supplemental Bonus Plan For Key
Employees.(15)

10.16 — Employment Agreement dated November 30, 2006, between First Community Bank, N. A. and Ronald L.
Campbell(19)

10.17* — Employment Agreement dated September 28, 2007, between Green Point Insurance Group, Inc. and
Shawn C. Cummings

11 — Statement regarding computation of earnings per share.(16)
12* — Computation of Ratios.
21 — Subsidiaries of Registrant — Reference is madeto "Item 1. Business' for the required information.

23.1* — Consent of Dixon Hughes PLLC, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for First Community
Bancshares, Inc.

23.2* — Consent of Ernst & Young, LLP, former Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for First
Community Bancshares, Inc.

31.1* — Rule 13a-14(a)/abd-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2* — Rule 13a-14(a)/abd-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32* — Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Section 1350.

* Furnished herewith.

(1) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2005, filed on
August 5, 2005.

(2) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, filed on
August 14, 2002.

(3) Incorporated by reference from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2002, filed on
March 25, 2003, as amended on March 31, 2003.

(4) Incorporated by reference from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 1999, filed on
March 30, 2000, as amended April 13, 2000.

(5) The option agreements entered into pursuant to the 1999 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 Non-Qualified
Directors Stock Option Plan are incorporated by reference from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2002, filed on August 14, 2002.

(6) First Community Bancshares, Inc. has entered into substantially identical agreements with Robert L. Buzzo and
E. Stephen Lilly, with the only differences being with respect to title, salary and the use of avehicle.
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(7) Incorporated by reference from Item 1.01 of the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 22, 2006, and filed
August 23, 2006.

(8) Reserved.

(9) Form of indemnification agreement entered into by the Corporation and by First Community Bank, N. A. with
their respective directors and certain officers of each including, for the Registrant and Bank: John M. Mendez,
Robert L. Schumacher, Robert L. Buzzo, E. Stephen Lilly, David D. Brown, and Gary R. Mills. Incorporated by
reference from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2003, filed on March 15, 2004,
and amended on May 19, 2004.

(20) Incorporated by reference from the 2004 First Community Bancshares, Inc. Definitive Proxy filed on March 19,
2004.

(11) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2003, filed
on November 10, 2003.

(12) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2004, filed on
May 7, 2004.

(13) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2004, filed on
August 6, 2004.

(14) Incorporated by reference from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2004, and
filed on March 16, 2005. Amendments in substantially similar form were executed for Directors Clark, Kantor,
Hamner, Modena, Perkinson, Stafford, and Stafford I1.

(15) Incorporated by reference from Item 1.01 of the Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 24, 2006, and filed
October 25, 2006.

(16) Incorporated by reference from Footnote 1 of the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statementsincluded herein.

(17) Incorporated by reference from Item 5.03 of the Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 14, 2008, filed on
February 20, 2008.

(18) Reserved
(19) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of the Form S-3 registration statement filed May 2, 2007.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the regquirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused thisreport to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 13th day of March,
2008.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ DavidD. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thisreport has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl John M. Mendez Director, President and March 13, 2008
John M. Mendez Chief Executive Officer
/s/ David D. Brown Chief Financial Officer March 13, 2008
David D. Brown
/9 Franklin P. Hall Director March 13, 2008
Franklin P. Hall
/s Allen T. Hamner Director March 13, 2008
Allen T. Hamner
/s/ 1. Norris Kantor Director March 13, 2008
|. Norris Kantor
/sl A.A. Modena Director March 13, 2008
A.A. Modena
/s/ Robert E. Perkinson, Jr. Director March 13, 2008

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.

/9 William P. Stafford Chairman of the Board of Directors March 13, 2008
William P. Stafford

/9 William P. Stafford, 11 Director March 13, 2008
William P. Stafford, |1
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Exhibit 10.17

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated this 28th day of September 2007, by and between SHAWN CURTIS CUMMINGS (the
"Executive") and GREENPOINT INSURANCE GROUP, INC. ("GIG").

WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, Executive has been employed by GIG asits President.

WHEREAS, First Community Bancshares, Inc. ("FCBI") has agreed to purchase all of the outstanding common stock of GIG and to hold GIG as
asubsidiary of FCBI, and has made the Executive entering into this Agreement a condition to closing such purchase;

WHEREAS, GIG wants to ensure that Executive remains asits President;

WHEREAS, Executive wantsto remain President in astructure where GI G is affiliated with alarger financial organization, with total
compensation and overall benefitsthat are likely to exceed, over time, that to which he had previously been entitled,;

WHEREAS, GIG wishes to ensure protection of its business interests, customer relationship and Confidential and Proprietary Information;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, Executive and GIG do agree to the terms of employment as
follows:

1. Definitions. The following words and terms shall have the meanings set forth below for the purposes of this Agreement:

(a) Affiliate. Affiliate of any person or entity means any stockholder or person or entity controlling, controlled by under common control
with such person or entity, or any director, officer or key executive of such entity or any of their respective relative. For purposes of this definition,
"control", when used with respect to any person or entity, means the power to direct the management and policies of such person or entity,
directly or indirectly, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contracting or otherwise; and the terms "controlling" and "controlled”
have meanings that correspond to the foregoing.

(b) Base Salary. "Base Salary" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a) hereof.

(c) Business. "Business" meansall right, title and interest of GIG in and to any and all rights, properties, property fights, proprietary
information, assets, goodwill, or expectancies relating to the insurance agency and brokerage business of GIG and its subsidiaries, whether
tangible or intangible, real, personal or mixed, including receivables due or paid on or after the closing of the transactions pursuant to the Stock
Purchase Agreement referenced in Section 4 hereof, Insurance Contracts, Expirations, Commissions and Records.




(d) Cause. "Cause" meansthat GIG has determined in good faith that the Executive has:

(i) engaged incriminal, fraudulent or dishonest conduct;
(i) acted in amanner that brings or isreasonably likely to bring GIG or any Affiliate into public disgrace or disrepute;
(iii) violated any law or regulation with which GIG isrequired to comply or any GIG policy;

(iv) failed to satisfactorily perform his duties as reasonably directed by GIG, after having been provided with notice hereunder and a
15 day opportunity to cure such unsatisfactory conduct;

(v) failedto comply with any lawful written instruction of the GIG Board;

(vi) breached this Agreement or any other material duty owed to GIG, including but not limited to the Executive' s fiduciary duty and
duty of loyalty.

(€) Code. "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(f) Competing Business. "Competing Business" shall mean any business or enterprise that sells or provides aproduct or service that isthe
same or similar to aproduct or service (i) then being sold or provided by GIG or an Affiliate and (ii) at any time during the twelve (12) months prior
to the Date of Termination, in which Executive wasinvolved, to which the Executive' s responsibilities related or about which the Executive had
access to Confidential or Proprietary Information.

(9) Confidential and Proprietary Information. "Confidential and Proprietary Information” shall mean any and al (i) confidential or proprietary
information or material not in the public domain about or relating to the Business, or financial condition of GIG, its subsidiaries or any Affiliate of
GIG oritssubsidiaries, or any of GIG's, its subsidiaries’ or any such Affiliate's trade secrets, including, without limitation, all data, figures,
projections, estimates, lists, files, records, documents, manuals or other such materials or information regardless of how stored or recorded relating
to the Business, including, but not limited to, its Insurance Contracts, Expirations, Records, finances, contemplated acquisitions, business plans,
compensation systems, incentive programs, prospective customers, marketing, investigation, surveys, research, computer systems, employees, or
customers (including lists of customers and former customers and information relating to the products or services that customers or former
customers purchased); and (ii) information, documentation or material not in the public domain by virtue of any action by or on the part of the
Executive, the knowledge of which gives or may give GIG, its subsidiaries or any Affiliate of GIG or its subsidiaries, an advantage over any person
not possessing such information. For purposes hereof, the term Confidential and Proprietary Information shall not include any information or
material (i) that is known to the general public other than due to a breach of this Agreement by the Executive or (ii) was disclosed to the Executive
by a person who the Executive did not reasonably believe was bound to a confidentiality or similar agreement with the Employers.




(h) Commissions. "Commissions' means all present and future rights to commissions, fees and income paid or payableto GIG or any of its
subsidiaries on and after the closing of the transactions pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement referenced in Section 4 hereof, arising out of or
in connection with the existing insurance policies, accounts and insurance agency and brokerage business of GIG and its Subsidiaries.

(i) Covered Period. "Covered Period" shall mean twenty-four (24) months after the Executive’ s employment ends for any reason, whether
voluntary or involuntary. Covered Period under this Agreement isto be interpreted separately and independent of the Covered Period as defined
in the Stock Purchase Agreement.

(j) Date of Termination. "Date of Termination" shall mean (i) if the Executive's employment isterminated for Cause or for Disability, the date
specified in the Notice of Termination, (ii) if Executive's employment ends as aresult of his death, the date of his death; or (iii) if the Executive's
employment ends for any other reason, the date on which a Notice of Termination is given or as otherwise specified in such Notice.

(k) Disability. "Disability" shall mean Executive's physical or mental inability to perform his duties under this Agreement, even with
reasonable accommodation, for more than twenty-six (26) weeks, whether or not consecutive, in any twelve-month period.

() Expirations. "Expirations' means all customer lists, all records concerning insurance accounts or policies obtained or compiled by GIG or
its subsidiaries during the course of their insurance business, all expirations of such insurance policies and records thereof, and all rightsto and
under insurance policies sold by GIG or its subsidiaries and in force as of the closing of the transactions pursuant to the Stock Purchase
Agreement referenced in Section 4 hereof, and to the renewal s thereof (whether such rights exist or are derived pursuant to any of the Insurance
Contracts or otherwise).

(m) Insurance Contracts. "Insurance Contracts' means all contracts and agreements for insurance products between GIG or its subsidiaries
(or other employees of GIG or its subsidiaries) and any insurance company, carrier, broker, underwriter, producer, insurance agency or agent, or
other such firms or Persons as of the closing of the transactions pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement referenced in Section 4 hereof.

(n) Notice of Termination. Any purported termination of the Executive’' s employment by GIG for any reason, including without limitation for
Cause or Disability, or by the Executive for any reason other than death, shall be communicated by written "Notice of Termination" to the other
party hereto. For purposes of this Agreement, a"Notice of Termination" shall mean a dated notice which (i) indicates the specific termination
provisionin this Agreement relied upon, (ii) setsforth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of
Executive' s employment under the provision so indicated, (iii) specifiesaDate of Termination, which shall be not less than thirty (30) nor more
than ninety (90) days after such Notice of Termination is given, except in the case of GIG’stermination of Executive's employment for Cause,
which shall be effective immediately; and (iv) is given in the manner specified in Section 14 hereof. After a Notice of Termination isgiven, GIG may
place the Executive on administrative leave with pay until the Date of Termination and




during any such administrative leave, the Executive shall not be authorized to take any actions or make any statements on behalf of GIG and shall
fully cooperate with GIG in the fulfillment or transition of hisjob duties.

(0) Person. "Person" shall have the same meaning as that term is appliesin Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act.

(p) Records. "Records' means all books, records, files, correspondence, research data and work in process as of the closing of the
transactions pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement referenced in Section 4 hereof, pertaining to the current or former insurance agency and
brokerage business of GIG.

(0) Restricted Area. " Restricted Area" shall be 100 miles from any location where GIG is engaged in the Business to which, during the twelve
(12) months prior to the Date of Termination, the Executive' s responsibilities related or about which the Executive had access to Confidential or
Proprietary Information.

(r) SPA. "SPA" means the Stock Purchase Agreement dated September 28, 2007, between FCBI, GIG and the parties named therein.

(s) Separation from Service. The termination, whether voluntary or involuntary, of the Executive's employment with GIG for reasons other
than death. Whether a Separation from Service takes place is determined based on the facts and circumstances surrounding the termination of the
Executive' s employment and whether GIG and the Executive intended for the Executive to provide significant servicesfor GIG following such
termination. A termination of employment will not be considered a Separation from Serviceif:

(i) the Executive continues to provide services as an employee of GIG at an annual rate that istwenty percent or more of the services
rendered, on average, during the immediately preceding three full calendar years of employment (or, if employed less than three years, such
lesser period) and the annual remuneration for such servicesistwenty percent (20%) or more of the average annual remuneration earned
during the final three full calendar years of employment (or, if less, such lesser period), or

(ii) the Executive continues to provide servicesto GI G in a capacity other than as an employee of GIG at an annual rate that isfifty percent
or more of the services rendered, on average, during theimmediately preceding three full calendar years of employment (or if employed less
than three years, such lesser period) and the average annual remuneration earned during the final three full calendar years of employment (or
if less, such lesser period).

(t) Specified Employee. Pursuant to Code Section 409A, a Specified Employee shall mean akey employee (as defined in Section 416(i) of the
Code without regard to paragraph 5 thereof) of GIG if any stock of FCBI is publicly traded on an established securities market or otherwise.

(u) Term of Employment. Term of Employment shall have the meaning described in Section 3 below.




3. Term of Employment.

(a) GIG hereby employs the Executive as President of GIG, and the Executive hereby accepts said employment and agrees to render such
servicesto GIG, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. The term of employment under this Agreement shall be for aterm of five
years, commencing on the date of this Agreement, unless such term is extended as provided in this Section 3 (" Term of Employment™).

(b) During the Term of Employment, the Executive shall perform such executive servicesfor GIG as may be consistent with histitles and from
time to time assigned to him by the GIG Board.

The Executive shall devote hisfull businesstime, attention, skill and energy to the Business of GIG and shall not engage or prepare to
engage in any other business activity, whether or not such business activity is pursued for gain, profit or other economic or financial advantage.
The Executive and GIG agree that the Executive' s position is essential to GIG’s success and that the highest level of performanceisrequired from
the Executive.

The Executive shall comply with the standards and policiesthat GIG in its sole discretion may from time to time establish.
4. Compensation and Benefits.

(a) During the Term of Employment, GIG shall compensate and pay the Executive for his services during the term of this Agreement at a base
monthly salary ("Base Salary") of $14,583.34 per month. No changesto Base Salary may be made without the approval of the GIG Board. In
addition to his Base Salary, the Executive shall be entitled to receive during the term of this Agreement such bonus payments as may be
determined by the GIG Board in its sole discretion.

(b) During the Term of Employment, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in and receive the benefits of any pension or other
retirement benefit plan, profit sharing, stock option, employee stock ownership, or other plans, benefits and privileges given to employees and
executives of the Company, to the extent commensurate with his then duties and responsibilities as fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company
and GIG. The Executive will also be eligible to participate in and receive incentive bonus payments that have been established by FCBI pursuant to
Section 5.10 of the SPA.

(c) During the Term of Employment, the Executive shall be entitled to take vacation in accordance with GIG' s established policies, provided,
however, that the Executive shall not be entitled to receive any additional compensation for failure to take a vacation, nor shall the Executive be
able to accumul ate unused vacation time from one year to the next, except to the extent authorized by the Board of GIG.

(d) Inthe event the Executive’ s employment is terminated due to Disability, Employee shall be eligible for any continuation of life, medical,
dental and disability benefitsin an amount and to the extent provided by GIG's established policies.




5. Expenses. GIG shall reimburse the Executive or otherwise provide for or pay for all reasonable expensesincurred by the Executivein
furtherance of or in connection with the business of GIG, including, but not by way of limitation, traveling expenses, subject to such reasonable
documentation and other limitations as may be established by the Board of Directors of GIG. If such expenses are paid in the first instance by the
Executive, GIG shall reimburse the Executive therefore, as may be appropriate under the circumstances.

6. Termination.

(a) GIG shal have theright, at any time upon prior Notice of Termination, to terminate the Executive' s employment hereunder for any reason,
including, without limitation, termination with or without Cause or for Disability, and the Executive shall have the right, upon prior Notice of
Termination, to terminate his employment hereunder for any reason.

(b) Inthe event that during the Term of Employment, (i) the Executive' s employment isterminated by GIG for Cause, (ii) the Executive's
employment ends as result of death or (iii) the Executive terminates his employment hereunder, the Executive shall have no right pursuant to this
Agreement to compensation or other benefits for any period after the applicable Date of Termination other than for Base Salary accrued through
the Date of Termination.

(c) Inthe event that the Executive's employment is terminated as aresult of Disability during the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall
receive hissalary for the period, if any, after the Date of Termination to which he would be entitled under any then existing GIG policy. The
payment shall be made in accordance with any such policy.

(d) In the event that the Executive's employment is terminated by GIG for other than Cause, the Executive' s Disability, or the Executive's
death, then GIG shall take the following action with respect to the Executive, provided that the Executive has certified that the Executive has
complied with Section 7 of this Agreement and has signed in the form provided by GIG ageneral release of any and all claims the Executive may
have against the GIG or its Affiliates or any of GIG’s or its Affiliates then current or former officers, directors, or employees and such release has
become effective: Pay to the Executive a cash severance amount equal to the Executive's monthly Base Salary asin effect immediately prior to the
Date of Termination multiplied by twelve (12) ("Severance Pay"). The parties hereto acknowledge that no Holdback Payment or Earn-Out Payment
paid by the Company in acquisition of GIG shall be considered for purposes of determining Severance Pay. Such Severance Pay shall be paidin
monthly installments beginning with the first business day of the month following the date the rel ease becomes effective and continuing for one
(1) year. However, no such Severance Pay will be paid to the Executive unless the Executive has Separated from Service.

(e) Notwithstanding paragraph (d) of this Section 6, if the Executive is considered a Specified Employee, upon Separation from Servicein
accordance with Section 409A of the Code, benefit distributions that are made upon Separation from Service may not commence earlier than six
months after the date of such Separation from Service. Therefore, in the event this paragraph 6(e) is applicable to the Executive, any distribution or
series of




distributions to be made due to a Separation from Service shall commence no earlier than the first day of the seventh month following the
Separation from Service.

(f) Upon atermination of Executive's employment conducted in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Executive shall be entitled to
remove from his office at GIG the following items: (i) Executive' s personal artwork on his officewalls; (ii) Executive' s personal family pictures and
frames; (iii) Executive'sfish tank and base cabinet; and (iv) Executive' s desk and desk chair, credenza, hutch side table, two chairs and round table
with accompanying chairs.

7. Restrictions Respecting Competing Businesses, Confidential I nfor mation, etc.

(a) The Executive is subject to certain restrictions regarding competing businesses and confidential and proprietary information set forth in
the SPA, to which both the Executive and GI G are parties. Those restrictions are based on the Executive's sale of the majority ownership of GIG.
The provisionsin this Section 7 are entered into based on the Executive' s employment by GIG after the sale. These are separate and independent
commitments and the Executiveis required to comply with both Section 5.10 of the Stock Purchase Agreement and this Section 7. The Executive
acknowledges and agrees that by virtue of the Executive's position and involvement with the Business and affairs of GIG, the Executive has
developed and will continue to develop substantial expertise and knowledge with respect to all aspects of GIG’s Business, affairs and operations
and has had and will continue to have accessto all significant aspects of the Business and operations of GIG and to Confidential and Proprietary
Information.

(b) The Executive hereby covenants and agrees that, during the Term of Employment and thereafter, unless otherwise authorized by GIG in
writing, the Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, under any circumstance: (i) disclose to any other person or entity (other than in the regul ar
course of Business of GIG) any Confidential and Proprietary Information, other than pursuant to applicable law, regulation or subpoena or with the
prior written consent of GIG; (ii) act or fail to act so asto impair the confidential or proprietary nature of any Confidential and Proprietary
Information; (iii) use any Confidential and Proprietary Information other than for the sole and exclusive benefit of GIG; or (iv) offer or agreeto, or
cause or assist in the inception or continuation of, any such disclosure, impairment or use of any Confidential and Proprietary Information. When
the Executive' s employment ends for any reason, the Executive shall return all copies of documents, data, records and other items containing any
Confidential and Proprietary Information (regardless of the medium in which maintained or stored).

(c) During the Covered Period, the Executive shall not, directly or indirectly,
(i) inthe Restricted Area, manage, own, advise, operate, control or be employed or participate in any Competing Business, or

(i) induce, encourage or influence any Person that at that time has a business relationship with GIG, any subsidiary or any Affiliate
thereof, in which




Executive was involved or about which Executive had access to Confidential or Proprietary Information, to discontinue, reduce the extent of,
or modify in amanner adverse to GIG, such relationship.

For purposes of this Agreement, the Executive shall be deemed to be directly or indirectly participating in abusinessif heis engaged or
interested in that business as a stockholder, director, officer, or executive, agent, partner, individual proprietor, consultant, advisor, or
otherwise, but not if the Executive' sinterest and involvement islimited solely to the ownership of not more than 5% of the securities of any
class of equity securities of a corporation or other Person whose shares are listed or admitted to trade on a national securities exchange or
are quoted on the Nasdagq Global Market or asimilar meansif the Nasdaq Global Market isno longer providing such information.

(d) While the Executive is employed by GIG and for one (1) year after the Date of Termination, the Executive shall not hire, or solicit or
attempt to solicit for hire a Covered Employee, encourage another Person to hire a Covered Employee, or otherwise seek to adversely influence or
alter such Covered Employee’ srelationship with GIG, any subsidiary or any of their Affiliates (except during the Executive' s employment with GIG,
when acting on the good faith belief that ending the Covered Employee’s employment would bein GIG's best interest). A "Covered Employee”
shall be any person who has been employed by GIG, any subsidiary or any of their Affiliates with whom Executive worked or about whom he had
accessto Confidential and Proprietary Information, as of the date any action prohibited by the preceding sentence occurs or within the twelve
(12) months prior to such date.

(e) The Executive acknowledges that as aresult of Executive’'s employment with GIG, Executive has held and will continue to hold a position
of the highest trust in which Executive comesto know GIG's employees, its customers and its Confidential and Proprietary Information, aswell as
that of its Affiliates. The Executive agrees that the provisions of Section 7 (c) and (d) are necessary to protect GIG legitimate businessinterests.
The Executive warrants that these provisions will not unreasonably interfere with his ability to earn aliving or to pursue his occupation after his
employment ends for any reason. Executive agrees to promptly notify GIG of the name and address of any Person or entity to which Executive
provides services during the Covered Period and authorizes GI G, after consultation with Executive as to the form and content of any such notice,
to notify that entity of Executive's obligations under this Agreement.

(f) The parties hereto agree that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or negate the common law of torts, confidentiality,
trade secrets, fiduciary duty and obligations where such laws provide GIG with any broader, further or other remedy or protection than those
provided herein.

(g) Because the breach of any of the provisions of this Section 7 will result in immediate and irreparable injury to GIG for which GIG will not
have an adequate remedy at law, GIG shall be entitled, in addition to all other rights and remedies, to seek a decree of specific performance of the
restrictive covenants contained in this Section 7 and to a




temporary and permanent injunction enjoining such breach, without posting bond or furnishing similar security.

(h) The parties waive the application of any law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguitiesin the Agreement will
be construed against the party drafting such agreement. The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the
partiesto express their mutual agreement, and this Agreement shall not be deemed to have been prepared by any single party. If any provision of
this Section 7 shall be deemed invalid asto its scope, then notwithstanding such invalidity, that provision shall be deemed valid to the fullest
extent permitted by law, and the parties agree that, if any court makes such a determination, the parties authorize the court to reduce the duration,
scope or area of such provisions and to del ete specific words and phrases and, in such modified form, to be enforced to the fullest extent permitted
by law.

8. Cooperation in Legal Proceedings. After the Date of Termination, the Executive agreesto reasonably cooperate with GIG, its subsidiaries
and any of its Affiliatesin the defense or prosecution of any claims or actions that may be brought against or on behalf of GIG, its subsidiaries or
its Affiliates, which relate to events or occurrences that transpired while the Executive was employed by GIG. The Executive' sreasonable
cooperation in connection with such claims or actions shall include, but not be limited to, being available to meet with counsel to prepare for
discovery or trial and to act as awitness on behalf of GIG, its subsidiaries or any of its Affiliates. The Executive also agrees to reasonably
cooperate with GIG, its subsidiaries and any of its Affiliates in connection with any investigation or review of any federal, state, or local regulatory
authority as any such investigation or review relatesto any acts or omissions that transpired while the Executive was employed by GIG. The
Executive understands that in any legal action, investigation, or review covered by this Section 8 that GIG expects the Executive to provide only
accurate and truthful information or testimony. GIG will pay expenses necessarily and reasonably incurred by the Executive in complying with this
Section.

9. Work Product. The Executive acknowledges that all inventions, innovations, improvements, developments, methods, designs, analyses,
drawings, reports and all similar or related information (whether or not patentable) that relate to GIG or its subsidiaries and Affiliates' research and
development or existing or future products or services and that are conceived, developed or made by the Executive while employed by GIG or
using Confidential and Proprietary Information ("Work Product”) belong to GIG, its subsidiaries or their Affiliates (as applicable). The Executive
shall promptly disclose such Work Product to the board of directors of GIG and perform all actions reasonably requested by the board of directors
(whether during or after the Executive’ s employment) to establish and confirm GIG's ownership (including, without limitation, executing
assignments, consents, powers of attorney and other instruments).

10. Return of Property. On and after the Date of Termination for any reason, or at any time during the Executive's employment, on the request
or direction of GIG, the Executive will immediately deliver to GIG any or al equipment, property, material, Confidential and Proprietary Information,
Work Product or copies thereof which are owned by GIG and are in the Executive' s possession or control. Thisincludes documents or other
information prepared by the




Executive, on Executive' s behalf or provided to the Executive in connection with the Executive's duties while employed by GIG, regardless of the
form in which such document or information are maintained or stored, including computer, typed, written, electronic, audio, video, micro-fiche,
imaged, drawn or any other means of recording or storing documents or other information. The Executive hereby warrants that the Executive will
not retain in any form such documents, Confidential and Proprietary Information, Work Product or other information or copiesthereof. The
Executive may retain a copy of this Agreement and any other document or information describing any rights the Executive may have after the
termination of the Executive' s employment.

11. [Intentionally L eft Blank.]

12. Withholding. All payments required to be made by GIG hereunder to the Executive shall be subject to the withholding of such amounts, if
any, relating to tax and other payroll deductions as GIG may reasonably determine should be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.

13. Assignability. GIG may assign this Agreement and its rights and obligations hereunder in whole, but not in part, to any corporation, bank or
other entity with or into which GIG may hereafter merge or consolidate or to which GIG may transfer al or substantially al of their assets, if in any
such case said corporation, bank or other entity shall by operation of law or expressly in writing assume all obligations of GIG hereunder asfully as
if it had been originally made a party hereto, but may not otherwise assign this Agreement or its rights and obligations hereunder. The Executive
may not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder.

14. Notice. For the purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and
addressed to the respective addresses set forth on the signature page hereto. Any notice, request, demand or other communication shall be
deemed to have been duly given (asthe case may be) upon the earliest of (a) the dateit is actually received, (b) the business day after the day on
which it isdelivered by hand, (c) the business day after the day on which it is properly deposited with Federal Express (or a comparable overnight
delivery service) and delivery is specified for the next business day, or (d) the third business day after the day on which it is deposited in the
United States certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. GI G or the Executive may change its address by notifying the
other party of the new addressin any manner permitted by this Section 14.

15. Amendment; Waiver. No provisions of this Agreement may be modified, waived or discharged unless such waiver, modification or
dischargeis agreed to in writing and signed by the Executive and such officer or officers as may be specifically designated by the Board of
Directors of GIG to sign on their behalf. No waiver by any party hereto at any time of any breach by any other party hereto of, or compliance with,
any condition or provision of this Agreement to be performed by such other party shall be deemed awaiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or
conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time.




16. Governing Law. The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the United
States where applicable and otherwise by the substantive laws of North Carolina.

17. Natur e of Obligations. Nothing contained herein shall create or require GIG to create atrust of any kind to fund any benefits which may be
payable hereunder, and to the extent that the Executive acquires aright to receive benefits from GIG hereunder, such right shall be no greater than
the right of any unsecured general creditor of GIG.

18. Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

19. Validity. Theinvalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provisions of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.

20. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more identical counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same
agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party; provided that a
facsimile signature shall be considered due execution and shall be binding upon the signatory thereto with the same force and effect asif the
signature were an original, not afacsimile signature.

21. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement between GIG and the Executive with respect to the matters agreed to
herein except as specified in the SPA. All prior agreements between GIG and the Executive with respect to the matters agreed to herein are hereby
superseded and shall have no force or effect except as specified in the SPA.




IN WITNESSWHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date first above written.
GREENPOINT INSURANCE GROUP, INC.

Address: By: /s/ Rabert L. Buzzo

Chairman
One Community Place
P.O. Box 989
Bluefield, VA 24605-0989

EXECUTIVE

Address: By: /s/ Shawn C. Cummings

Shawn Curtis Cummings
1844 Buxton Way
Burlington, NC 27215
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Exhibit 12

Computation of Ratios

Basic Earnings Per Share
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Cash Dividends Per Share
Book Vaue Per Share

Return on Average Assets
Return on Average Assets — Continuing

Return on Average Shareholders' Equity
Return on Average Shareholders' Equity — Continuing

Efficiency Ratio

Loansto Deposits

Dividend Payout

Average Shareholders' Equity to Average Assets
Tier | Capital Ratio

Total Capital Ratio

Tier | Leverage Ratio
Net Charge-offsto Average Loans

Non-performing Loansto Total Loans
Non-performing Assetsto Total Loans Plus OREO
Allowancefor Loan Lossesto Total Loans
Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Assets
Allowance for Loan L osses to Non-performing Loans
Net Interest Margin

Basic Earnings Per Share — Continuing

Diluted Earnings Per Share — Continuing
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Net Income/Average Common Shares Outstanding
Net Income/Average Diluted Shares Outstanding
Dividends Paid/Average Common Shares Outstanding
Total Shareholders' Equity/Average Common Shares
Outstanding

Net Income/Average Assets

Net Income from Continuing Operations/Average
Assets

Net Income/Average Shareholders' Equity

Income from Continuing Operations/Average
Shareholders' Equity

Noninterest Expense/(Net Interest Income Plus
Noninterest Income)

Average Net Loans/Average Deposits Outstanding
Dividends Declared/Net Income

Average Shareholders' Equity/Average Assets
Shareholders' Equity - Intangible Assets - Securities
Mark-to-market Capital Reserve (Tier | Capital)/ Risk
Adjusted Assets

Tier | Capital Plus Allowance for Loan Losses/Risk
Adjusted Assets

Tier | Capital/Average Assets

(Gross Charge-offs L ess Recoveries)/Average Net
Loans

(Nonaccrual Loans Plus Loans Past Due 90 Days or
Greater)/Gross Loans Net of Unearned Interest)
(Nonaccrual Loans Plus Loans Past Due 90 Days or
Greater Plus OREO)/Total Loans plus OREO
Allowance for Loan Losses/(Gross Loans Net of
Unearned Interest)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans plus
L oans Past Due 90 days or Greater plus OREQO)
Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans plus
Performing Loans)

Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income/Average Earning
Assets

Income from Continuing Operations/Average Common
Shares

Income from Continuing Operations/Average Diluted
Shares



Exhibit 23.1

LOGO

- Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm -

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements pertaining to the 2004 Omnibus Stock
Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-120376); the 2001 Directors Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-75222); the 1999 Stock
Option Plan (Form S-8, 333-31338); the Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-63865);

Form S-3, No 333-142558; and Form S-3, No 333-148279 of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the
"Company") of our reports dated March 12, 2008, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which reports appear in the Company’s 2007 Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Dixorn Hyghs PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 12, 2008

LOGO
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Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of First Community Bancshares, Inc. of
our report dated March 3, 2006, with respect to the consolidated financial statementsrelative to the year ended
December 31, 2005 of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries, included in this 2007 Annual Report (Form 10-
K).

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement pertaining to the 2004 Omnibus Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-120376) of First
Community Bancshares, Inc.,

(2) Registration Statement pertaining to the 2001 Directors Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-75222) of First
Community Bancshares, Inc.,

(3) Registration Statement pertaining to the 1999 Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-31338) of First Community
Bancshares, Inc.,

(4) Registration Statement pertaining to the Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-63865)
of First Community Bancshares, Inc.,

(5) Registration Statement pertaining to the registration of 92,094 shares of common stock (Form S-3, No. 333-
148279) of First Community Bancshares, Inc.,

(6) Registration Statement pertaining to the registration of 79,111 shares of common stock (Form S-3, No. 333-
142558) of First Community Bancshares, Inc.;

of our report dated March 3, 2006, with respect to the consolidated financial statementsrelative to the year ended
December 31, 2005, of First Community Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiariesincluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for

the year ended December 31, 2007.
|£ww¢ ¥ MLL?

Charleston, West Virginia
March 10, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, John M. Mendez, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of First Community Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which thisreport is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonabl e assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statementsfor external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by thisreport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in thisreport any change in the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
rolein the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting.

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 13, 2008
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, David D. Brown, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of First Community Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(¢e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which thisreport is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonabl e assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statementsfor external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by thisreport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in thisreport any change in the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting; and

5. Theregistrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
rolein the registrant’sinternal control over financial reporting.

/9 David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 13, 2008
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the
period ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
"Report"), the undersigned hereby certify, to the officers best knowledge and belief, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
Chief Executive Officer

/9 David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer

Dated this 13th day of March, 2008.
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